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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any
loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
directors of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief
the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer

Mr. Chow Kai Weng (Appointed as Chairman on 4 May

2018 and appointed as Chief Executive Officer on
13 June 2018)

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Resigned on 4 May 2018)

Vice Chairperson, Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Law Po Yee (Resigned as Chief Executive Officer on

18 June 2018 and resigned as Vice Chairperson and
Executive Director on 15 November 2018)

Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Wang Chun (Appointed on 4 May 2018)

Mr. Ho Leung Ting (Appointed on 15 November 2018)
Ms. Sin Ho Yee (Resigned on 15 November 2018)

Non-executive Directors

Dr. Lam Lee G.
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim (Resigned on 5 January 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert

Mr. Li Kit Chee

Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor (Resigned on 1 July 2018)

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick
(Resigned on 1 January 2019)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Sun Shui

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Chow Kai Weng (Appointed on 13 June 2018)
Ms. Law Po Yee (Resigned on 13 June 2018)
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HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL

PLACE OF BUSINESS

Rm. L&M, 21/F., Kings Wing Plaza,
Phase 1, No. 3 On Kwan Street,
Shek Mun, Shatin, N.T.,

Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICES

Principal share registrar and transfer office

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

AUTHORISED
REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Chow Kai Weng
Mr. Cheng Wang Chun (Appointed on 13 June 2018)
Ms. Law Po Yee (Resigned on 13 June 2018)

COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman)
Mr. Li Kit Chee
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor
(Resigned on 1 July 2018)
Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick
(Resigned on 1 January 2019)

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman)
Mr. Li Kit Chee
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor (Resigned on 1 July 2018)
Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick
(Resigned on 1 January 2019)

Nomination Committee

Mr. Chow Kai Wang (Chairman)
(Appointed on 4 May 2018)

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman) (Resigned on 4 May 2018)

Mr. Li Kit Chee
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor (Resigned on 1 July 2018)
Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick

(Resigned on 1 January 2019)
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LEGAL ADVISORS

Conyers Dill & Pearman (Bermuda laws)
LCH Lawyers LLP (Hong Kong laws)

AUDITORS

With effect from 28 December 2018:
Elite Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

10/F., 8 Observatory Road

Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Resigned on 28 December 2018:
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

31/F, Gloucester Tower

The Landmark

11 Pedder Street

Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER

Hang Seng Bank

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

GROUP’S WEBSITE

http://www.nationalarts.hk

STOCK CODE

8228
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IRHES
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of National Arts Entertainment and Culture
Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
to you the 2018 annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”).

The Group has for years endeavored to become an all-
round enterprise of culture and entertainment, and have
been actively developing the Xigiao National Arts Film
Studio (the “Studio”) and National Arts Resort Hotel (the
“Hotel”) (collectively the “Xigiao National Arts Film Studio
Project”).

The Studio is an exclusive construction for real shot
filming, and has been continuously improving its film
shooting equipment and filming ancillary facilities. In 2018,
more than 130 shooting crews conducted film shooting in
the Studio. This shows that the Group has an increasingly
reliable source of clients, and its customer base is
gradually growing. Therefore, the Studio has started the
second phase of its development in order to increase the
Group’s competitiveness with a goal to build a southern
studio center.
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Chairman’s Statement ¥ Ei#f %=

The business of the Group is mainly based in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (the
“Greater Bay Area”). Given the development of the
Greater Bay Area and the opening of the Guangzhou —
Shenzhen — Hong Kong Express Rail Link, transportation
becomes more convenient, and the number of tourists
continues to increase, providing a stable source of
income for the Group. The Group will allocate more
resources to tourism services, such as cultural tourism, so
as to fully utilise the resources of the Studio to provide
customers with more unique tour groups.

In addition, the Company has started the placing of its
shares in 2019. Assuming there will be full placement of
the placing shares, the Company will be able to repay its
debts and expand the Studio. The Group will become a
Company without external debt. The Group can thus
focus on the development of its film business and
become a world-class and renowned film center.

Apart from the Xigiao National Arts Film Studio Project,
the Group also continues to develop its Hong Kong film
business and proactively looks for opportunities to work
with its peers in Hong Kong, striving to foster the
development of the Hong Kong film industry. The Group
hopes to invest in and produce a fiim with a theme that
reflects Hong Kong’s social background, and to
participate in more charity events so as to raise public
awareness as to the communities that are in need and
contribute to the society.

Looking ahead, the Group will explore more business
opportunities related to its entertainment and cultural
business and develop in different directions. The Group
will proactively participate in different film productions,
promote film education and cultivate a new generation of
film producers and actors/actresses. Finally, on behalf of
the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my heartfelt gratitude to the Company’s shareholders for
their continuing support and the Board members and staff
for their dedication and contributions.

Thank you for your support.

Chow Kai Weng
Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive officer

Hong Kong, 20 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEER WL

BUSINESS REVIEW

Xigiao National Arts Studio Project

Located in Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the Xigiao
National Arts Film Studio Project has the view of Mount
Xigiao which is known as one of the national 5-star
tourist attractions and has total developed land area of
444,000 square meters. There are unique film shooting
areas throughout the Studio along with theme parks, hotel
and performing arts complexes. The Studio incorporates
tourism and recreational facilities that leads the Studio to
become an international vacation resort in Guangdong
Province.

During the year under review, the Studio successfully
organised a number of events, including “Lunar New Year
Celebration”, “Summer Carnival”, “The 3rd Hung Kuen
Competition”, “Halloween Party” and “Christmas Carnival”.
Among other events, the event “Summer Carnival” was
held successfully for the first time and the number of
visitors were approximately 680,000. Overall, the total
attendances of the Studio in 2018 were approximately
1,000,000.

In addition, the Group has participated in several charity
groups on education in 2018. The Studio cooperated with
charitable organisations such as Caritas and Po Leung
Kuk to organise study group events for students to
participate and to explore different culture and film
production in the Studio.

The Groups believes that the events held by the Group
will effectively improve the brand awareness of the Studio
and will push the Xigiao National Arts Film Studio Project
to the peak.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &3 B 3138 & 9 #

Travel

National Arts Travel Limited (“NA Travel”) has been
established and commenced its business since 2016. It
provides cozy travel solution such as organising tailor-
made travel itineraries for different organisations, groups
and individuals. Besides traditional group tours, NA Travel
launched a series of featured group tours to enhance
customers’ unique travel experience.

To enhance the comprehensive customer support, NA
Travel has updated its inquiry and sales system in 2018.
The system provides worldwide information on air tickets,
hotels as well as travel insurance, transportation and visa
application, thus strengthening the competitiveness of the
Group in the market.

In addition, diversifying the current product lines helps
building a brand-new image. In 2018, the Travel Industry
Council of Hong Kong approved the establishment of the
brand “Skyyer Travel” by NA Travel, “Skyyer Travel”
presents a fresh brand image with the slogan “What
Travel means is......you decide to go and take action! (i
Peghe...... 2859 o gLE9)”. “Skyyer Travel” is a brand under
NA Travel which professionally designs “Tailor-made tours
for sport, hobby and industry” and invites various
celebrities to lead and guide in different tours. Moreover,
“Skyyer Travel” is exploring special and exclusive tourist
attractions and incorporates travel tours with specific
subjects, such subject includes, golf, yoga, bicycle, darts,
painting, dragon boat, diving, photography, religion,
music, goodies marathon, etc.

Film Shooting Base

The film shooting base is the core project of the Xigiao
National Arts Film Studio Project. It covers 374,000
square meters of land, including a lake of 120,000 square
meters and numbers of indoor and outdoor studios which
are equipped with excellent and comprehensive ancillary
facilities in order to provide the Southern China and
foreign shooting crews the most realistic and delicate
scenes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &3 B 3138 & 9 #

By virtue of the extensive choices of scenes, supreme
geographical location and multifunctional ancillary
services, the film shooting base has been heavily used by
the production crews. During the year of 2018, over 130
production crews filmed in the film shooting base.

Since 2017, the Group has taken the role of rental agent
by entering into several rental agreements with a number
of companies renting film shooting equipment. The
partners provide the plentiful props, attires and high-tech
shooting equipment including lots of ancient costumes of
Ming and Qing dynasties, antique furniture, simulated
ordnance and other performing props. It generate
substantial revenue to the Group. Besides creating
enormous synergistic effect for the Group, it also
enhances the Group’s capability of provision of ancillary
services in respect of film shooting, and also facilitates
centralization of the industry as well as strengthen the
Group’s competitiveness among its peers.

On 4 January 2018, Foshan Bureau of Culture,
Publication, Radio, Film and Television (the “Bureau”)
approved a few wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company to assist the Bureau in the operation and
expansion (i) that would facilitate film enterprises from
various regions moving into Foshan, policy presentation,
solicitation of investment and funding as well as shooting,
etc.; (i) of digital studio and film location construction
projects; and (iii) in respect of diversification of props and
equipment portfolio, leasing and consolidation of props
leasing business.

With the rapidly increase in the demand of film industry in
recent years, the Group is actively developing the second
phase development of the Studio (“Second Phase
Project”). The Second Phase Project includes the building
of indoor studio, which could raise the Group’s current
position in the film industry and enable the Group to
develop into a world-known film shooting base in the
foreseeable future.

The Group is the first enterprise designated by the
Foshan Government to help building Foshan as the
largest hub for props and equipment in Foshan, with
focus on film and television industry, which boosted the
reputation of the Group in the industry, thereby further
consolidating the presence of the Studio in the film and
television industry in Southern China.
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Wedding Photography

The Group reached an agreement with a renowned
domestic wedding photography chain group in the fourth
quarter of 2013 to develop its new wedding photography
business. Through which, the Group leased the Studio
with an area of approximately 20 mu (13,333.33 square
meters) for a term of 12 years and the wedding
photography company invested RMB10 million for the
construction of scenic spots in different styles such as
European, Korean and Japanese styles and guarantee
there will be at least 28,800 couples taking wedding
photos in the scenic spots per year. The annual income
of this arrangement will be no less than approximately
RMB1.2 million starting from 2016.

In addition, the Group is negotiating with several jeweler,
Chinese and western bakery, Chinese style wedding gown
and wedding planning company in order to provide one-
stop service for wedding couples. The Studio is expected
to become a comprehensive wedding hot spot.

Hotel

The 5-star Hotel located next to the Studio provides 350
suites facilitated from deluxe suites to economic standard
rooms. The Hotel is equipped with a variety of
recreational facilities such as SPA, modern swimming pool
and chess room. Apart from the recreation, the Hotel also
provides catering services and commercial services such
as business centre, meeting rooms and lecture halls,
thereby satisfy essential needs and wants of the
customers.

To boost high quality service, the Hotel wishes to build
strong communication among its staff by organising group
activities such as sport day, in order to educate the staff
of the importance of team work and to raise spirit in the
corporate environment.

Besides, the Hotel was awarded “Resort Hotel of the
Year 2018” and “18th Golden Horse Award of China
Hotel — Best Theme Hotel Resort of Greater Bay Area”
which recognized the corporate management quality and
service quality of the Hotel.

With the development of the Hotel and the Studio
becoming mature and its popularity having increased, the
number of tourists continuously grows. The Group
expects to build boutique hotel in the foreseeable future.

Film Production

The Group spared no effort in promoting entertainment
culture for many years such as production of and
investment in movie, microcinema and online TV
programme to promote the culture and the spirit of
entertainment.
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During 2016, the Group invested in the production of a
charity film named “Our Days in 6E” (¥ fIHIBEXL). The
theme of “Our Days in 6E” is in line with the current
social status, laden with educational significance as part
of its social responsibility. The Group expects to invest
more in production of films of various themes, thus,
stepping forward to the diversified film market.

In addition, the Group held various courses from time to
time to cultivate next generation film producers and
actors in order to encourage the development of film
production and contribute to the betterment of the fim
industry. With regard to the prospects of film production
of the Group, the Group will step forward in respect of
Hong Kong-Mainland film production and maintain a
position in the film industry in Southern China.

Cinema

National Arts Films Production Limited (“NA Films”), an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
collaborated with its joint venture for the development of
cinema business in a large shopping mall in a
transportation hub area of Zhuhai, Guangdong, the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).

NA Films held 60% equity interest in the joint venture. The
cinema boasts eight screens and a total of more than
730 seats, and have commenced its operation since May
2014 which supports further comprehensive development
of the Group’s entertainment and culture business.

Artiste Management

To enhance the popularity of the Group’s artists such as
Rose Chan and Brian Yuen, the Group has arranged a
variety of performance opportunities including the
participation in the charity movie, “Our Days in 6E” (¥ 1
HIBGEHE), the online TV series “OCTB” (&), brand
representatlve dramas such as “Guardian Angel” (5F & f#
Z R E) and being the show host of the Lunar New
Year Celebration, and the guest performers for the “New
Year is A Game” (KIt#F3n) and “Cooking Beauties’ (3£
LR ).

Besides, the Group also explores the PRC market for its
artists and makes arrangement for them to participate in
live reality show and online drama to enhance their
popularity.

With the huge market of domestic movies, the Group will
continue to recruit artists with potential in the future to
cope with the demands in the vast market and expand
the artiste management segment, hoping that it will
become one of the major income sources of the Group.
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FUTURE PROSPECT

Market Trends

According to the statistics published by The Guizhou
Provincial Department of Culture and Tourism, during the
2019 Lunar New Year holidays, the gross tourism revenue
in Guangdong Province was approximately RMB49,460
million, representing an increase of 16.9% compared with
that in 2018.

Revenue from tourism during the 2019 Lunar New Year
holidays by provinces, regions and cities — top ten (on-
going statistics):

AR JE B

inE %

G S TIPS %453 PN L -
T— N R RER R R R R AL

BARBI46E T RZF— N\NFREBAEMN
16.9% -

—E-NEFREHNFEARNKRE W REASH
REFERE — TREFERE) :

Total number of

Total revenue Year-on-year tourists Year-on-year
Rank Province, region & city from tourism growth received growth
BaR HE™ Bi% 35 48 i A FL R ESBEEAY FL#E R
(RMB billion) (million)
(ARBTERT (BEAR)

1 Sichuan il 58.04 30% 82.4729 16.6%
2 Guangdong E® 49.46 16.9% 63.303 13.8%
3 Shaanxi 5] 25.93 25.18% 47.6588 16.33%
4 Yunnan £/ 2417 25.29% 34.6406 20.22%
5 Zhejiang i pan 23.24 10.13% 24.1283 8.3%
6 Anhui =& 21.86 11.43% 33.4807 6.17%
7 Fujian Zig = 21.16 22.8% 26.3868 16.4%
8 Hunan il 21.01 18.34% 30.7456 12.99%
9 Henan ] 18.03 15.6% 32.12 13.1%
10 Chonggqing £ 18.03 34.82% 47.2598 10.26%
Chart by: Yang Seng Yu of http://travel.people.com.cn BXR&EE: 15185 (http://travel.people.com.cn)
Descriptions: This table was compiled based on the B ERBBRARBMORAHFTRE

publicly available statistics and data EEEmMKELZ BEERHENEE

provided by the tourism commissions of HBE MSEBBTHATEEEE

different provinces, regions and cities, and B Al e

their statistical scope are different from

each other.
(Reference:  Guizhou Provincial Department of Culture (2% BN A XL bk 22 B8 (B 02 2= 35 ) 48

and Tourism (Tourism Industry) web-site:
http://www.gztour.gov.cn/lyzx/jrtt/201902/
t20190212_2258636.html)

Uk ¢ http://www.gztour.gov.cn/lyzx/
jrtt/201902/t20190212_2258636.
html)
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The gross tourism revenue in Guangdong Province in the
PRC continuously increased during the seven years period
from 2012 (approximately RMB738,900 million) to 2018
(approximately RMB1,361,000 million). Guangdong
Province ranked among the leaders in China in terms of
gross tourism revenue.

TR CFE T N\FLFH PEERED
RPERUWATENIE R - B ARE7,389E T8 M
EHAREEZ,610ETT o IWIRBLWAGTHE - P E
EREAEZBEMNHEZFNEBEIAF -

R A IR AR A

Gross tourism revenue in Guangdong Province

14,000 [~
12,000 [~
10,000 [~
8,000 [~ 8.305
7,389
O Il L Il Il 1 Il J
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
ARE(R)T

RMB (100 million)

On 21 March 2013, Motion Picture Association of
America published an annual report that China has
replaced Japan as the world’s second largest film market
after the United States, and this ranking has so far been
maintained.

Following the reversal of the downward trend in 2017,
China’s film market has continuously grown in 2018, with
the total box office revenue reached an even higher
record of over RMB61 billion, representing an increase of
9.32% as compared to that in 2017. With the
unprecedented breakthrough in box office and attendance
rate, China’s film market remained steady, with a view to
becoming a major growth engine in global film market.
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FREEFTISGBE
Film Market Trends in the PRC

1,000 — 902
900 I~ .=
800 I~ 7f 686 ,712 ————— | 2?//

700 = TT= 838 618 ___-- =7

6o~ T = 609.8

500 [~ ’

400 1= 440.69 457.12

300 [~

200

100 | 170.73 217.69

O 1 1 1 1 1 1 J
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
WEREESE (F) BERE (BARE)

~*® - Story production (unit) ™ Total box office (100 million)

Hib3km

PREERREDERRER EHEST A%
BHOE-—TERE_MNER BREKREER
EXENLAAREBRAEHRFPREES -

Further Development

Against the backdrop that China’s film-induced tourism is
at the development stage, the Group is committed to the
further development of the Second Phase Project in order
to compete with its peers in face of the upward trend in
both tourism industry and film industry.

Over 130 shooting crews conducted filming in the Studio
in 2018, which was 20% more than that in 2017. The
Group believes that the Second Phase Project is essential
and the Second Phase Project will include (i) the
construction of indoor studios; (i) cooperation with
resourceful company in providing high-tech equipment,
props, etc, and (ii) new boutique hotels. The Group
expects that there will be more shooting crews to film in
the Studio after the Studio being improved for the crews
and tourists. Besides, the Studio will focus on education
such as providing more tours to the students in the short
term. In long term, the Group will consider building a film
production school for giving opportunities to any person
who is interested in and passionate about film industry
such as post-production and actor training. Overall, the
Group believes that better land use planning and
provision of supporting facilities will allow the Studio to
become a comprehensive film studio in the foreseeable
future.

B =Z— \F o #13018 A % B B £ 5 R A E
BT LFEZ20% AEBMEEF_HEAE
EENE BeE ((ERZRNEZN (R2E
FEENAREE BEEaERE BASS:
R mBEE AEEEFERAMBEHEIRA
% SEEZHBEBKEREBEXER AR BAAE-
BN ERBEeEPREHE  LLEHAM
BEREFZEEE -REME  AEEEEK
VEVEEER REERSTERNYHEFYERH
BRATEFMALT flm2REHERIE - ES
TIE - BEmMs  ASEHEEETNIHWAR
AE REIEREES  BEZEWENT LS
KK ABGAEEBERM -
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In recent years, tourism has experienced continuous
growth. With the advent of the leisure era, the Group
believes that film-induced tourism will present a more
promising prospect, advancing in a direction
characterized by diversified tourist attractions,
individualized tourists, updated tourism contents and
integrated planning and construction.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results

During the year under review, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$153.84 million, representing
a decrease of approximately HK$67.54 million as
compared to 2017. The revenue was mainly derived from
the entrance fee income, and the crew rental income from
the film production crews using the Group’s film shooting
base, while part of the revenue was generated from sales
of goods, filming, ancillary services, the hotel in the PRC,
and the artiste management and event coordination
business in Hong Kong. Due to the revision of the tax
computation methods by the State Administration of
Taxation, the crew rental income has decreased to
approximately HK$35.07 million in 2018 from
approximately HK$76.97 million in 2017, representing a
decrease of approximately HK$41.90 million. However,
since the Studio has been developing film shooting base,
and introducing high-tech shooting equipment and
technology, it is believed that this may help the Group's
business to recover in the future.

Staff costs for the year under review decreased to
approximately HK$51.63 million from approximately
HK$69.19 million in 2017. The decrease in staff costs was
mainly attributable to the absence of equity-settled share-
based payment expenses during the year under review as
compared to such expenses of approximately HK$21.84
million in 2017.

Finance costs for the year under review increased to
approximately HK$227.33 million from approximately
HK$165.56 million in 2017. The increase in finance costs
was mainly due to the increase in interests on bonds and
loans from shareholders, though partly offset by the
decrease in interest on unsecured other borrowings.

Other operating expenses for the year under review
decreased to approximately HK$92.21 million from
approximately HK$127.00 million in 2017. The decrease in
other operating expenses was mainly due to the absence
of equity-settled share-based payment expenses granted
to consultants and increase in cost of scene setting in the
Studio.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
recorded a net loss of approximately HK$415.56 million as
compared to net loss of approximately HK$193.53 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017. The increase in
net loss was mainly due to the decrease in revenue, the

HE —f—/\¢+:ﬂz+—5¢¢r§v$;€
$% 15 518 % 58 49415,560,00058 7T - ML EH ZE =
—tHE+_A=Z+—HILFEHRS }Eﬂaaa%é@
193,530,000/ L - BB FHE MO EEZ AN K E
WA L E TR FORE 18 R A B R AR 10

increase in impairment loss of land lease prepayment and Fr g o
finance cost.
Liquidity and Financial Resources RBEERMBER
2018 2017
—E-A%E —E—
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Current assets mEEE 204,006 270,592
Current liabilities mENEE 919,353 1,310,455
Current ratio Tt B b 22.2% 20.6%
Current ratio as at 31 December 2018 was 22.2% (2017: RZZB-NE+-_A=+—HHRPLER22.2%
20.6%). As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s total (ZE2—tEF:206%) RZZE—NF+ A
positive cash and cash equivalents amounted to E% H AEEHEGEFRAER KRS EE

approximately HK$13.47 million (2017: positive cash and
cash equivalents approximately HK$11.53 million).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$715,347,000 and the Group continued to incur a loss
for the year of approximately HK$415,558,000. These
conditions indicate that there may exist a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Notwithstanding the existence of these indicators, the
Directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate for the
consolidated financial statements to be prepared on the
assumption that the Group will continue to operate as a
going concern. In order to improve the Group’s financial
position, immediate liquidity and cash flows, and otherwise
to sustain the Group as a going concern, the Directors
have adopted several measures, including the following:

(i) the Group has obtained an undertaking from certain
shareholders of the Company, including the
substantial shareholder, that they will provide
sufficient funding to the Group, including but not
limited to the disposal of their personal assets, to
meet its financial obligations in full as they fall due
for the period of twelve months from the date of
this annual report;

B #913,470,000 7T (Z & — ti:E%ﬁ@&ﬁ
4+ (A8 B #911,530,00058 7T) ©
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x

N—_ZE—N\F+_A=+—HB AEBENRIPE
BERBERSEE  =FH715,347,0008 7L ° ™
ANE B R ARFE 15 B 1B £9415,558,00078
Lo ZEBRARMAEEEATEBERE > Al 6
HAEBNEBEELEENBRERARM -BEE
RETE BEERAGRACUBRRBARR K
BRECENBIAGRE EBAHE AREAE
ENFERRL BEEAHESNBESREE UK
FEMTEEFALEENFELE EICRMN
g BIENNSE:

i
o

%
m

() AEBEMARAE TREIG —E&EA
BETERE BFEBREXREZESTAE
B BEEFTEAHEEENEAEE £
AREBREMBETRHREBR 2 EBITE
T BAFRBGRTABH @A

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETILEMERAA

17



18

Annual Report 2018
ZE-N\EH

Management Discussion and Analysis &3 B 3138 & 9 #

(i)

on 138 February 2019, the Company entered into
placing agreements with four placing agents,
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to place through the placing agents, on a
best effort basis, of up to 6,999,999,997 shares of
the Company (“Placing Shares”) in aggregate to not
less than six placees by each placing agent at a
price of HK$0.26 per Placing Share. Assuming the
maximum number of the Placing Shares are placed
by the placing agents, the net proceeds are
estimated to be approximately HK$1,751.5 million.
On 15 March 2019, the Company completed the
placing of 428,769,230 Placing Shares at a price of
HK$0.26 per Placing Share and the net proceeds,
after deducting the related expenses, is
approximately HK$104.5 million; and

subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Company and certain bondholders mutually agreed
to extend the maturity dates of the bonds with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$114,113,000 to 29 February 2020. In addition,
the Company is in the process to negotiate with
bondholders to extend maturity dates of the bonds
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$243,310,000
upon its maturity.

On the basis of the foregoing, and after assessing the
Group’s current and forecasted cash positions, the
Directors are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet
in full the Group’s financial obligations as they fall due for
the period of twelve months from 31 December 2018.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared on the going concern basis.

Dividend

The Directors do not recommend payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:

Nil).
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Capital Structure and Gearing Ratio

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange on 17 October 2002. The capital of the
Company comprises only ordinary shares. As at
31 December 2018, 4,517,161,222 ordinary shares were
issued and fully paid.

BARBRARILE
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+ -t B E AT
LB RNZFE—N
F+_A=+-— Ei *ﬁ4517161,222ﬁ BEETR
BERRE B -

2018 2017
—E—-N\%E —E—tF
Amount Relative Amount Relative
&% 1HE¥ k| ik
HK$’°000 % HK$°000 %
FHER FAT
Bank overdrafts RITHE X - 0% 8,416 0.4%
Loans from shareholders A% R HE R 601,031 28.7% 504,060 21.8%
Borrowings =R 193,059 9.2% 221,202 9.6%
Bonds &% 1,023,319 48.9% 719,920 31.2%
Convertible bond AR E S - 0% 106,697 4.6%
Promissory notes AR R 106,477 5.1% 83,991 3.6%
Finance lease obligation B IS AE E AR 24,199 1.2% 22,631 1.0%
Total borrowings [EE S8 1,948,085 93.1% 1,666,917 72.2%
Equity L 145,175 6.9% 640,431 27.8%
Total capital employed FriE MM EARERR 2,093,260 100% 2,307,348 100%
The Group’s gearing ratio (i.e. the total borrowings to the 75’:‘ —ET-NF+ZA=+—8" ZK& EraEL
total capital employed) was approximately 93.1% as at (EMﬁ?ﬁ( 158 bR LA iﬁﬁﬁ’] B4 )%’37,%93.1%
31 December 2018 (2017: 72.2%). If the bonds, —E 4 722%) - Wﬁéiﬂﬁ%% Gl
convertible bond, promissory notes and finance lease RES AEEBRMBHEHEAE RZ-2ZT—N
obligation as stated above were to be excluded, the FH+ZA=1+—H®HE %@Qﬁtbfﬁ?ﬂg%(f =
underlying gearing ratio would be 37.9% as at —+tF:31.8%) °
31 December 2018 (2017: 31.8%).
Foreign Exchange Exposure 41 EE B B
The Group’s reporting currency is expressed in HK$. For AEEBUNABTEREREY REBEZZ—\F

the year ended 31 December 2018, most of the
transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group were
denominated in HK$ and RMB. During the year under
review, since the Group had both HK$ and RMB receipts
and payments, the net RMB exposure was not significant.
The Board considers that the Group’s exposure to foreign
exchange risk was not significant; therefore, no hedging
transaction was made during the year.
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Capital Commitments BERRE
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had the following RZE-NF+_A=1+—H AEEEUTE
capital commitments: AN ECHE

2018 2017
—E—N\EF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FAET

Contracted but not provided for: BRT4E KRB
Construction of properties LES = 63,514 91,807

Authorised but not contracted for: EHROEERFTA

Construction of properties (Note) MR () 341,686 360,187

20

Note: Capital commitment for construction in properties related
to capital commitment for construction of film studio and
hotel in Foshan, the PRC. The authorised amount was
approved by the Directors according to the land lease
agreements signed between Lux Unicorn Limited, the
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the local
authority in Foshan, the PRC, in relation to the leasing of
lands for development of tourism and related
entertainment business and hotel operations. The
completion of constructions and commencement of
operations of the projects shall be within three and four
years respectively from the signing of the lease
agreements.

Future Plans for Substantial Investments or Capital
Assets

With reference to the announcement of the Company
dated 13 December 2017, Foshan Guohao Theme Park
Management Company Limited (LT 2SR EEER
A A) (“Guohao Theme Park”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, has entered into a subscription
agreement with Guangdong Hongtu Guangdian
Investment Co., Ltd. (ERLEBEEREFBR A F) (“‘GD
Hongtu”), pursuant to which GD Hongtu will make a
capital injection of RMB20 million into the Guohao Theme
Park, in respect of joint cooperation of the Second Phase
Project. The Second Phase Project is planned to have
indoor studio and boutique hotel to be constructed next
to the first phase of the Studio and the Hotel.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any
plan for substantial investments or capital assets.
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EMPLOYEE AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 511
(2017: 487) staff based in the PRC and Hong Kong. The
Group remunerates its employees based on their
performances, experiences and the prevailing industry
practices. In addition to basic salaries and mandatory
provident fund, staff benefits including medical coverage
scheme and share options are offered.

The Group’s remuneration policy was reviewed
periodically by the remuneration committee and the
Board’s remuneration is determined by reference to
market terms, company performance, and individual
qualifications and performance. The Group aimed to
recruit, retain and develop competent individuals who
were committed to the Group’s long-term success and
growth. Remunerations and other benefits of employees
were reviewed annually in response to both market
conditions and trends, and were based on qualifications,
experience, responsibilities and performance.

The current remuneration of directors and key
management is determined by the individuals
performance and market trends.

During the year under review, the Group has not
experienced any significant problems with its employees
or disruption to its operation due to labour disputes nor
has it experienced any difficulties in the recruitment and
retention of experienced staff. The Directors believe that
the Group has a good working relationship with its
employees.

& 85 K B By B SR
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chow Kai Weng, aged 34, joined the Group in
January 2010. Mr. Chow holds a Bachelor Degree of
Business Administration with previous experiences in
media and financial industries. Mr. Chow was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 25 March
2011 and as the Vice Chairperson of the Board on
5 August 2016. He was subsequently appointed as the
Chairman of the Company on 4 May 2018 and the Chief
Executive Officer and the Compliance Officer of the
Company on 13 June 2018. Mr. Chow is also a director
of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Cheng Wang Chun, aged 28, joined the Group in
August 2013 and has been promoted as the financial
controller of the Group since November 2016. Before
joining the Group, he worked in an accountancy firm
practicing in Hong Kong for two years. Mr. Cheng is
primarily responsible for the financial and treasury
management of the Group and the overall management of
the operations of the Group. Mr. Cheng was appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company on 4 May 2018.
Mr. Cheng is also a director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company.

Mr. Ho Leung Ting, aged 31, joined the Group in
December 2014 and has been promoted as the financial
manager of the Group since November 2016. Mr. Ho
holds a bachelor’'s degree in professional accounting.
Mr. Ho is primarily responsible for the financial and
treasury management of the Group and the overall
management of the operations of the Group. Mr. Ho was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on
15 November 2018. Mr. Ho is also a director of a number
of subsidiaries of the Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Lam Lee G. (“Dr. Lam”), aged 59 is a Non-Executive
Director of the Company. Dr. Lam joined the Company in
June 2017. He is the Chairman of Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited, Non-Executive Chairman
— Hong Kong and ASEAN Region and Chief Adviser to
Macquarie Infrastructure and Real Assets Asia, a member
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government’s Committee on Innovation, Technology and
Re-Industrialization, the Council on Professional Conduct
in Education (CPC), and the Court of the City University of
Hong Kong, Convenor of the Panel of Advisors on
Building Management Disputes of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government Home Affairs
Department, President of the United Nations Economic
and Social Commission for Asia and the Pacific (UN
ESCAP) Sustainable Business Network (ESBN) Executive
Council and Chairman of its Task Force on Banking and
Finance, Chairman of the Permanent Commission on
Economic and Financial Issues of World Union of Small
and Medium Enterprises (WUSME), a board member of
Pacific Basin Economic Council (PBEC), a member of Belt
and Road Committee and Convenor of its Digital Silk
Road Working Group of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council, a member of Sir Murray MaclLehose
Trust Fund Investment Advisory Committee, Honorary
Advisor to the Hong Kong Business Angel Network
(HKBAN), Honorary Chairman — Asia Pacific of CMA
Australia, Chairman of Monte Jade Science and
Technology Association of Hong Kong, President of Hong
Kong-ASEAN Economic Cooperation Foundation, a Vice
President of the Hong Kong Real Property Federation,
Special Adviser to the Asia Pacific Real Estates
Association, a board member of the Chinese General
Chamber of Commerce of Hong Kong and the Australian
Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong and Macau, a
founding board member and the Honorary Treasurer of
the Hong Kong Vietham Chamber of Commerce, Vice
Chairman of the Hong Kong Myanmar Chamber of
Commerce, a founding member of the Hong Kong-Korea
Business Council, and a member of the Hong Kong-
Thailand Business Council.

Dr. Lam earlier also served as a part-time member of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government’s
Central Policy Unit, and a member of the Task Force on
Industry Facilitation under the Digital 21 Strategy Advisory
Committee, the Assessment Panel of the Small
Entrepreneur Research Assistance Programme under the
Innovation and Technology Fund, the Derivatives Market
Consultative Panel of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited, the General Council and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Chamber of Hong Kong
Listed Companies, the New Business Committee of the
Hong Kong Financial Services Development Council, the
Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health, the
Education Bureau School Allocation Committee and the
Legal Aid Services Council.
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Dr. Lam has over 30 years of international experience in
general management, strategy consulting, corporate
governance, direct investment, investment banking and
fund management across the telecommunications/media/
technology (TMT), consumer/healthcare, infrastructure/real
estates, energy/resources and financial services sectors.
Dr. Lam earlier served as a General Manager of
Hongkong Telecom, Vice President and Managing Partner
— Greater China of the international management
consulting firm A.T. Kearney, President & Chief Executive
Officer and Vice Chairman of the board of directors of
Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited (now renamed as
C.P. Lotus Corporation) of multinational conglomerate CP
Group, Vice Chairman and Chief Operating Officer of
Investment Banking Division of BOC International Holdings
(the international investment banking arm of the Bank of
China group), Executive Director of Singapore
Technologies Telemedia (a member of Temasek
Holdings), and Chairman — Hong Kong, Vietnam,
Cambodia, Laos, Myanmar and Thailand and Senior
Adviser — Asia of Macquarie Capital.

Dr. Lam holds a Bachelor of Science degree in sciences
and mathematics, a Master of Science in systems science
and a Master of Business Administration from the
University of Ottawa in Canada, a post-graduate diploma
in public administration from Carleton University in
Canada, a post-graduate diploma in English and Hong
Kong Law and a Bachelor of Laws (Hons) from
Manchester Metropolitan University in the United
Kingdom, a Master of Laws from the University of
Wolverhampton in the United Kingdom, a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws from the City University of Hong Kong,
a Certificate in Professional Accountancy from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong School of Continuing
and Professional Studies (CUSCS), a Master of Public
Administration and a Doctor of Philosophy from the
University of Hong Kong. A former member of the Hong
Kong Bar Association, Dr. Lam is a Solicitor of the High
Court of Hong Kong, an Honorary Fellow of Certified
Practising Accountants (CPA) Australia, a Fellow of
Certified Management Accountants (CMA) Australia, a
Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators, an
Accredited Mediator of the Centre for Effective Dispute
Resolution (CEDR), a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and an Honorary Fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Facility Management and the University of
Hong Kong School of Professional and Continuing
Education (HKU SPACE).

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA

Wﬁi ?ﬁ/ﬁ%%ﬁ/ﬁﬂ&mn HEmE
%WL ERER BHE &R/ BEREER
REZETEZEHTEER ﬁﬁwé‘ﬁﬁ%ﬁ“&ﬁ?ﬁ
ACHEBERE BRERTAESCEHEGABRES
0FKH -MNELLHATEEMALE  BR
EIBH AN TIAT. Kearney A R 2[R Bl 42 £ 35 & 18
é\]%%}vft?(i%l&’%ﬁﬁﬁ AR AEEEER b
BEE NEBIEHBRAR) B FITHE ﬁ&%
IR PREERE Hx(ﬂPIfEﬁ IZI

HEIRITHPDEFERT AT REFEE
N R EEEECAEHIE Jﬁ%@ﬂ)%ﬂﬁ
ZEE UREREBEAZES  BE RPE- - E
ek EEEEFEREOMEERER -

METHENERERERZ I MERHBEL
AGEREEI R TIHEEBE IS0 )JH%KJJDEI%
EAZEZ ARITHARE R - RS /TR
MABZEBRRBEERFIENERREAREESR
TN EEABEBERBEZEAZELISN -/
BHHTAB 225X FE BEFIXAREFTE
EEBIT(CUSCO)BEXGES  BAREZAH
THELTREEELIEL MBI AEESSE
& B 2 6D (AT K £ AD) - R M & 5 AD 2 E(CPA
Australia) 48 £ & F @E*mJHEﬁ BRI
(CMA Austrana)é FEE -

CEDRHU—JA:- ﬁ@g\ *
%%aﬁﬁ%@%@%glimgﬁﬁéﬁ
EBEEREEERE



Biographical Details of Directors Z £ § [F

Dr. Lam is an independent non-executive director of each
of CSI Properties Limited (Stock Code: 497), Glorious Sun
Enterprises Limited (Stock Code: 393), Vongroup Limited
(Stock Code: 318), Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited
(Stock Code: 391), Elife Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
223), Haitong Securities Company Limited (Stock Code:
6837 which is also listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange with Stock Code: 600837), Huarong Investment
Stock Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 2277), Hua Long
Jin Kong Company Limited (Stock code: 1682, formerly
known as Highlight China loT International Limited),
Kidsland International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
2122), Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
404), Mingfa Group (International) Company Limited (Stock
Code: 846), and Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
(Stock Code: 8148) and a non-executive director of each
of China LNG Group Limited (Stock Code: 931), China
Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited (Stock Code:
412), Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 188) and Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited (Stock
Code: 455), the shares of all of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange. He is an independent non-executive
director of each of China Real Estate Group Limited
(Forma Name: Asia-Pacific Strategic Investments Limited
(Stock Code: 5RA), Top Global Limited (Stock Code:
BHO), JCG Investment Holdings Ltd (Stock code: JCGI,
former Name: China Medical (International) Group Limited,
Stock code: 5IB) and non-executive director of Singapore
e-Development Limited, Stock Code: 40V), the shares of
all of which are listed on the Singapore Exchange.
Dr. Lam is also an independent director of Sunwah
International Limited (Stock Code: SWH), the shares of
which are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange; an
independent non-executive director of AustChina Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: AUH), the shares of which are listed
on the Australian Securities Exchange; and a non-
executive director of Adamas Finance Asia Limited (Stock
Code: ADAM), the shares of which are listed on the
London Stock Exchange. He is also an independent non-
executive director of TMC Life Sciences Berhad (Stock
Code: 0101), the share of which are listed on the Bursa
Malaysia.

Dr. Lam was a non-executive director of Roma Group
Limited (Stock code: 8072), and he was also an
independent non-executive director of Xi'an Haitiantian
Holdings Company Limited (Stock code: 8227), the
shares of all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange,
and an independent non-executive director of Vietnam
Equity Holding (Stock code: 3MS) whose shares are listed
on the Stuttgart Stock Exchange, and Rowsley Limited
(Stock code: A50) whose shares are listed on the
Singapore Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert, aged 62, holds a Bachelor
Degree in Commerce and is a practicing Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Chui was appointed as an
independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
May 2009. Mr. Chui is currently the Chairman of each of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of
the Board. Mr. Chui is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Chartered Association of Certified Accountants. Mr. Chui
is currently an independent non-executive director of Tse
Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited (Stock Code:
417), Wing Lee Property Investment Limited (Stock Code:
864), and Asia Cassava Resources Holding Limited (Stock
Code: 0841), the shares of these companies are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and F8 Enterprise
(Holdings) Group Limited (Stock Code: 8347), the shares
of which is listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. He was
an independent non-executive director of PPS
International (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 8201), a
company which shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, until he resigned in July 2018. He
retired as a non-executive director of GTI Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 3344), a company which shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, with
effect from 23 May 2017. He is also a director of a
number of private companies and associations.

Mr. Li Kit Chee, aged 64, has more than 30 years’
experience in auditing, accounting and secretarial
services. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor Degree of social
sciences (with honours) in The University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Li is also a fellow member of The Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants. Mr. Li is a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a managing director of Arthur Li,
Yau & Lee C.P.A. Limited. Mr. Li is a director of Cheong
Yip Secretary Limited, which is principally engaged in
corporate service related business. Mr. Li is currently an
independent non-executive director of Hong Kong
International Construction Investment Management Group
Co., Limited (Stock Code: 687), a company which shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Immediately prior to his appointment as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in June 2014,
Mr. Li was an independent non-executive director of First
Credit Finance Group Limited, a company which shares
are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
8215) until he resigned in May 2014. Mr. Li was an
independent non-executive director of Zhongcheng
International Holdings Group Limited (Stock Code: 859), a
company which shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, until he resigned in February 2018.
Mr. Li is currently a member of each of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Board.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT — ABOUT THE
REPORT

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) are pleased to
present its third Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) report (the “ESG Report”). This
Report summarizes the environmental and social
impacts, policies and initiatives of the Group during
the financial year of 2018 which began on
1 January 2018 and ended on 31 December 2018
to demonstrate the Group’s long-term commitment
in ensuring that the Group’s business is
economically, socially and environmentally
sustainable.

In preparing this ESG Report, the Group has
complied with the “Comply or Explain” provisions in
accordance with the Environment, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) as
set out in Appendix 20 to the Rules (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) and in accordance with the
practical circumstances of the Group.

The scope of the ESG Report covers the Group’s
travelling and entertainment business in Hong Kong
and the hotel and film shooting business in Foshan,
Guangdong province, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC).

The board of director of the Company (the “Board”)
acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the
integrity of the ESG Report and to the best of its
knowledge, this ESG Report addresses all material
issues and fairly presents the ESG performance of
the Group and its impact. The Board confirms that
it has reviewed and approved the ESG Report.

The Group’s ESG Approach

The Group’s ESG approach is to ensure that the
Group continues to create long-term value for its
stakeholders includes retaining the economic and
social advantages of its operations while taking the
necessary steps to protect and support the local
community, the natural, historic and cultural
heritage.
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The Group understands that environmental
conservation and community engagement is more
than a moral imperative, it also makes good
business sense. By upholding its commitment to
corporate social responsibility, the Group strives to
forge itself into an environmentally friendly enterprise
that cares about its employees’ development and
protects their rights and interests. The Group
adheres to the principle of equality and integrity for
its operation, and complies with business
regulations and ethic codes.

The Group is well aware of its impacts on the
environment as well as the society, and therefore it
insists on putting its ESG policies as set out in the
ESG Report into practice. By proactively upgrading
and optimizing its equipment, the Group
endeavours to meet the energy saving and emission
reduction targets. By strict implementation and
continued improvement of its employment policy,
the Group provides a safe and healthy working
environment and a fair development platform for its
employees. The Group believes that by offering an
outstanding service experience and creating long-
lasting memories for its guests, its travellers, its
audience, its artists and the film crew members, the
Group can achieve a sustainable development.

How we manage ESG

The Board is responsible for evaluating and
identifying the ESG risks of the Group and ensuring
that the Group sets up an appropriate and effective
ESG risk management and internal control system.

Therefore, the Group has established an ESG
executive committee to specify the responsibility of
implementing its ESG management and objectives.
The executive committee will drive and monitor the
initiatives taken in various aspects of the Group’s
ESG practices that are integrated with the Group’s
business operation.
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STAKEHOLDER
ENGAGEMENT

The Group actively communicates with its
stakeholders, establishes multiple channels of
communication to understand the topics they cared
about, and regularly reviews the effectiveness of
relevant actions taken to improve the
communication channels in order for the opinions of
the stakeholders to be reflected fully. The topics
concerned by different stakeholder groups in the
reporting period are listed in the table below.
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Stakeholder Engagement Method Topics Action
Flzz RS XiRwARX | 118
Shareholders Investor relations — Financial The Group provides information on
&% = communication performance strategies, policies, and performance
REEBE Mg KRR through its quarterly reports, interim
Shareholder meeting — Corporate reports, annual reports and
RERE Governance announcements.
HEER EEBBFERSE  FHRERFR
— Risk Management  REAB LR RIFER - BERFERNE
[ B & 3R B e
— Business transition
EEn
Employees Meeting and Staff — Career The Group provides diverse training
BT interview == programs, streamlines the promotion
SeMETE# — Health and Safety process, provides decent wages and
fREHZ 2 a safe and respectful workplace.
— Workplaces EEREZTEN - GEEREER
Condition BB REHUEELE 2NXESE
TERE B TSP ©
Tourists Business relationship/ — Travel Quality The Group provides quality travel
BE Feedback REEE package. The Group delivers what it
[EEARESINS — Price has promised to its guests and
R ensures its service satisfaction. All

Viewers/Audience

Box Office Ranking,
Feedback and
Comment

EZEHA RBEALM
2w

— Rich Content
EENAD

tour guides employed by the Group
are registered and well trained.
SERHEBENRTEEZ - KERE
FRMHEAGEN RS - I HERE SR
BREE - AEBERK A SR
BRBANREE -

The Group selects screenplay that
have a purpose to the society. The

— Quality Group invites and recruits well-
EE known directors and artists to act in
— Responsible Content its flms and dramas.
BEANAR E@L%‘x’ﬂi’*ﬁﬁ%m%m L]
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BiE #HERERHE

Stakeholder Engagement Method Topics Action
FlzEEE S XimBR & 18h
Government Notice — Travel and Hotel The Group works closely with the
BT ms Service municipal government to achieve
RAT R S E5 turning Foshan into a film culture
Responsible Content center.
BEANAR 5 [ BT U A R A R LU TR 4T S K
Tax AR L o
ORI AR
The Group is a member of Travel
Industry Council of Hong Kong. The
Group ensures its travel and hotel
businesses comply with Travel
Agents Ordinance of Hong Kong and
the Travel Act of the PRC.
TEEREBREXZENEE -
N B R AR & B B IR 17 40 AR S 3
BREACEBRTRIEE KO MR
AR HAFBIREE)
Suppliers Business relationship Fairness The Group ensures its suppliers
g EEIES 5 B provide the service up to the
Long-term standard it requires. The Group
Commitment keeps its suppliers regularly informed
ABIEHER and up to date on its plans so that
Trust they know where they fit in and how
Az they can help.
rEEBREENHERRETS
REBEBERNRERS - £EGEH
At ER R R R B AR 8 - LAEHE
BT pe R L EH B o
Artists Business relationship Protect the artist The Group ensures its artists’ rights
A EEIES rights and production are fully protected.
HEE AR SEBEREANENMEREEFR
Artist Privacy DIRFE o
2 AL
Community Meeting/Community Community The Group actively engages in the
2 Gathering Development local communities and work with
g%/ tRER e ERE them to promote community
Charity Event development.
BEEY EEBEBEE MRS E - IR

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group has commissioned a third-party
consultant to conduct an ESG materiality
assessment. Based on the requirements of “ESG
Reporting Guide” published by the Stock Exchange,
the Group has identified 15 ESG issues pursuant to
the Group’s actual business situations and industry
characteristics. The Group invites the stakeholders
to score the materiality of these 15 issues, and then
comprehensively considers the scores given by
stakeholders against the Group’s sustainable
development goals, afterwards determines the
ranking of materiality for each of the reported
issues and prepares the materiality matrix (see
picture 1 for details).
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© B % o Service Quality EREE -
5 Regulatory Change BS &R ~e | SETEEETEIE R Ethical Conduct i #8%E ||
6 Intellectual Property -® Responsible Content
SO BEEAT
g‘]’ Employee well-being ETH@K - e Good Governance RiziaE
% Retaining Talent BEANT o Anti Corruption RES e
*% Development and Training 3¥f@E1Z3)l-e e Environmental & Resources FRIEER &R
E"] o Energy and Carbon HEFETNBREER
=24 N -
; o--Waste FFZEY) e Community Investment 1 [E1% &
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Not Relevant A~ 1HEd

Crucial BB EE

HFI IR B BB 2 Importance to stakeholders

Picture 1 The Group’s ESG Materiality Matrix
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ENVIRONMENT 5. BRE
The Group is committed to reducing its energy K& Iiﬁl?‘] SR EEIRERE  RERE (DR

consumption, greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions,
water consumption and waste footprint. Through a
focused and coordinated effort, the Group has
made significant progress.

TR I KUENEYE D - BB E
EP%DT%% WE N AEBEEHEIE T
ERER-

The Group believes that what gets measured, gets AEBBEELCREL TRHETER-
managed. The Group has therefore joined the World A EBEB2RETHAFAES S
Wild Fund (“WWF”) Low Carbon Manufacturing (T WWF ) &9 {£ ik 2 %ﬁ§+ goRE—_ZFT—+
Program (“LCMP”), established energy and FHHEBEGET TRRMENREERZ -
emissions improvement goals based on the 2017 REEMBE - #J#’“ﬁ IEFREELHBR
baseline. The Group’s hotel, office and film studio VEBHEEZ SEHeETEZNAR . =
also have individual short-term goals which are T-NF SEFAEHEBRSELE £
reviewed and adjusted annually. In 2019, the Group MBS R AR R
plans to continue increasing its operational eco- AR EREBEE -

efficiency, developing continuous improvement plan
that considers science-based targets required to
curb GHG emissions.

The year 2018 marked the second year of the

—E-N\EREBRDEEHMNE _F o

Group’s journey to reduce its operational footprint. ThiRETERRENEKS - EEBE KD
It has also presented an opportunity for reflection. ERBNARESOEEET  RESEIEH

The Group attributes much of its progress to its
rigorous approach to data monitoring, with
accountability and ownership cascading to
individual properties.

The Group is committed to the high efficiency and
green development concept. The awareness of
environment protection is integrated in the
strategies and all the operation steps of the Group.

During the reporting period, no penalties had been
imposed upon the Group for violation of any

s EMEIREIAL -

SEBERSRNGEERED  BRERR
AN £ B B RS BLE 2 ) R B ER AR -

i&%,ﬁﬂm SRE B RE RIRBAR AR
BXEE R WAREEEP IEMRE

environmental laws and regulations. The Group did ﬁJ\iﬁﬁZﬁ HEBERFRERBORF -
not receive any complaints in relation to
environment protection raised by the customers or
any other person.
51 Emissions 51 R
As the Company is an investment holding ARAARRNREREERRER BN

company and its principal subsidiaries in Hong
Kong mainly participate in film production and
distribution, provision of management service

[}

BRATENEFERRERET R
#\%ﬁ/\%@ﬂ&i‘%&%ﬁi\ﬁﬁiﬁﬁfaé
AT EB AR FE]

o

77

to artistes and provision of travel related 7J< 15 ] 4 Hb 3% PR o % E’:‘H?/ﬁ?%)ﬁ 5
products, it does not have significant air ?‘x é % XREERBEEMEANE

emissions, discharge into water or land in
relation to its operations in Hong Kong. No
substantial hazardous waste was produced by
the Group during the reporting period.

In relation to the operation of National Arts
Resort Hotel (the “Hotel”) and Xigiao National
Arts Film Studio (the “Studio”) in the PRC, the
air emissions from our hotel boilers and
company vehicles, waste-water discharge,
GHG and waste are the major emissions of
the Group.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA
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The Hotel and the Studio have obtained the BE AR R E RS REERE
official approval of environmental impact KRBT ETM(RETE % HJ)
assessment (the “Environmental Impact XHHEREX SERNRRFZES
Assessment”) documents as required by the EXHERE F I ORE B E X8
legislation in the PRC. The Group’s WA ES -
Environmental Impact Assessment documents
and official approval covers all activities in the
Hotel and Studio.
The pollution prevention equipment and REETBXXHPIENITEN R
procedure cited in the Environment Impact HEMREFEEHAPEM T EERR
Assessment documents are inspected by the BMRE - £E/S n’f*@ﬁ A A &
local environmental protection authority in the EAEER? KE’] AREECEERM
PRC. The Group’s pollutant-discharge permit M5 E BT E’\J‘}’?%% o
is valid and effective and the Group has
declared the pollutants produced to the local
authority in a timely manner.
All of the Group’s transport vehicles bought ARAEEEEMEBN QA AER2
and used for company affairs have HRFEERAEBHEREE-
conformed to national emission standards.
The Hotel has implemented appropriate BEHEREERERRRET 7@
checks for air-pollutant leakage and has set EARE WRETHEZERRBED
up targets to improve air-emission reduction. B -BEERBENEEREET
The Hotel also has an appropriate emergency REBAVENZEZBERAHNETEER
plan for potential emergencies that may result JEZETEl - HAp ’E%Fﬁfi?‘iﬁﬂﬁﬁ_é
in negative environmental impact, which RIERRER - A RAERMBELEE
include procedures to handle identified non-
compliance, with applicable corrective and
preventive action.
During the reporting period, the Group had RWEARN AEBEBREETERT
strictly complied with the emission standard RUPERUREN B AR IBRENAA
of air pollutants and the relevant laws and EHR e EEMEREERIERTH
regulations on environmental protection. As a EERBEMRD -

result, the Group has reduced release of
harmful emission into the air.

2018
—E—N\FE

Intensity

(Consumption/

Headcount)

Fuel Type Amount BE

KRimEER BE GHE/AB)

Energy Consumed (MJ) 7.14 million MJ 13,972

BEIREREOKER) BEEKEE MJEKEE
NOx emission (kg)

BREWHER(RT) 154.3 kg2 fr 0.3 kg Fr
SOX emission (kg)

maltmBEm (2 T) 19.2 kg2 Fr 0.03 kg2 Fr

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited SRETILEAEFRAA 33
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5.1.2 GHG Emissions

The Group’s responses to the challenges
posed by climate change are based on the
Group’s ongoing efforts to reduce the GHG
emissions. For the year under review, with the
help of WWF’'s LCMP, the Group has figures
on the Scope 3 GHG emissions. Accurate
measurement based on GHG protocol gives
an accurate picture of its direct and indirect
contribution to GHG emissions. For the
Scope 3 GHG emission, the Group has
covered the following activities: business
travel, fresh water used, water discharge and
paper usage.

The consumption of electricity at the Hotel is
the primary source of the Group’s GHG
emission. The second primary source is the
consumption of natural gas for the boilers at
the Hotel.

During the reporting period, the Group’s GHG
emissions equated to a total of approximately
1,908 tonnes of CO, equivalent (tCO,e”) and
the detailed summary of the GHG emission is
shown as below:

GHG Emissions

iREREHR

A

&R

m

5.12

2017
—E—+F

Amount

#Hne

Scope 1 Direct GHG emission
BEEAREREHM(HEE)
Scope 2 Indirect GHG
emission

[ % 1008 = R B8 BE I (8 152)

490 tCOe

WAL E 2
2,480 tCO,e
WAt E 2

R

BERBHEM

EHRIEZCHUBNE HRER
THRVBEEREBEHERNE
CREBEFERN EHERAAARES
EREEFENEY T  £EEMAA

[#IS3 R = R PRt & - R
R B gk A E R B R B BE S
B 4t % AR 7N 55 B R F R BE Y
EEMEZER BRFZRAEZRE
e EE - RETUTES : BKIK
1T RKBER - BEKMARKREM »

I o A
Bt

BENREERLEEEZER B MY
TERR - BERBHERNE _M@EX
Z2 R BERIEORAREFR -

FEREHAN SEREEREHERE
FEE 41,9030 — & b fix - R E R
ERENFEBENT

2018

—E—N\EFE
Intensity
(Consumption/
Headcount)
EE
GHEE/ANE)
494 tCO,e 0.967 tCO,e
W_E{LHREE WM_-_SILREE
1,366 tCO,e 2.67 tCOe

WoH{LHEE WM_SF{tHEER

Scope 3 Other Indirect GHG Not Available 42 tCOe 0.08 tCO.e
emission KERME BM-EHILHKEE HW_FILHKEE
EvHEMREREBHER

(&38E3)

Total GHG Emission 2,970 t1CO.e 1,903 tCO.e 3.72 tCOe
MERBEHEREE ME_SEeirEse MISAKEE W-_SKEE
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5.1.3 Waste

Waste is generated by many activities in the
Group’s travel, hotels and entertainment
business, including food preparation, guest
waste, events waste and cleaning. The Group
pro-actively seeks ways to reduce waste
which goes to landfill or incineration. The
waste reduction and management system is
one of the most important environmental
protection procedures followed during the
operation of the Group’s hotel business. The
Group educates its employees annually about
the procedure which should be followed
regarding the waste produced, the separation
of each waste and recycling. The Group has
rolled-out food waste reduction training
through its hotel chefs. The Group’s program
resulted in reduction of food waste. The
remaining food wastes were used for farm
feed.

For the Studio, the Group has mapped out a
few waste categories, including film
equipment, glass, aluminium, metal, wood,
paper, costume, landscaping waste, batteries,
used appliances and printer toners. For each
of these waste streams, the Studio has
identified disposal methods based on local
available options. These methods include
recycling, reuse, rental, donation and
composting. Approaches vary across waste
streams with significant strides made thus far
to reduce paper and waste.

For the Group’s Hong Kong head office, the
Group has implemented various programs to
encourage employees to participate in waste
reduction management, including:

o Encourage double-sided printing and
reuse of waste papers;

o Purchase green and environmental
printing paper;

. Encourage to use electronic channels for
internal correspondence and
communication;

o Waste papers are collected by recycling
collectors; and

o Used printing supplies boxes and toners
are returned to printing supplies
companies for recycling and reuse.

Through the above mitigation measures, the
Group believes that it will change the
behaviour of the use of resources in its
workplaces and achieve the goal of waste
reduction in the coming years.
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514

5.2

:‘;

During the reporting period, the Group has
strictly complied with the Solid Waste
Pollution Prevention Law of the PRC, the
Urban City Space and Environmental
Sanitation Management Regulations and other
relevant laws and regulations on waste
handling in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Waste-water

The Group’s hotel waste-water is treated and
discharged in accordance with the local
Foshan municipal regulation “Wastewater
Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal
Sewers” (57KBE AW I T /KE/KEZ %), The
Group applies wastewater treatment
procedures including the activated sludge
process and the bio-flm process to its
sewage before discharge. Throughout the year
under review, the Group strictly complied with
the given standards and relevant laws and
regulations and the results are satisfactory.

Use of Resources

The Group strives to use resources effectively
and minimize the discharge of wastes. In the
ordinary course of business, the Group has
implemented various energy saving and
emission reduction measures. Apart from the
waste reduction actions mentioned above, the
other relevant examples are as follows:

Reduce

o Less print out for client communications
and corporate materials.

o Office supply purchase across
departments to avoid unnecessary
purchases and disposals.

. Installation of water filtration systems to
avoid use of bottled water.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA
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Reuse
o Donations of used items including

mattresses, linens and towels to the
communities, suppliers and business
partners.

o Composting and donating food and
landscaping waste for farm feed.

o Reuse of film shooting equipments.
. Reuse of film shooting costumes.
Recycle

o Waste stream segregation.

o Staff training and behavioural change.

o Engagement with local municipalities
and waste management partners.

o Local partnerships to recycle e-wastes,
metals, lamps and batteries.

5.2.1 Energy Consumption

The occupancy rate of the Hotel has risen
steadily over the last 2 years. Consequently,
the energy and water consumption have
increased slightly. Electricity consumption (see
the table below) has increased by 300,000
kWh in 2018 as compared to 2017.

The natural gas consumption has also
increased in 2018 as compared to 2017.
Similar to electricity consumption, the
increase is attributed to the rise in occupancy
numbers.

For the Group’s office, travel and film
shooting business, the Group strives to use
resources effectively by improving the
consuming efficiency of electricity but also
continuously reducing electricity consumption
through many measures including adopting
energy-saving lighting, equipment, conducting
technical renovation and introducing new
technology.

R >
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=

The Group has 13 small vehicles and 4
medium vehicles in Hong Kong and the PRC
used in its daily business operation. The
vehicles are the third largest contributor to our
emissions profile. During the reporting period,
the vehicles consumed approximately 31,995
litres of petrol and 6,498 litres of diesel.

As the fuel price was high and continued
volatility is predicted, the Group has
implemented a fuel-efficient action plan to
trim petrol use. The plan encourages drivers
to plan the journey before driving, adopt a
gentle style of acceleration, and conduct
regular servicing of vehicles including monthly
tyres check. Tyres in poor condition will raise
fuel consumption. Since the implementation of
this plan, the Group had managed to lower
the Group’s petrol consumption accordingly.

The non-renewable energy
RO BAERR
. Natural Gas
{ KRR
»
Petrol
Wi
— Diesel
L4 m

Electricity Purchased BEWME H

Electricity

==
B3,

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA

Amount

HER

186,435

31,995 litres A FF

6,498 litres & F+

4,900,000 kWh F K,

P
T
=
m
i)

HE

AEBREB LT HE18EH/ NI TE
NAgmRAE - AR ME A EER
BEEZE - ZEREABMPERER
MEBE=ZAKR - RNBREHM - ZE AR
B )H #£31,995F )5 )M 126,498 F 520/ ©

HROHBEESREBMSHELY K
SECEREMITIE - UHERS
L8 o %At BI5 B R MR B AT
HENLFITAE ~ 1T BL I Z 00 E N E BB
LHERMETRE BRESAETHR
BE - ERAMRTENHI AT IRE T
HERE - ARNEBIE S AEH
EHEERROEHE -

Intensity (Consumption/
Headcount)
EECGHE AR

cubic meter 364.84 cubic meter

vy SH

62.61 litres & F+

12.71 litres 2 F+

9,589 kWh T &
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52.2 Water 522 Mk
Water is a serious issue to the Group’s 7k%%l¥ﬁ%¢‘ M—EEZEERE- 2
business. The availability of clean and % //% —M’if:rﬁ’wkﬁﬁ/\ﬁ 12 fit &Y
accessible water is essential to the services it REEREEZR  WEBLEMEM
provides and critical to the health and [ &Y @K*D KESHNODEZAEE - 1F
economic vitality of the communities where BHAEZEN—H9 SEBEFEM
the Group operates. As part of the operations %‘Bﬁ AREEBERAZRE XM A
of the Hotel, there are bathroom in every 7J<zEt UEABR TR
room and swimming pool in the premises. *-‘E‘B’ﬁ cHEEMIKEEH N ARG X
Therefore, water forms an integral part of FXKARBRAKSEMAIEMEEEE
every guest experience. Proper water oM EHH SEESEEMNK
management is essential to ensure that water TRELIE -
is used efficiently and also eliminates the
possibility of water pollution. The Group
received consistent water supply during the
reporting period.
To reduce its water footprint, the Group BIRIPEBHNKAZ SEEERET
executes a series of water conservation —RIEKKLEE - BIERERE K
strategies including investing in water efficiency iy ~ {23 5 12 B T2 B LA KB B 7
technologies, stimulating process improvements AR ER T'J B-SEMNBEELEE -
and reusing and recycling water. The Group’s wxRE - fEE - Vﬁﬁ MR ARG EH
Hotel is actively identifying and implementing 2 Fﬁ%&%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ KB F AT AN
water efficiency technologies and process BIEBEE UHORAK - EEER
improvements to conserve water, in areas like /&ﬂiliﬂz Eﬁ(fﬁf’zﬁg* BESA 5FD|3 i
kitchens, laundry areas, gardens, toilet and MERE FARTEEHKSH UK
cooling systems. The Group also continues to DRKE -
retrofit motion sensors and low flow fixtures in
common areas, install dual flush toilet to reduce
water consumption.
Behavioural change among the employees is ETIMTANELEZTBEEE - —F
also critical. In 2018, the Group resort hotel —NF - SEB/ESE S T HN58 &/
identified behavioural changes among the BVAT 73 KB IR R BOR A K o A
employees and new technologies to reduce BEHRAXKE SEREKGENZ
water consumption in the swimming pool and /IL\;E'Ei O£ & A7 LA [ W A0 7 R A A oK
kitchens. Central to the Group’s water EFRBRAEALKEARGIR
conservation plan is an increase in the LAl FRRFRFRE-
amount of water that the Group can recycle
and reuse, using alternative methods to
provide cooling to the chillers system whilst
maintaining high system efficiency.
In 2018, the Group’s absolute water ZE-N\F  EEMNBERKENE
consumption including hotel swimming pools BERKE BB HBIBME LZRHAE
and guestrooms water usage, Hong Kong K 2 A132,765M8 @t | F R
head office, and Foshan film shooting base, 20%FKE
was 132,765 tonnes, a 29% decrease
compared to the prior year.
2017 2018
e~ F —E-A0\%E
Intensity % [E Intensity % &

Water Amount (Tonnes M/ Amount (Tonnes M/

7K JHiEE  Employee £ 8) iH$EE Employee &)

Water Consumed 187,000 383 132,765 259

RXE Tonneslig Tonnes M Tonnes K Tonnes M
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52.8 Packaging Materials

Due to the nature of the business, the Group
does not have any material use of packaging
materials. Therefore, the Group considered
the number of packaging materials used
insignificant.

5.2.4 Paper Usage

5.3

Apart from printing paper for our office use,
the Hotel also provides toilet paper for guest
use. The paper usage of the Group was
approximately 2,100 kg during the reporting
period.

Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is working on various sustainable
development activities to ensure the
resources are used effectively and responsibly
while providing its service. It is an important
responsibility for the Group to bring less
impact to the environment. The Group is
always considerate to the sustainable
development and it will keep focusing on
community environmental conservation.

The Group has also initiated to promote tree
planting activities around the studio, which
helps to build an eco-friendly working
environment and safeguard the ecosystems of
local communities.

Committed to mitigating the impact of its
business on the environmental and other
natural resources, the Group did not cause
any serious pollution or damage to its
surrounding environment during the reporting
period, including air, land, water and
ecological system. Policies and measures on

the use of resources and emissions are
already set out in details in the above
sections.

During the reporting period, the Group is not
aware of any material non-compliance relating
to use of resources and the Group had
complied with all relevant environmental rules
and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC.

6. EMPLOYMENT

6.1

Labour Practices

The Group has always considered talents as
its most valuable resource and asset. The
Group respects and protects the statutory
rights and interests of employees, provide a
fair career development platform, cares about
its employees’ physical and mental health,
and join hands with employees to realize
sustainable development.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA
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The Group has developed sound employment
policies covering the requirements and
standards of recruitment, promotion,
remuneration, resignation, treatment and so
on, and regulates each requirement and
standard to ensure the efficient management
of human resources.

The human resource department of the Group
develops recruitment plans in accordance
with the recruitment needs of various
departments, and continuously introduce
talents to join the Group through social
recruitment, campus recruitment, internal
referral and other channels. The human
resource department of the Group strictly
implements the recruitment evaluation
program, adheres to the selection principle of
fairness and selection of high calibre, and
provides equal job opportunities in
accordance with their competence and
abilities. The Group enters into employment
contracts with the employees in accordance
with the requirements of the Labour Law,
covering matters such as wages, benefits
working hours, rest periods, safety and
sanitary conditions in the workplace, and
grounds for termination.

The Group is committed to implementing the
remuneration distribution principals based on
performance, efficiency and fairness. On top
of labor basic salary, the Group may pay
performance bonuses in accordance with
employees’ performance and the Group’s
business performance. In order to maintain a
competitive remuneration package, the Group
carries out evaluation and adjustment on
remuneration every year with reference to the
average wage, the consumption level and the
industry rate of the relevant city, so as to
attract and retain talents.

The Group adheres to the principles of
fairness in the provision of employment
opportunities, compensation, training,
performance evaluation and promotion without
any forms of discrimination such as gender,
age, ethnicity, religion and culture. The Group
is committed to creating a fair and
harmonious working environment.

During the reporting period, the Group has
not discovered any material non-compliance
or any violation of employment and labour
related regulations.
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6.1.1

6.1.2
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Employee Profile 6.1.1 BT

The Group commitment is to support the local AEBHNEAFZEBBEAEHWE T XK
community by hiring local employees. As at TR E AR o B £2018F 12731
31 December 2018, the Group employed a A £SBHEERIIBEI -SEBARZ
total of 511 employees. The vast majority of HE THRAM A o 72 IR # FH /5 17
the Group’s employees are local. It is ¥ ERAEMEILHEHEZ -ER—
especially important in the travel and FAEmgkeFrENEET  AEEIW
hospitality industry to hire local employees. As RERBETENA-BRBETER &
an employer in support of equal opportunity, EEBBYHILMN  h52%,M B
the Group efforts are leaning towards hiring Al T4% - 165T748% o

the most talented people. As per the below
table, more than half of the Group’s
employees are females and they account for
52%, whereas males account for 4% less, at

48%.
Total
dst
Total Employees BTEY 511
By Gender Rl
Total Male Employees FET 245
Total Female Employees Z8T 266
Below 25 years old 257, 117
25-34 years old 25-345% .2 [ 184
35-44 years old 35-445% 2 [ 103
45-54 years old 45-54% 2 [ 88
Above 55 years old 5555 BA b 19
By Employment Mode BREREX
Full time 20 510
Part-time SR 1
By Level =45l
Management B 24
Non-management FEE 487
By Location B A
PRC F 489
Hong Kong B 22
Employee Turnover Rate 6183 ETFEXR
Employee turnover rates can vary widely TRTEMEIFBEREZRRK - &£
across different sectors of business. The WEFTMEAE SENEIEEXRAR
Group’s employee turnover rate during the 54.79% -

reporting period is 54.79%.

The reason for the high turn-over rate is EEERERMRER THETE
because in hospitality industry, the rate is BETEEXERaN TEZRAZEA
normally higher due to the requirement to RS AL - 5 —EBRAZ
work shifts after probation. Another reason is BIEOMBEBRBILTAROLRE-
because the location of the Hotel is far away I EEFEEEEN OSSR —ELT
from the downtown of Foshan city. Hence, MESHEIFR UREEZEX.
the Group plans to find a good dormitory Wl EZH AT -

near the Hotel for employees’ accommodation
to improve the turnover rate and attract more
local labour.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited BRETILERERAT
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The Group is investing more time and money SELEATSHRAMESE 6 E5

to develop training programs to help in JstE  EPBEETL - TRERT

retaining employees. Table below shows the BRI - FEAM IR R E 5 7

Group’s employee turnover rate by gender, MEBETEREK-

age group and geographical region.

No. of employees
EIHE
Employee Turnover Rate BIBEX 54.79%
Employee Turnover Rate by Gender BEHESHETIESEE
Male Employee Turnover Rate BETITEHEXR 44.64%
Female Employee Turnover Rate LETER X 55.36%
Employee Turnover Rate by Age Group {REHRAFESHETIEEE
Below 25 years old /NR255R 22.90%
25-34 years old 25-345% 2 & 36.01%
35-44 years old 35-44%% 2 A 20.16%
45-54 years old 45-54%% 2 A 17.22%
Above 55 years old 555 A £ 3.72%
Employee Turnover Rate by Location BHWEUBESNESTIESXE
REARLM 98%
Hong Kong ; 2%

Health and Safety 6.2 RBEHERZ2

Health and safety in the workplace is part of BERET>ZEBREBE TR —

our duty of care for employees. As a MR- ER—_EAEIMNEE AE

responsible employer, the Group is committed BHEOBERMD TEREARESIN
to reducing accidents, illness, and risks in the KAEER  REE TH@EE KM
working area as far as possible, promoting the WERFEMBTRAE - EEEIRN

health of its employees, and thus also reducing =B F 2R - AR KR E # R A B

the absence rate and employee turnover rate. XEEUALBREMNLT2RAR :

The Group focuses on three major areas to

minimise occupational hazards and health and

safety risks:

S (] N i /;

1. Fire Safety Inspection — testing and EM%E%??%R}@%%EF ﬁ;ﬁj
maintenance of all fire safety related iﬁ%ﬂ?;;% fH ﬁi 3 ﬂfjff;?_ﬁ /Fﬂ%
installations in the Group’s film shooting ”Hf\]én o fiﬁ%’lﬁﬁiﬁ 5 e
base, hotel and workplace. Fire drills = I R LIRTT/R S
exercise for the Group’s employees
annually.

(=] =]

2. Occupational Health & Safety — 2. B%%%%%ﬁ};%}fé ?jg
Health and safety classes in the Fﬁ;' el o=
workplace, film shooting base, and the RN E
Group’s artist performance venue.

o] o NE=S == By 1)

3.  Security — Security of guests, the 3 jﬁﬁ% = ﬂ%}%; E’Jﬁz?/\A = R
artists, film crew and property. =R +

5205 3 ANH SR 151 DR RS o

The guests of the Group spend a %ﬁ%g%gggg@ggggy

considerable amount of time in the Studio Eain i;tﬁ#ﬁg ot 1/\71%?@ g

and the Hotel. They trust the Group to S 1A P égﬁﬁﬁ% i&f@ﬁ =g

provide an environment that is not only Bl AP 20 F g

; ; METRELZENIEREHLEHE
comfortable and aesthetically beautiful, but T .HN BESEReETEY -

also safe during their visit. It is also critical fr N Sl ’;y\ o

, : X BRGSO EHR FEBEZERBIE
that the Group’s employees are provided with RS 8 & T B % 20 B 2 2 AN

a safe working environment. Hence, the Hotel 2 ’;"Ii s 8 %jﬂﬁk A, ﬁﬁ %g Ir% T ﬁ;%;ﬁ%_

is audited annually to monitor its compliance B 78 2% = {1 ) S 1 o

Annual Report 2018
ZE-\EH

with relevant safety guidelines. The annual
audit process ensures that the management
teams of the Hotel and the Studio focus on
health and safety issues and are prepared to
manage crisis and business interruptions.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETILEMERAA
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6.3

For the Group’s travel, film production and
artiste management business, the Group
ensures all employees, artists, crew members
and guests are given sufficient information
about safety. As the Group’s businesses are
mainly project or event based, before they get
started, they will be insured. As each project
or event carries different risks, the types of
insurance needed and the level of premium
will vary. The Group will insure all its
employees, artists, guests against the risks of
injury, accident, sickness, and damage to
equipment.

During the reporting period, the Group
complied with the Work Safety Law and Fire
Prevention Law of the PRC and the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of
Hong Kong. The Group has achieved zero
work related fatalities and the lost days due
to work injury is 57 days during the reporting
period. The Group did not discover any
material non-compliance of occupational
health and safety related laws and regulations
during the reporting period.

Development and Training

The Group cares about the development of its
employees and expects to promote its
business growth by unleashing the
development potential of their talents. The
internal training policies of the Group has
been formulated with an aim to improve the
staff’'s personal skills and bring out their best
value for the development of the Group.

The human resources department of the
Group provides the new recruits with a unified
induction training covering its corporate
culture and development direction, while the
relevant departments provide them with
trainings required for their respective
positions. The Group also organizes various
types of trainings for all staff throughout the
year to improve the interaction between
employees from different departments.
Regular trainings in sales skills, market
information and hospitality skills are provided
to frontline personnel to assist them to deliver
quality services to customers and motivate
them to work aggressively towards the annual
sales target. The Group also provides training
allowance for non-frontline staff to encourage
them to participate in job-related external
trainings so as to enhance their own value
and working skKills.

Every newly appointed director of the
Company will be given a set of induction
materials to ensure that he/she will have an
appropriate understanding of the Group’s
business and the directors’ duties (in
accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and
the relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements). In addition, the Company
encourages all directors of the Company to
participate in continuous professional
development courses and seminars to
develop and update their knowledge and
skills.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA
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6.4

6.5

1:2

=

During the reporting period, for the Group’s
hotel business, the Group’s employees have
an average of 18 training hours annually and
100% of the employees undertook the
training. For the head office and the Studio,
its employees have an average of 3 training
hours annually and 100% of the employees
(including senior-level employees) undertook
the training. The training plan includes the
skills required for upcoming tasks and
company-wide management training

Labour Standards

The Group strictly abides by the relevant
employment and labour laws and regulations
and has never employed any child labour
under the age of 16 or forced labour. It has
formulated clear policies to prevent
compulsory labour and employment of child
labour, making sure that its employees enjoy
their fundamental rights related to labour and
has insisted on monitoring the recruitment
process frequently to prevent the occurrence
of illegal conduct. The Group’s code of
conduct and employment contract sets out
the Group’s general approach regarding the
labour standards. In addition to the Group’s
code of conduct, the Group’s human
resources policy also covers the labour
standard. The policy provides the framework
of rules applicable to all human resources
activities within the Group’s operations.
During the reporting period, the Group did not
discover any material non-compliance of
labour rights and labour related laws and
regulations.

Supply Chain Management

The Group’s supplier code of conduct (the
“Supplier Code of Conduct”) provides a
framework for how the Group manages its
relationship with suppliers and contractors.
Critical areas include product quality,
warranty, corruption and compliance with
local laws and regulation. The Group is
currently strengthening this approach through
a dedicated program which will improve our
supplier management. The Supplier Code of
Conduct sets out the procurement policies,
processes, selection, and the minimum
standards. The Group expects its suppliers to
meet the standards prescribed in the Supplier
Code of Conduct and are working with them
to achieve this.

For the Group’s hotel and travel business, the
Group implements stringent supplier
admission reviews to overcome any potential
challenges along the supply chain. The Hotel
prioritises suppliers that are recommended by
peers, have third-party certification and are of
good reputation. The Group has established a
qualified suppliers’ list in which the
performance of the suppliers are evaluated.
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6.6

The Group has strict requirements for food
safety. Therefore, it is especially important for
it to make sure that all of the food suppliers
meet the food safety standard. Suppliers are
required to have the relevant food safety
system in place such as ISO 22000, HACCP
certificate. The Group has developed a
supplier performance rating system which
covers quality of product, price, packaging,
and delivery time. Continuous poor
performance will lead to termination of
contract.

Product and Service Responsibility

In delivering the Group’s travel and hospitality
services it is very important to meet its
guests’ and travellers’ expectations in order to
ensure continuous improvement and growth
of its business. In a highly competitive
tourism market, understanding its guests’ and
travellers’ needs and expectations is
imperative for sustainable growth.

The Group’s actions and commitments in

order to satisfy its guests and other

stakeholders include:

o Commitment to ensure its product
quality.

. Commitment to ensure its product
safety.

o Commitment to satisfy its customers’
needs, requirements and expectations.

° Commitment to satisfy its tour operator
partners.

o Managing service quality by following
international standards.

o Maintaining open communications with
its employees, customers and
suppliers.

o Identifying, evaluating and monitoring all

food safety risks from production to
delivery through the implementation of
food quality standards in all the resorts
and hotels.

In addition, the Group’s employees are well
trained and the Group’s equipment for
managing the health and safety of its guests
and travellers is comprehensive. Each of the
Group’s business units is committed to
continuous improvement and satisfaction of
the Group’s guests are assessed and ratings
thereby are used to identify specific areas for
further improvement.

The Group is devoted to putting its guests’
and travellers’ preferences and choices as its
first priority. Refunds of travel packages is
possible, subject to company policies. The
Group also values the feedback from its
guests and travellers as they act as catalyst
for advancement in its services. Guests and
travellers can give their comments and
reviews on the Group through different
channels such as through a designated phone
call where they will all be directed to and
handled by the Group’s dedicated customer
service team.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA
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6.7.

6.8

During the reporting period, the Group
complied with Trade Descriptions Ordinance
of Hong Kong, Food Hygiene Law of the PRC
and the relevant laws and regulations relating
to health and safety, advertising, labeling and
privacy matters relating to the Group’s
services. The Group continues to review and
enhance its communications to ensure that
the Group provides its guests and travellers
with the latest information. The Group takes
seriously its commitment to keep its guests
and travellers informed about the services it
offers. The Group avoids providing its guests
and travellers any false or misleading service
information especially on the tour package.
The Group’s employees are required to
maintain transparency in communication and
marketing.

Protection of Customer Privacy

The Group attaches great importance to
customer information security, to maintain a
sound corporate reputation and establish a
cooperative and trusted business relationship
with customers. The Group is committed to
improving information confidentiality
management system, and limiting employees’
access to confidential information of
customers through the implementation of a
number of information security measures and
strict authority management in order to
guarantee that the information is for
authorized use only.

The Group has educated its employees the
following:

o Preserving the guests’ trust by safe-
guarding and handling their information
in a private and confidential manner.

o The importance of guest privacy.

o Exchanging confidential information is
prohibited.

During the reporting period, the Group
complied with Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance of Hong Kong and the relevant
laws and regulations of the PRC. The Group
did not discover any circumstances of
consumers’ personal data being stolen,
altered, damaged or leaked.

Anti-Corruption

The Group maintains and effectively
implements a comprehensive system of
internal control and stringent policies for anti-
corruption, and is committed to preventing
and monitoring any malpractices or unethical
practice.

The Group has strictly complied with ethical
requirements and there was no occurrence of
corruption, bribery, fraud and money
laundering throughout the reporting period.
The Group will adhere to its corporate ethics
and uphold its reputation to prevent
corruption.
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The Group anti-corruption awareness training
for employees ranges from on-boarding and
yearly reminder programs. The purpose of the
program is to help all employees understand
the Group’s values and the policy. Integrity is
vital part of the Group’s business. The
Group’s management is committed to sending
a clear and consistent message to all
employees and business partners that
corruption and bribery are unacceptable.

Employees can report to the management of
the Group with respect to any non-
compliance such as receiving bribes, abuse of
power by mail, electronic mail or phone. All
business units have the responsibility to
conduct regular risk assessment of their anti-
corruption procedures and implement
remedial measures to mitigate risks.

During the reporting period, the Group had
complied with Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance of Hong Kong and the other
relevant laws and regulations of relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

7. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

As a responsible corporates citizen, the Group uses

its expertise and

resources to support the

communities in which it operated in various ways.
The Group continues to focus on the following
areas for community investment:

Provide helping hands for people in need;

Foster a healthy and green living environment
in the community;

Support local charitable events; and

Provide training opportunities for
people.

young

The Group has also collaborated with local charities
to support various charitable activities. During the

reporting period,

the Group donated to the

following organisations:

1.

2.

Foshan Nanhai District Welfare Centre
Foshan City Welfare Centre
Chancheng Special Education Centre

Foshan Hearing
Rehabilitation Centre

Impairment Linguistic

Foshan Xigiao Kang Yuan Rehabilitation
Centre
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERHE

Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Board is pleased to present this corporate governance
report for the year ended 31 December 2018. This report
highlights the key corporate governance practices of the
Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

Throughout the year of 2018, the Company has adopted
and complied with all code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”, each a “Code Provision”), where appropriate
as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules (the
“Corporate Governance Code”) with an aim of maximizing
the shareholders’ interest and enhancing the
stakeholders’ transparency and accountability.

The Company is committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance with sound and
reasonable corporate governance practices and
procedures during the year ended 31 December 2018,
including below practices:

Board Meetings

o The Company held four regular Board meetings and
six general Board meetings during the year under
review.

Re-election of non-executive directors

o Non-executive Directors were appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. One Non-
executive Director and two Independent Non-
executive Directors were re-elected at the annual
general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) held
in June 2018.
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Establish a nomination committee

The Company has established a nomination
Committee (the “Nomination Committee”) with
specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with its authority and duties. During the year
under review, Mr. Sin Kwok Lam and Mr. Chan Tin
Lup Trevor ceased to be a member of the
Nomination Committee on 4 May 2018 and 1 July
2018 respectively. Mr. Chow Kai Weng was
appointed as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee in place of Mr. Sin Kwok Lam on 4 May
2018. Subsequently, Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick
resigned as an independent Non-executive Director
and ceased to be a member of Nomination
Committee with effect from 1 January 2019. At as
the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises one independent Non-executive Director
and one Executive Director, and is chaired by the
Chairman of the Board.

Present annual and interim reports

The Group presented its unaudited interim report and
audited annual report of the financial year 2018. In
addition, the Group also presented its unaudited
operational information for the first and third
quarters of the financial year 2018.

Risk management and internal control system review

The Group adopted a systematic and sustainable risk
management and internal control system during the
year under review. The Board reviews and
considers the nature and extent of the significant
risk in its business and the external environment,
and the scope and quality of the management’s
ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal
control system annually.

The other key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Group are also outlined in this corporate
governance report.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices within the Group and
devotes considerable efforts to identify and formalize best
practices. We believe that sound and effective corporate
practices are fundamental to the smooth, effective and
transparent operation of a company and its ability to
attract investment, protect the rights of its shareholders
and stakeholders, and enhance shareholder value.

It is the Group’s mission to create and preserve the
cultural heritage, develop film and media industry by
telling purposeful story and cultivating entertainment and
travel community that is vibrant and relevant to
audiences.

The Group’s Values

The Group has five core values, which are:
— Respect

— Innovation

— Teamwork

— Communication

— Challenge

The values express what the Group stands for and are
core to its business. As a values-led-organization, the
Group’s values shape its people’s decision and actions.
They guide how the Group’s employees work together.

The Group corporate governance framework plays an
integral role in supporting the business and helping the
Group to deliver its strategy. It provides the structure
upon which the Group’s strategies and business
objectives are set and the performance is monitored. It
includes a clear framework for decision making and
accountability across the Group’s business and provides
guidance on the standards of behavior the Group expects
of its management and employees. The Group is
committed to excellence in corporate governance,
transparency and accountability. This is essential for the
long term performance and sustainability of the Group,
and to protect and enhance the interests of the Group’s
shareholders and other stakeholders.

The Group regularly reviews its corporate governance
arrangements, to reflect developments in market practice,
expectations and regulation as appropriate.

This section provides an overview of some of the
important aspects of the Group’s corporate governance
framework.
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Set out below is the current corporate governance TESHIASEBRITHNCEEREMRE

framework of the Group.

Shareholders

IR

Remuneration Audit
Committee Committee
iEE® BZEZE®

Nomination
Committee

REZE®

Internal Audit &

Company External

Secretary vl Auditor
RAME R RER NS ERED

EEAE

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS
The Company is committed to maintaining a high AARBNBRTEREGENCEETRTHR KR

standard of corporate governance with sound and FREGKENGEER BEEAREFRZAKN
reasonable corporate governance practices and Mz ANESYHEREIrE 2 ERERMEE -

ERETEERS

ARBCHRMEBEFTETELFRHZITIRTA

a2

procedures with an aim of maximizing interests as well as
to enhancing the transparency and accountability to the
stakeholders. The Company had adopted a code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions on
terms no less exacting than the required standard of
dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company had also made specific
enquiry of all Directors, and the Directors have confirmed
they have complied with the required standard of dealings
and its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has a balanced composition of Executive and
Non-executive Directors which represents a mixture of
experts specializing in management, law, accounts and
finance. All Directors possess comprehensive
qualifications and experience as well as exposure to
various different industries which are crucial to the growth
of the Group.

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, formulating and overseeing the Group’s business
strategies and monitoring the financial performance, risk
management and internal control of the Group’s business
and operations.

To oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs, the
Board has established three Board committees (the
“Board Committees”), namely the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the Nomination
Committee. The Board has delegated to each of the
Board Committees responsibility for maintaining an
appropriate financial reporting, risk management and
internal control system, reviewing its directors’
remuneration policy and reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and accountable to Board. The
details of each Board Committees are set out in the
section headed “Board Committees” from page 60 to
page 66 of this annual report.

The Board has delegated to the management the
responsibility for () the day-to-day management of the
Group’s businesses; (i) implementation of the strategies
approved by the Board; and (iii) providing all such
information to the Board as is necessary to enable the
Board to monitor the performance of the management.
The Board also gives clear directions to the management
team as to their powers of management, and
circumstances in which the management team should
report back. The management would report back to the
Board and obtain Board approval before making certain
decisions.

Annual Report 2018
ZE-\FH

EFY

ARBEEFEARTRFRTESEIMTE &
FEABEE AR SHARERMBITEZERE
M- 2 BEFABYUAREXBEAERERER
ZHEABREER LBPRZMEITE-

BE

EZgRAAKENERBRE HEREBAE
BOEBERBEUAREEAKREXBEREEZHH
R EREERABERE -

BEBALEBEFNNBFEET I M EEEEKIL=
HEELZEG([EELEE])  IEZZEG([F
“EEg]) FMHZEe(FMEZEE]) RIES
FEEe -EECCERRESLECATAFTEE
FHEHRE RBREEMAPELZRS BRIHE
EHMBELMBRATETSMNER  ASBRAR R
HEECASE - FHSESZETNFRBIRE
FIHRFECOECENEELZE ST —F °

EFECZREREBRANAKSEEHF 2AEE
B ()RFERSRBIRE  Mi)REFSREM
ERERERAMTN BN -EEET5
BEEERcERRENGENREEEERBEERS
ZERAEREHBHIER EEERAESTSE
BRWERSEFGH AR T AT EIRTE -

/

my

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETILEMERAA

a3



o4

Annual Report 2018
ZE-N\EH

Corporate Governance Report 4 % & # &

All Directors, including the Independent Non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board to ensure its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the
information of the Company as well as the services and
advice from the company secretary and the management
of the Company. The Directors may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for
discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of
other offices held by them and the Board regularly
reviews the contribution required from each Director to
perform his responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves its authority for making decision on all
major matters relating to policy matters, strategies and
budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing
decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are
delegated to the management.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl ERZXtE@MERLE

EREF(BERBUFATES) RESERHEE
ZMBENEBLR MBLEXER EERE
AR K B R A o

PREFV2H  LEFWIRESEARRNMEER
ARRBMERABEEENORE RZE - &
ERAT BEFERETERENARANBREEA
BRIRBUEXRER  BRBARAEE

o

EXBAARAIKRBEEETHEMBBAFS
EEgTHRNREZRITHEHYARANEEH
FMEHER -

EEERELHMEAEBREE FREEE N
BEGINERER ERXS (LEEAES LT
aEmRORXS)  HMBER BFRERAAAH
MWERLEETEFBNTIEZEZHNREE - 1T
EZENRE HERBAALRTAMNAFTLER
EEMETNZKEEERSR -



Corporate Governance Report 4 % & # &

Board Composition

The details of the Executive Directors, the Non-executive
Directors and the Independent Non-executive Directors,
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018 and as at
the date of this annual report are set out below:

EEEHEN
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Name of Directors

EEia

Date of first appointment
to the Board
BEREZEEEEEMNEY

Date of last re-election as
Director

RE-RERREZHEH

Executive Directors
HITEZE

Mr. Chow Kai Weng
EREEE

Mr. Cheng Wang Chun
LGNy e

Mr. Ho Leung Ting
MRELE

Ms. Law Po Yee
BERLL

Ms. Sin Ho Yee
ERfr LT

Non-executive Directors
FHiTEE

Dr. Lam Lee G.
MEEEL

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam
B &

Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim
FHSEE

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUFHTEE

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert
HCEE

Mr. Li Kit Chee

FROKE

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick

BREYR

Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor

BRILEE

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 25 March 2011

(FERITHAEZ) —E——4ZA-+73A
(Appointed as Chairman on 4 May 2018 and

appointed as Chief Executive Officer on

13 June 2018)

(R-BE-NERABAZEFRFER
RZF-NENA+=ZHAZFBTELER)

(Appointed on 4 May 2018) 4 May 2018
(R=F-\FHANAEZ) —Z-\$RAMmA
(Appointed on 15 November 2018) 15 November 2018
(RZF-NNE+—FA1THAEZF) —Z-\Et+—-A+xH

(Resigned as Chief Executive Officer on

13 June 2018 and resigned as Vice
Chairperson and Executive Director on

15 November 2018)
(R=ZF-NEXNAT=HEETHERR
RZE-)\F+—ATHABRFEFERH
TEZE)

(Resigned on 15 November 2018)
(RZB-NE+—HATHLAFE)

5 August 2010
—Z-Z5/\ARH

25 March 2011
—Z——%F=ZA=+3H

(Chairman)

(/)

(Resigned on 4 May 2018)
(R=F—-/\FRAMAFHE)
(Resigned on & January 2018)
(R=ZE-NFE-FHEAFHE)

(Resigned on 1 January 2019)
(R=ZB-NFE—-F—AFH)
(Resigned on 1 July 2018)

(R=ZF—\F+H—HEFHF)

30 June 2017
ZE—tFRA=TH

31 May 2010
—E-TFRA=+-H

13 May 2009
“EEAERAT=A

13 May 2009
“ETAFRATEH
1 June 2014
—Z-WERA—H
3 February 2010
—T-TFZA=AH
13 May 2009
“ETAFRATEH

29 June 2017
ZT—+5XAZThA

28 June 2018
“E-NFRAZTNR

28 June 2018
“E-N\FRAZTNA

29 June 2017
ZT—+5XAZThA

28 June 2018
ZE-N\FRAZTNA

29 June 2015
ZE-RFXAZTAA

29 June 2017
ZT—+t5XAZThA

28 June 2018
—E-NFXA=1+/\AH
28 June 2018
“E-NFRAZTNR
24 June 2016
—E-REXAZ+MEA
24 June 2016
ZE-R"ERAZTEA

BEEZERERBEE AR B AR AFRSE
22FE6E W[ EEEE|—F -

The biographical details of each of the Directors and the
relationships between them (if any) are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” from
page 22 to page 26 of this annual report.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As required by Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the role of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual to ensure a clear
division between their respective independence and
accountability and to maintain a balance of power and
authority. As Mr. Chow Kai Weng has been serving as
both the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer since
13 June 2018, such practice deviates from the Code
Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code. The
Board believes that vesting the roles of both the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer in the same
person can facilitate the execution of the Group’s
business strategies and enhance effectiveness of its
operation. Therefore, the Board considers that the
deviation from the Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code is appropriate in such circumstances.

Non-executive Directors

Under Code Provision A.4.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, non-executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term and subject to re-election. The existing
Non-executive Director has been appointed by the
Company for a specific term of two years and is subject
to retirement by rotation in accordance with the bye-laws
of the Company (the “Bye-laws”).

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
complied with Rules 5.05 and 5.08 of the GEM Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of Independent Non-
executive Directors. Following the resignation of Prof.
Wong Lung Tak Patrick, with effect from 1 January 2019
the Company has only two independent non-executive
Directors and with at least one of them having
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. This falls below
the minimum number requirement under Rules 5.05(1)
and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is
identifying a suitable candidate to fill the above vacancy,
further announcement will be made by the Company
when the relevant appointment is made.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board is responsible for the appointment of new
Directors and the nomination of Directors for re-election
by shareholders of the Company at the AGM. In
accordance with the Bye-laws, the Directors shall have
the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on
the Board or as an addition to the existing Board, whom
is subject to retirement and re-election in accordance with
the Bye-laws.

All Executive Directors are engaged on service contracts
with the Company for a term of three years.

The Company has also entered into a letter of
appointment or re-appointment with the Non-executive
Director and each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors for a term of two years subject to retirement,
re-election and removal in accordance with the Bye-laws.

In accordance with Bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the first general meeting of
shareholders of the Company after his/her appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to the Bye-law 84(1) and 84(2) of the Bye-laws,
at each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Such retiring Directors shall be
eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a
Director throughout the meeting at which he retires.

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover
in respect of legal action against the Directors.
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Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

The Directors’ ongoing training is very important to the
maintenance of high corporate governance standards in
the Company. The Company has adopted a policy on
induction and continuous professional development to
encourage all Directors to update themselves, on a
continuous basis, on developments in the statutory and
regulatory regime and changes in the business and
market environment in which the Group operates to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities and
obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

To assist the Directors in their continuing professional
development, the Company recommends that they
regularly attend relevant seminars and courses at the
expenses of the Company and the Directors are required
to provide the Company with his/her annual training
record to ensure the enhancement of their knowledge and
skill.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, all Directors have
participated in the continuous professional developments
in relation to regulatory updates, duties and
responsibilities of the Directors and the business of the
Group in the following manner:

Name of Directors
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Types of Training

ESKE 3Eall & Bl
Executive Directors
HITEE
Mr. Chow Kai Weng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) A&B
JE L B8 5% A (EERITEAEE)
(Appointed as Chairman on 4 May 2018 and
appointed as Chief Executive Officer on
13 June 2018)
(RZFE—-NFRANAZFRFERR
—E-NFNAFZHZFATBAEZ)
Mr. Cheng Wang Chun (Appointed on 4 May 2018) A&B
LIEIN i (R=ZF—NFAAMAEZF)
Mr. Ho Leung Ting (Appointed on 15 November 2018) A&B
] 52 E 5 A& (RZFE-NF+—HATHAEZE)
Ms. Law Po Yee (Resigned as Chief Executive Officer on 13 June A&B
EERLZL 2018 and resigned as Vice Chairperson and
Executive Director on 15 November 2018)
(RZF-—NENAT=ZHAFFTERABZRR=-F
—NFF+—ATHAFTETERHTEE)
Ms. Sin Ho Yee (Resigned on 15 November 2018) A&B
Vi Nk dun (RZFE-NF+—HA+THAFE)
Non-executive Directors
HNITEF
Dr. Lam Lee G. A&B
MRIBHE L+
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman) A&B
5 B AR S A (/)
(Resigned on 4 May 2018)
(RZ=ZF—/V4F # AP HEHF)
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim (Resigned on & January 2018) A&B
A& (RZFE—=/NF—HIHEFE)
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUHHTESF
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert A&B
HELEE
Mr. Li Kit Chee A&B
FHZKAE
Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick (Resigned on 1 January 2019) A&B
=REHEK (RZF—NF—H—HEFIE)
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor (Resigned on 1 July 2018) A&B

BRRILEE

(RZFE-NF+LHA—HEE)

Remarks: i

A: Attending internal briefing session in relating to corporate A:2MBBACEESNARI RS F
governance

B: Reading materials in relation to regulatory updates B:MEBAMEESTEZETAEHNER
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Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting in
Respect of the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial year to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018, the Directors have consistently
selected and applied appropriate accounting policies and
standards, make judgments and estimates that are
prudent, fair and reasonable, and prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The Group continued to be in debt condition indicate that
there may exist a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Notwithstanding the existence of these
indicators, the Directors are of the opinion that it is
appropriate for the consolidated financial statements to be
prepared on the assumption that the Group will continue
to operate as a going concern. In order to improve the
Group’s financial position, immediate liquidity and cash
flows, and otherwise to sustain the Group as a going
concern, the Directors have adopted several measures to
resolve the debt condition. After assessing the Group’s
current and forecasted cash positions, the Directors are
satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in full the
Group’s financial obligations as they fall due for the
period of twelve months from 31 December 2018.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared on the going concern basis.
For further details, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Liquidity and Financial Resources” in “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report and note 3
to the consolidated financial statements.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company
regarding its reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report
on pages 118 to 126 of this annual report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance and to
enhance the function of the Board, the Company has
established three Board Committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Each Board Committee was
established with specific written terms of reference which
deal clearly with its authority and duties and are reviewed
from time to time.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 2002 with its
written terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules. From 1 January 2018 to 30 June
2018, the Audit Committee comprised four Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert
(Chairman), Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor, Prof. Wong Lung
Tak Patrick and Mr. Li Kit Chee. From 1 July 2018 to
31 December 2018, the Audit Committee comprised three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chui Chi
Yun Robert (Chairman), Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick and
Mr. Li Kit Chee. From 1 January 2019 to the date of this
annual report, the Audit Committee comprised two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chui Chi
Yun Robert (Chairman) and Mr. Li Kit Chee.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
complied with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules that the
Audit Committee must comprise a minimum of 3
members, have at least one of whom is an Independent
Non-executive Director with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise and be chaired by an Independent
Non-executive Director.

Following the resignation of Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick
with effect from 1 January 2019, the Company has only
two Independent Non-executive Directors on the Board
and in the Audit Committee, which falls below the
minimum number required under Rule 5.28 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company is identifying a suitable
candidate to fill the above vacancy. Further
announcement will be made by the Company when the
relevant appointment is made.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to: (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation
or dismissal; (i) review and monitor the Company’s
financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems; and (i) review the Company’s financial
information.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit
Committee held four meetings for the reviewing of the
Group’s annual, half-yearly and quarterly results,
assessing and evaluating of the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management procedures and internal control
system. The Audit Committee has also made
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of the
external auditor after reviewing the scope of services
offered and the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor. The attendance record of these
meetings is set out in the section headed “Board and
Committees Meetings and Attendance” on page 66 of this
annual report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005
with its written terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules. From 1 January 2018 to 30 June
2018, the Remuneration Committee comprised four
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chui Chi
Yun Robert (Chairman), Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor, Prof.
Wong Lung Tak Patrick and Mr. Li Kit Chee. From 1 July
2018 to 31 December 2018, the Remuneration Committee
comprised three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman), Prof. Wong
Lung Tak Patrick and Mr. Li Kit Chee. From 1 January
2019 to the date of this annual report, the Remuneration
Committee comprised two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman)
and Mr. Li Kit Chee. The Company has complied with
Rule 5.34 of GEM Listing Rules that a remuneration
committee should comprise a majority of independent
non-executive directors and should be chaired by an
independent non-executive director.

The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include: (i) making recommendations to the Board on the
Group’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
management remuneration and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy; (i) reviewing and determining the
remuneration packages of each individual Executive
Director and management including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments; and (i)
ensuring that none of the Directors or their associates will
involve in deciding his own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee adopted the approach under
Code Provision B.1.2(c)(ii) to make recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration packages of the Directors and
the management of the Company.

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year

under review are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements contained in this annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Remuneration Committee held three meetings in relation
to the overall remuneration policy and structure and
making recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration packages of each individual Executive
Director and the management in assessing their
performance and approval of the relevant terms of service
contracts; and reviewed the proposed director’'s fee of
Mr. Chow Kai Weng, Mr. Cheng Wang Chun and Mr. Ho
Leung Ting and recommended the same to the Board for
approval. The attendance record of the meetings is set
out in the section headed “Board and Committees
Meetings and Attendance” on page 66 of this annual
report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 2012 with
its written terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules. From 1 January 2018 to 3 May
2018, the Nomination Committee comprised one Non-
executive Director and three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman), Mr. Chan
Tin Lup Trevor, Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick and Mr. Li
Kit Chee. From 4 May 2018 to 30 June 2018, the
Nomination Committee comprised one Executive Director
and three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Chow Kai Weng (Chairman), Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor,
Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick and Mr. Li Kit Chee. From
1 July 2018 to 31 December 2018, the Nomination
Committee comprised one Executive Director and two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chow
Kai Weng (Chairman), Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick and
Mr. Li Kit Chee. From 1 January 2019 to the date of this
annual report, the Nomination Committee comprised one
Executive Director and one Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chow Kai Weng (Chairman) and
Mr. Li Kit Chee.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee are
mainly (i) to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board and make recommendations to the Board
regarding the identification of suitable, qualified individuals
for selection and appointment as Directors; (ii) to assess
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company; and (jii) to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment or
re-designation of, and succession planning for the
Directors (in particular the Chairman) and the Chief
Executive Officer.
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The Company has adopted a board diversity policy in
September 2013 concerning diversity of the Board. Under
this policy, the diversity of the Board is considered in
terms of factors such as gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments are based on merit, and candidates
are considered against various objective criteria, with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Nomination Committee discusses and determines the
measurable objectives for implementing diversity on the
Board and recommends the same to the Board for
adoption on an annual basis. The Nomination Committee
will review the policy on a regular basis and will discuss
any revision that may be required, and recommend any
proposed changes to the Board for approval.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Nomination Committee held three meetings and (i)
reviewed the structure, size, composition and the diversity
policy of the Board; (ii) assessed the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors; (iii) reviewed the
training and continuing professional development of the
Directors; (iv) evaluated the Directors’ time commitment
and the contribution required from the Directors to
discharge their responsibilities; and (v) reviewed the
biography of Mr. Cheng Wang Chun and Mr. Ho Leung
Ting and recommended them to the Board for approval to
be appointed as the Executive Directors. The attendance
record of the meetings is set out in the section headed
“Board and Committees Meetings and Attendance” on
page 66 of this annual report.

Nomination Policy and Procedure

The Nomination Committee would use the criteria listed
below as reference for the selection, appointment and re-
appointment of Directors:

— Integrity and reputation;

— Professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

— Commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest;

— Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service;
and

— Any other criteria as the Committee may deem fit to

consider in the best interests of the Company and
its shareholders.
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The above criteria are for reference only, and not meant
to be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee
has the discretion to nominate any person, as it considers
appropriate.

Candidates will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information, including the information as required
by the Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, together
with their written consent to be appointed as a Director
and to the public disclosure of their personal data on any
documents or the relevant websites for the purpose of or
in relation to their appointment as a Director.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to
provide additional information and documents, if
considered necessary.

Any Director may nominate a candidate for appointment,
election or re-election as a Director by the Board or at a
general meeting. Upon obtaining the required information
from the candidate, the Nomination Committee shall
evaluate whether such candidate is qualified to be
appointed, elected or re-elected into the Board based on
the criteria as set out above and the relevant GEM Listing
Rules and the policies of the Company.

The Nomination Committee shall convene a meeting to
discuss and consider the recommendation of the
candidate to the Board for appointment, election or re-
election as a Director by the Board or at a general
meeting.

Board and Committees Meetings and Attendance

The Board is scheduled to meet at least four times each
year on a quarterly basis to discuss the Group’s business
development, operations and financial performance.
Notices of not less than 14 days in advance together with
the formal agenda are addressed to all Directors for all
regular board meetings. For additional Board meetings
which require discussion and resolution of significant
issues arising from the operation of the Company, notice
is given in a reasonable time in advance. To enable the
Directors to make informed decisions, the Board papers
together with all appropriate and relevant materials and
information in relation to the matters to be discussed and
considered at the Board meeting are sent to all Directors.
Proper minutes of Board meetings and Committees
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary of the
Company. Draft minutes are normally circulated to
Directors for comments and records respectively within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version
is open for inspection on reasonable notice by any
Directors.
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The attendance record of each Director at the Board REBEE_Z-NF+_A=Z=+—-RHLFE &=
meetings, the Board Committees meetings and the %ﬁfﬁ% DEeE EELERREAAREARE
general meeting during the year ended 31 December ZEERR ST
2018 is set out in the following table:
Remuneration Audit ~ Nomination
Board  Committee ~ Committee  Committee General
Name of Directors Date of Appointment/Resignation Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting Notes
flEEE EHEE REEEE
.21 i 13:E ] R H H H REXE Wi
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Chow Kai Weng (Chaiman B84 % & (Appointed as Chaiman on (R=F—/\£RAEA 710 - - 113 — 1. Mr. Chow Kai Weng was appointed 1. AIBIER4ER-F—
and Chief Executive Officer) (¥ ERATBEL) 4 May 2018 and BZEATRRRZ as a Chief Executive Officer of the ERAtT= E?E§1
appointed as Chief $-\ExEt+ZH Company on 13 June 2018, was ERAARAEH K=
Executive Officer on ZEEAESEH) also appointed as a member and T-\fRANAEZ
18 Jung 2018) (1) the chaiman of the Nomination EAREZEENER
(Note 1) Committes on 4 May 2018 IR-RAE BE-%
Therefore, he only attended one -NETZRZt-H
nomination committee meeting for LLEE REHE-X
the year ended 31 December REZREEE-
2018.
Mr. Cheng Wang Chun Y3 (Appointed on 4 May 2018) (R=Z—-\5RARA H0 - - - ~ 2. Mr. Cheng Wang Chun was 2 BUREERZZ-N
(Note 2) EEA) () appointed as an Executive ERAMBEEAAL
Director of the Company on DANTES-
4 My 2018,
Mr. Ho Leung Ting MRERE Appointed on RZF-NE+-A 210 - - - ~ 3. Mr. Ho Leung Ting wes appointed 3. ZERER=F— )
15 Novermber 2018) TRREZA as an Executive Director of the Ft-AtRREZE
(Note 3) (K9 Company on 15 November 2018, BELAANTES R
Therefore, he only attended two W EEZF-NF
Board meetings for the year TZAZT-HLE
ended 31 December 2018, B RELEMAES
ELE S
Ms. Law Po Yee BERNL Resigned as Chief 710 - - - — 4 Ms.lawPoYeeresignedasan 4. EEFXLIH=-T
Executive Officer on REAAREAR Executive Diector of the Company F+-At+1H E’Mﬂi
13 June 2018 and RZZ-\E1-R on 15 November 2018. LABfES:
resigned as Vice TRRFEEERR
Chairperson and BITES) (e
Executive Director on
15 November 2018)
(Note 4)
Ms. Sin Ho Yee a3 {-k:ed [Resigned on 15 November (% =F—/\5+—A 410 1 - - — 5 Ms.SnHoYeeresignedasan 5 AERETHZE-N
2018) (Note 5) TRARM) (5 Execuive Director of the Company FT-ATRERES
on 15 November 2018. LARfES:
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Dr. Lam Leg G. ¥tk 210 - - - -
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam RAREE [Resigned on 4 May 2018) (R=F-/\5RAMA 210 - - 23 — 6. Mr.Sin Kwok Lam resigned asa 6. AEMAER =T/
(Note 6) B (Eﬁ i) Non-executive Director of the FRANBHERLR
Company on 4 May 2018, FanEs.
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim R [Resigned on 5 Janvary (=% - - - - — 7. Mr.LiSinHung Maxim resigned as 7. FHAKERZT -/
2018) (Note 7) a Non-gxecutive Director of the F-BAABELLR
Company on 5 January 2018, kg
Independent Non-executie BT HH{TEE
Directors
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert EFCRE 8/10 33 414 - il
Mr. Li Kit Chee Tk 710 33 44 33 -
Prof. Wong Lung Tek Patrick & Ef&H & [Resigned on 1 Janvary  (R=F-A5-F-H 8/10 33 414 33 1A 8. Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick 8 ERBHARN-T-n
2019) (Note 8) B (Mg resigned as an Independent - ﬂ ARTEH
Non-executive Director on #nEE-
1 January 2019.
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor BRI [Resigned on 1 July 2018) (R=F—-NE+A-A 410 23 %4 23 — 0. Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor resigned 9. BRUAER=F-/
(Note 9) ) (139 as an Independent Non-executive ;
Director on 1 July 2018. 0EE.
Total numboer of meetingls) ~ &FLH 10 3 4 3 1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions performed by the
Board include: (i) formulating and reviewing the corporate
governance policies and practices of the Company; (ii)
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and the
management; (i) reviewing and monitoring the policies
and practices of the Company in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulatory requirements; (iv) developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and
Directors; and (v) reviewing the compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code by the Company and the
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Sun Shui (“Ms. Sun”) was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company since 27 December 2017.
Ms. Sun was nominated by ComSec Team Limited
(“ComSec Team”) to assume such office and ComSec
Team has been providing certain corporate secretarial
services to the Company pursuant to an engagement
letter entered into between the Company and ComSec
Team. Ms. Sun is not a full time employee of the
Company. The primary person at the Company with
whom Ms. Sun has been contacting in respect of
company secretarial matters is the Financial Controller of
the Company.

Ms. Sun is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Sun obtained an
Honours Bachelor of Business Administration degree from
University of Lincoln, a Master of Corporate Governance
degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a
Juris Doctor degree from City University of Hong Kong.
Ms. Sun has over 16 years’ experience in corporate
secretarial, corporate governance and compliance
matters.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board has
access to the advice and services of Ms. Sun at all times
in accordance with Code Provision F.1.4 of Appendix 15
to the GEM Listing Rules. Ms. Sun has taken no less
than 15 hours of professional training during the year
under review pursuant to Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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THE AUDITORS

On 28 December 2018, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited (“HLB”) resigned as the auditors of the Company
and with the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the
Company engaged Elite Partners CPA Limited (“Elite
Partners”) as the external auditors for the financial year
ended 31 December 2018 to fill the casual vacancy
following the resignation of HLB and to hold office until
the conclusion of the next AGM. Elite Partners is
independent and there are no relationships between Elite
Partners and the Company that are likely to impair its
independence. The roles and responsibilities of Elite
Partners are stated in the Independent Auditors’ Report
on pages 118 to 126 of this annual report.

The fees paid/payable to ELITE, the independent auditors,
in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out below:

Type of services provided by the independent auditors

23 4]

WZZE—NF+-_F-+N\B BEHSHMES
FRrERAT ([BE])BEERRAT ZZEN B
ZEEeNEZ T ARQAREAMALEESHME
BEHARARA(RTEEDETHE-_ZT—N\F
+Z A=+ —BLUBRFEZINEBIZXEAED 0 NE
HEEHTRIRN =R T2 —EET EE
AR TERREFRECEREL  -RATEES
YRARNR BERTEZEEARNRD R E T A
BEHEBYMNER ALEENBERETEH
TIARNE R FE118E126E 2 BT L BN IRE

RBE-Z-N\F+ZA=+—BIFE B
MR HEMA T ERIRE 2 ARG R IERA R
M3/ RO ERERINAT :

Fees paid/payable

BIZHAMRENREES Bt EAERAH

HK$

BT

Audit services EE RS 850,000
Non-audit services EEZRE

— Other — Hf -

TOTAL: A& 850,000

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy with effect from
1 January 2019. In deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board shall take into account, inter alia:

(i) the financial condition of the Group;

(if) the prevailing economic climate;

(i) the Group’s earnings and cash flow;

(iv)  the Group’s expected capital requirements;

(v) statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment
of dividends by the Company;

(vi)  the retained earnings and distributable reserves of
the Company and each of the members of the
Group; and

(vii)  any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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Declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is
also subject to the Bye-laws, the laws of Bermuda and
any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The dividend policy will continue to be reviewed from time
to time by the Board and there can be no assurance that
any dividend will be proposed or declared in any given
period.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing
the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems and conducted annual review of the
effectiveness of such systems through the Audit
Committee. The Group’s risk management framework sets
out the process of identification, evaluation and
management of the principal risks affecting the business,
please refer to “Risk Management Report” of this annual
report for details. The Group’s system of internal control
is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage and eliminate risks of failure in operational
systems and fulfilment of the business objectives. The
internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis
by the Board in order to make it practical and effective in
providing reasonable assurance in relation to protection of
material assets and shareholders’ interests.

Internal Control Policies

The Group’s internal control has put in place by the
Board, management, and other personnel of the Group,
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
achievement of objectives in the following categories:

o Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
° Reliability of financial reporting
o Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

The internal control covers every activity and transaction
in the Group, while the Group emphasized that everyone
is an important part of internal control systems. The
internal control policies of the Group comprises five
aspects:

. Separation of Duties

Separation of duties involves splitting responsibility
of particular experienced employees for personnel
administration, planning, performance monitoring,
marketing and accounting and requiring critical
tasks to be reviewed by the management of the
Group.
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o Access Control

Controlling access to different parts of data and/or
system via passwords, lockouts and electronic
access logs can keep unauthorized users out of the
data and/or system while access tracking can also
serve to deter attempts at fraudulent access in the
first place.

. Approval Authority

Requiring specific managers to authorize certain
types of transactions such as large amount orders,
significant transaction, etc and approval for
particular activities such as recruitment, marketing
plans, large payments and expenses, etc to prevent
unscrupulous employees from making large
fraudulent transactions.

o Documentations

Standardizing documents used for particular
activities (e.g. Hotel room reservation form, petty
cash claim form, administration memo, etc) to
maintain consistency in record keeping over time.
Using standard document formats can make it
easier to review past records when searching for
the source of a discrepancy in the system.

o Internal Audlit

Internal audits include test on the Group’s operating
procedures, documents examination, hand-counting
cash and any physical assets tracked, etc to
oversee the effectiveness of the internal controls.

As the corporate and operation structure of the Group is
not complex and a separate internal audit department
may divert resources of the Group, the Company
currently does not have an internal audit department.
However, the Group has engaged an independent third
party internal control consultant to, on an annual basis,
review and provide recommendations on improving its
internal control system in order to manage our business
risks and to ensure our smooth operation. The review
covered certain operational procedures. No significant
control failings or weakness have been identified by the
consultant during the review.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit
Committee, with reference to and based on the internal
audit report issued by the independent audit firm,
conducted a review on the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions, adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting, internal control and financial reporting
functions, and training programmes and budget. The
Board has considered and discussed the internal audit
report issued by the independent audit firm, the work
conducted by the independent audit firm, the Audit
Committee’s view on the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and their effectiveness. The Board
and the Audit Committee considered the risk
management and internal control of the Group effective
and adequate.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, no significant
areas of concern that might affect shareholders were
identified. It should be acknowledged that the Group’s
risk management and Internal control system are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives at the reasonable
level, but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal control for the
handling and dissemination of price-sensitive information,
the Company is aware of its obligations under Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Law of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) and the GEM Listing
Rules and has established the inside information/price-
sensitive information disclosure policy (the “Disclosure
Policy”) with close regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure
of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Future
Commission of Hong Kong.

The Disclosure Policy includes, among other things:

(i) only designated persons are authorised to
communicate the Company’s corporate matters with
investors, analysts, the media or other members of
the investment community;

(i) Directors shall report to the Chief Executive Officer
any potential/suspected inside information as soon
as practicable for him to consult (if appropriate) the
Board thereafter for determining the nature of
developments, and if required, making appropriate
disclosure;

(i) disclosure of inside information must be made in a
manner that can provide for equal, timely and
effective access by the public to the disclosed
inside information;
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(iv)  inside information must be kept strictly confidential
until a public announcement is made and shall be
disseminated in accordance with the requirements
of the SFO and the GEM Listing Rules before it is
released via other channels.

CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2018.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board is committed to maintaining an ongoing and
transparent communication with all shareholders which
enables shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decision and to have better understanding on
the Group’s business performance and strategies. The
Board also believes that it is vital for developing and
maintaining continuing investor relations with the
Company’s potential and existing investors.

The Company maintains a website at “www.nationalarts.
hk” as a communication platform with its shareholders
and investors, where the Group’s business developments
and operations, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available
for public access.

The Board considers general meetings of the Company as
an important channel for shareholders to exchange views
with the Board and will endeavour to be available at the
meetings to answer any questions raised by shareholders
of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

It is the Company’s responsibility to ensure shareholders’
interest. To do so, the Company maintains on-going
dialogues with shareholders and encourage their
participation in the AGM or other general meetings.
Notice of meeting containing agenda, proposed
resolutions and proxy form are sent to registered
shareholders by post. All shareholders are entitled to
attend AGM and special general meetings (“SGM”),
provided that their names are registered in the register of
members of the Company on the record date which is
used to determine the entitlement to attend a meeting.
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According to the Bye-laws, any one or more shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of the
Company, to require an SGM to be called by the Board,
provided that such requisition properly states the object(s)
and deposited at the registered office of the Company for
the attention of the Company Secretary, and be verified
with and confirmed by the Company’s share registrar that
such requisition is proper and in order.

The SGM shall be held within 2 months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) or any of them representing more than
one-half of their total voting rights may do so, but any
SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of 83 months from the date of deposit of the requisition. A
meeting convened by the requisitionist(s) shall be
convened in the same manner as if the meeting was
convened by the Board.

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any
number of registered shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (the “Requisitionists”), or not less than 100
registered shareholders, can request the Company in
writing to (i) provide shareholders entitled to receive
notice of the next general meeting with notice of any
resolution(s) which may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at that meeting; and (ii) circulate to
shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meetings any statement(s) in not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolutions or other businesses to be dealt with at that
meeting. A requisition signed by all the requisitionist(s)
with a sum sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant
expenses shall be deposited at the registered office of the
Company not less than six weeks in case of a requisition
requiring a notice of resolution(s) or before the meeting. If
an AGM is called for on a date six weeks or less after the
deposit of such requisition, such requisition, through not
deposited within the required time period, shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purpose
thereof.

Enquiries from shareholders

Shareholders’ enquiries regarding their shareholdings
should be directed to the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited. Other enquiries from shareholders
can be directed to the Board whose contact details are
shown on page 4 of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT
REERE &

To ensure the long-term growth and achieve the Group’s
strategic objectives, an effective risk management takes
an essential and important role. Since 2017, the Group
adopted a systematic and sustainable approach in order
to provide a clear responsibility and accountability
structure for risk management.

The Group’s risk management framework clearly stated
the role of the Board, Audit Committee, managerial
officers of the Company (the “Management”) and business
unit and their own responsibilities to risk management.
The aim is to identify risks and then manage them so that
they can be understood, reduced, mitigated or avoided.
The Group’s Risk Management Report was presented to
the Board for review in December 2018.
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THE GROUP’S RISK A £ A L B AR PR R A
MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Group’s risk management framework and its own AEEMRREBEELEESNEMR:
responsibilities:

The Group’s risk management framework FREMEREESEE
4 \
Top-down approach:
The Board Evaluate and monitor the strategic
e Board Oversight risk to achieve the Group’s goals
e Goal Formulation .
HLETTE:
= ST R ERSRES RS - LB ARE
o HilE B 1R h g

The Audit Committee
* Independent Assurance

BEZEST

* B %8

Risk escalation and
assurance
BEEARREE The Management
Risk Reporting and
Communication
Risk and Control Oversight
Function

Guidelines, role and
& E responsibilit:_iss
. EBRERLBBE R ABREE

o RlfR K BE % B R MR

Business unit/individuals
e Risk and Control Ownership
¢ Mitigating Plans

EBEM EA
o [@ 2 %JT?WETE\
° % =1+ 2

Bottom-up approach:
Identification and prioritization of all material risks by cross-functional workshop

BTmLE:
BRI XBETIEDBNRRESESHIMEERNRAR
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The Group’s Risk Management Responsibilities

1.

The Board is responsible to:

Formulate the annual business objectives,
planning and decision making at the strategic
level;

Oversee management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management framework and approve risk
appetite. Meeting with Audit Committee and
the Management to ensure the risk
management framework is maintained
appropriately and effectively.

The Audit Committee is responsible to:

Oversee the Group’s overall risk assessment
along with the effectiveness of the risk
controls and mitigation process and identify
all material risks that may impact the
achievement of the Group’s business
objectives;

Review the risk reports and breaches of risk
tolerances and policies, and discuss with the
Management in relation to the selected risks
for more detailed review. Summarise the
material risk and circulate to the Board.

The Management is responsible to:

Review the risk management process
regularly, and report on the key risks and
consider common risks across the Group.
The Group Risk Management Report shall be
prepared and submitted to the Audit
Committee;

Identify the Group’s financial risks and
non-financial risks, including strategic
reputational, regulatory, operational risk and
rank the risk with reference to their own
materiality and circumstances. Risk register
shall be established;

Establish various policies, procedures and
guidelines with defined authority for effective
segregation in relation to the risk
management and established an effective
communication channel to report on any
malpractice and unethical conduct. The
training programme is arranged for the
Group’s employees regularly to ensure their
understanding of the Group’s business
objective and their own duties.
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The business units and each individual are

responsible to:

Carry out risk management activities in day-
to-day operation in their areas of
responsibility, making effective risk
management processes and mitigating plans
in accordance with good practices and
guidelines established by the Management;

Report any malpractice and unethical conduct
within the Group without fear of reprisal and
victimization, and discuss with the
Management on any difficulties in relation to
the risk management on a timely basis.
Business Unit risk management reports shall
be prepared and submitted to the
Management.

Evd
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BEukBRENALEES:

BREEEHENREERLIES
AHEZEBRTHTRAEREANDN
REEREE  (FHB R EREE
TR R AT &R AT 8

PE AR B A R /] NE R ERT
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The Group’s Risk Management Process

The Group’s risk management process consists of five major phases: 1) Establishing the risk context; 2) Identifying
risks; 3) Risk assessment and evaluation; 4) Developing control and mitigation plans; 5) Risk reporting and
monitoring, covering the business and decision-making processes including strategy formulation, business
development and planning, capital allocation, investment decisions and day-to-day operation:

ARENEREERF
AEBENEREBEFBELAREK S NRERRER 2B AIER : 3)EBRATH : 4)6 F BEZERTETE : 5)E
RHMERER BREEBRAXREF BEWNEERE EHBERLAELE ﬁ% Tl RERERBEZE:
e N
1). Establishing the risk ° Risk reference tables for the Group were established and updated by
context the business units and reviewed by the Management regularly.
REREE R

EBBEURAEBRRILRENARZ2ER YHEREEHREMN -

° The Management sets a common risk language to avoid any conflicting
terminology or confusion.

EEERE-—RERES BEERETAEHERARIESE -

g
2). Identifying risks ° In annual business planning process, divisions and departments are
ok Bl = b required to identify all material risks that may impact their
achievement of business objectives.
EE2FEBHREBED  HBEBPIARAN TR EAEREKE
BB EXRRER -

° Divisions and departments identify the risks at the business unit level
and the Management identifies the risks including financial and
non-financial risk at the Group level.

DRI EHECEmORR EEBEHRINEEEENITE
SEE I
N J
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p
3). Risk assessment and
evaluation

[ B 5F £

Divisions and departments assess and score the risk identified along
with their impact on the business and the likelihood of their
occurrence.

DL EPIRE A R EMER AR UEREHERZE R H
HEH) AT BEME ©

The Management shall ensure project risk for each investment project
is assessed in details and properly documented.

ERERRRESEREEDETHMANEDRRTE YEER
BAR -

The risks identified in the annual business planning process and/or in
each investment planning process are evaluated based on the same
set of risk profiling criteria as the quarterly risk review process.

E2FEBRIBRED R/ LESEREREBIED A ERORR
RiEEFEZRREHBENR —ERR DT ELFG -

4). Developing control and
mitigation plans

W E B i R AT 4R T A

The Management reviews the effectiveness of the risk management
process and approves the mitigation plans.

EEERAEREEREFOERERIEFEES -

Divisions and departments identify risk and then processes the
mitigating plans in accordance with good practices and guidelines
established by the Management.

DEHEAFABREEBMBIENREER RS BRIERR A&
il E 47 AR AT 8

5). Risk reporting and
monitoring

ERRERER

Emerging risks and/or overarching strategic risks, which may have a
material impact on the Group over a longer time frame, are monitored
and discussed on a quarterly basis by the Audit Committee and the
Board.

FEROERR FEENRBERRREN S T HW A BERX
EAFE RAAKREERZECRETEERNEBTETIR

The Board established a communication channel including bottom-up
and top-down review process across the Group.

EFESHIERBRE ERYASEERETATM LALLM T
BB o

Business units prepared the quarterly Business Unit Risk Management
Report and submitted to the Management. The Management reviews
the Business Unit Risk Management Report and highlights the
material risk in the Group Risk Management Report and submits to
the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

EBEUGRRTEESEURRERRSLEXTERE - EIEE
EERUEKEVRAREERS  REHELEERREERSETD
MBEREAR YTEXTEXRZES -

S m
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Material Risks of the Group FEEMERAR

Since 2016, the Group has adopted the an enterprise risk BT —AFR AEBERACERREEHE
management system (the “ERM System”) in the ([PERERBEREGE]D  A#E R AREERD
identification and analysis of existing and emerging risks EBERBEANEESRENBRELRTEKAR -
to the business strategy planning and business BIEELE XBELREERR KRR K EER
development of the Group including: business, strategic e IR ERREEHENHFEREE B Z R
and regulatory risks, financial risks and operational risks. Z NAEEERELRTEEEPNERRR
The ERM System adopted was compiled to cover: 1) the MO)ERGFEEEZEE EMERRERANMEETE
material risks of the Group in both existing and new FrEI R EE

business; and 2) associated action plans and controls
designed to mitigate the material risks, where applicable,
at appropriate levels:

Risk Description Risk Mitigations
[ B 4 2t B b 4T R IE

Business, strategic and regulatory risks: They are the risks in relation to the impact from the market environments,
changes of corporate structure, non-compliance of regulatory, rules or laws and the strategy planning of the
Group. These risks included longer-term risks for the upcoming 3-5 year and are reviewed by Audit Committee
quarterly and documented in the Group’s Risk Management Report.

X% XKBREERAR AFDEMISERER AREEZY EREETHAT HAAUIEERAEERKAREIME
SEERANRER ZZRRBREBERMIESFNRHAR AEXZESEZTEHIESEAREEREPRH

ER-

Failure to React to Rapid Growth of Online Activities [ In the film production segment, the Group plans to

(Online Threat) introd.uce variouslelemlents e.g.‘ Computer

Graphics Technologies, Virtual Reality, etc. and
The continuous and rapid growth of online activities invest in online TV programme, micro movies, etc.
including digital media and online marketing further drives to cope with the high demands in online market.
changes in business behavior while altering the entire MEFZRESI REBFEISATRBHITE
competitive landscape, especially in the PRC. PlnEEBE RN EHESE WRENMNLS

BEE  MEXE  WEHBLTHSNEAFR -

REHERERRHBLEH(BALRE) e The Group uses variety of online media e.g.

WMEEDRERELEE B RBRERM LR | ooooook NSiagiam ste. 1o establish

\ —. ~ . communication channel with existing and new

e o P , Bl fsh Eaey; =

ﬁagg‘%nﬁﬁaﬁi REARREZRER H customers. In the meantime, the Group
= o

cooperates with other online media to put more
focus on marketing efforts to attract target
customers.

NEBE R AR A L& f thFacebook
Instagram% - LI B RFELHBBERE

B AR REEEEME FEESE MER
EFRHMEZEHER -

Non-compliance with Corporate Governance Code *  In 2018, the Group has continuously improved and

enhanced its enterprise risk management

With effect from 1 January 2016, the Stock Exchange has framework and strengthened a range of guideline,
amended its Corporate Governance Code relating to risk procedures and policies for employees across the
management. Insufficient employee’s risk awareness and Group to comply with the amendments and
risk management technique may result in non-compliance further adjustments are being made to relevant
issue. processes to ensure timely compliance.
RZF-N\F AEEEENERRERALER
EREETHAER RERRIE - WINSE RIS IR RER - 2
<t 2 B (S 5 5 o, & Y a %
G-T-—AE-A-A BrEdEBARRER oo O CERRRT NSGHERELE
MEEEATA BIMNEHEAREAREERTD TR : - N B
AIREE BB RE o
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Risk Description Risk Mitigations
[ B 48t B B 4F 48 15 e

e ° To enhance the competitiveness of Xigiao National
Product Competitiveness Arts Studio Project, the Group has continuously
The Group is well known for operating the Xigiao National enriched the festival events and entertainment

programs, cooperated with resourceful companies
to jointly organize and develop a series of unique
projects such as Summer Sea, Land, Sky
Carnival, Fresh Start Temple Fair and Halloween

Arts Studio Project including film shooting areas, theme
parks, etc. in Foshan City. However, some of the tourists
may raise their attention to the theme park with similar

nature nearby which got the national AAAA level tourist Event etc.

attractions identity since August 2016. ABIREEEEILBEEZERBENGZESE H - NE
\@%E%@ﬁaé@ﬂ&%‘amW§~ﬁﬁ

ELHEY ﬁ?ﬁiﬁgﬂj\]’&ﬁjé\’ﬁ’% [A] 48 1 %Eé — R %
FEE MEBBETRFE BERENHBED

AEEREGRLTEENTORLBEEZRAERES & MMEEHFBEHTF -

SO AENEE  TEAERZ R ETHRE A * Given the rapid development of Guangdong-Hong

ENEEAT AL MES TEAR A ﬁ;}(%/‘\ BE— Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (the “Greater Bay

T &)\ g iﬂ?%ﬁ%ﬁ'ﬁ RAAG s 2 Area”), the tourism industry of the Greater Bay

Area is excepted to become the focal point of
development. As the Studio is located at the
boundary line of the Greater Bay Area, it is
expected to benefit from the strong momentum of
the development in the Greater Bay Area. The
Group planned to launch the construction project
in 2019 to expand both indoor and outdoor
shooting bases and enhance the filming ancillary
facilities. The Group is of the view that the
development of Studio would help the Group to
capture potential growth and business
opponunmes

EREBBRNER((KER]) MARER &
[ B JiE 5 2 ﬁ%%ﬁ%%&iﬁ°$q%ﬁﬁﬁ
RREEBENG FAMBEIERAERNERSD
B AEEBHEAR 2 WNEWRSEE N
BN 2R THEREANEEESE ~5E
R R R A B AN & B IR IR 2 )& 1
BREEEKS

° The Group has become the first nominated
corporation to assist the State Administration of
Press, Publication, Radio, Film and Television of
Foshan City in the operation and expansion of
digital studios and shooting bases establishment
and movie prop equipment leasing service etc.
after Foshan Municipal People’s Government
announced its “Foshan City Support Policies for
Film and Television Industry Development” on
1 August 2017. As such, the Group will benefit
from the supportive policies and actively invite
different film and television companies to settle in
Foshan with the provision of the Group’s film and
television services so as to effectively expand the
Group’s customer base in different areas and
increase the reputation of the Group in the

industry.
$EI&EQ%MmAEﬁﬁ‘ —t+FN\HA
%WM&&%%@F%%EW%$& D
MX BEEECEZIERAURDHILTES
MELEMRBEREREREGEZN BRERE
RIER FEEBAESMEESXK -SEKEXE
RERIFECR - TEBFE TR EE G ILTE
PREBEBNFERE UESERLRE
TERABRTEANEFH REERSHEE -
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Risk Description Risk Mitigations
[ B 48t B B 4F 48 15 e

Financial risks: There are multiple types of risk associated with financing, including financial transactions. Financial
risks is one of the major concerns of the Group across different fields and geographies. The Group reviewed the
financial performance and assessed these risks before and after making each investment decision. The Group’s
risk management report in relation to these risks was prepared and reviewed on quarterly basis.

FER: BERE (AR HENERERESZ - MBARAREEE TREH MENFTEMEZ — -
AEERAVBRARRNELHEERERAENZIEZEAR FAEERZERAR  AREEREREEE —
RETRELER -

Highly Dependent on Debt Financing ° The Group passed a resolution at the special
general meeting held on 28 June 2018 under

The repayment of the debts and the payment of the which the Directors were granted a specific
relevant interest as a result of the financing by issuing conditional mandate to allot, issue and deal with
bonds, convertible bonds, shareholder’s loan with an shares of the Company for fund raising purpose.
regular interest payment may put pressure to the Group’s Substitution of debt financing with equity financing
cash flow. can effectively reduce debt interest payments and
improve the Group’s cash flow.

EERERERE $§E<H@:g—)\iﬁﬂ:ﬂ—)\ﬁgﬁﬁﬁ'ﬂ%%%

JKEe@mB—BRBEE %4 B A K
FRBETES  TBRRES REEXRE - THIZAAF Egg@ggaﬁe é;?&,ijg%fﬁggﬁégg
B AHSHEREFRIXNEBANEHARENRS g UBRERERZBEERMET SR M
MIERKET) ° BEEAEERSAEERSHE -

° The Group is in discussion with the Directors in
relation to the interest repayment of the
shareholder’s loan, convertible bond and
promissory note by the way of issuing new shares
instead of cash payments.
AEBEMBEEEFETHN R BHEERRE
oA HMRES RAEAEREZNE  LETHR
IR M-

Foreign Currency Risk Associated with the Group’s . Maintain current currency matching practices of
Investments revenue, cost and debt.

R B AT E I - R R B E B H B MU -
Project level debts to be denominated in and/or
swapped into functional currency where possible.

The Group’s foreign currency risk remains low through
currency matching practices of revenue, cost and debt.

. e EBTER BB AENEEE (REM)
RESER AR ERR HA TS - B
FERYINS RARBESBHEARY T AeEy ° Adopt hedging transaction in line with the Group
DNERR G S SEKTE Treasury Policy, where applicable, at appropriate

- levels.
BEMNREASBEEBBEROEEKTE RS (4
M) °

Operational risks: There are the risks of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems or from external events. The Group considered that these risks are closely related to good and quality
management. In view of that, the Group has set up an effective internal control system. Details on Internal Control
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 49 to 73 of this annual report.

wERR  AANFEF BIRERTRAKIMAIIREEMESL - AEERRZSARERFESEEERE
FAER - BERY  AEBERIERIABEZRS - A EZNFBEIN AN FRBIOZTBENTEERRE -
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Risk Description

I, B 4 it

Risk Mitigations
[ B 4F 4B 1R B

Recruitment, Staff Retention and Training

Film and service industries in the PRC are developing
rapidly, and demand for talent has increased
substantially. New technologies emerged yet there is a
lack of relevant external training. The Group may face
shortages and losses in human resources and
technology.

BE -KES T RIR

TREZRRETELARER  HATFRINA S8
R-MEZMHREARZAELIIR - AEERER
ANEREEMZIERRERX -

The Group recognizes that young people play an
important role in its future success, and it is
essential to attract them to join the Group and
encourage them to develop their career with the
Group. The Group shifts the focus towards
recruiting fresh graduates and develop a range of
training programmes to cultivate home grown
talents for the future management pipeline.
REERSFEAHBEMOREKIIERESE
BPARSIFEAMAREB RSB ERAEE
BREFX -AEEKELEBRERBRESRSE
ERFEE-ZRIINRIER LNFERIMATIERE
EIBREK

The Group held a series of activities for employees
(e.g. Chinese New Year Celebration, Annual
Dinner, etc) and provides Employee Discount
Program with an aim to enhance the staff’s sense
of belonging to the Group and to establish a
good working relationship with the management.
REBREERT—FRIED(WERPRHEE
ME - FEBREE) MRERESTNESE A
ReEEBIRASENERRREEREZ LRI
BAR o

Inadequate Infrastructure

The business of the Group in the PRC (including hotel,
film shooting base, cinema) grows rapidly. The Group may
be exposed to infrastructure risks, including weak local
management team structure, inexperience of staff and
inadequate systems, etc.

AEBRPREZER(BEEE SXHBEEL  EXR)
RRFER - AEESIMBEERERAR  BEAMERE
BEGRERS BIRBRIREREGTIES

Tailored training programmes covering
management, customers service, financial, etc are
offered with support from Hong Kong head office
to enhance employees’ capability and to improve
personal performance.

BERBARAZNER RBHESEMNEIIE
B URESEEEHIREARR-

Management of Hong Kong head office will travel
to the PRC office for experience sharing and an
effective communication channel was established
between Hong Kong head office and the PRC
office for reporting and enquiry.
EEBEARZEEESETPENERIELRR
wBABRRARRTENER HELBERER
RENFREREN -
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The Group understands that to be a successful business, AEBRMEBEEY —MHKIHEENSHAH
risk management is very important. In 2019, the Group BR-R_ZT-—NF AEEKEBE(RFETR
will continue to (including but not limited to): )

— Improve and enhance the risk management — HERRESEBEBEERRNIT  WERAR
framework and its implementation to ensure EEERTAREMERER -
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code
and other applicable regulations.

—  Offer risk awareness training programme to the PRC —  MPEBRBEFAGTIEHERE#RIZIIER
existing and new business and continue to review Ko 4 BB w50 R B N D ﬁ*h?mﬁ’]ﬁxﬁ( M o
the effectiveness of the Internal Control System in
the PRC.

—  Seek opportunities to provide both internal and/or — ESHRBAHEBSRERHENIRRINIDE
external training for its employees to enhance their A iEEHERER LR R E R -
risk awareness and risk management technique.

It should be acknowledged that the Group’s risk BAIDR AEEHRREEEETNERRA -

management focuses on the risk detection, mitigation, AR B R Nk e s E AR E R TFITEE’Ef’EHj/\fE

and avoidance to provide reasonable but not absolute ﬁ?E%@§¢%1%E§

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

On behalf of the Board EEEZD

National Arts Entertainment HERETILERFRAT

and Culture Group Limited
Hong Kong, 20 March 2019 BE —NWF=ZHAZ=Z+H
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
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The Board has pleasure in presenting the directors’ report
together with the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in investment
holding. The principal activities of the Group include film
production and distribution, the provision of management
services to artistes, event coordination, provision of travel
related products and operations of film studio and hotel.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Group are set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities
(including an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business) and a review of the performance of the
Group for the year under review can be found in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of
this annual report. These discussions form part of this
Directors’ report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

The operation of the Group’s business may be affected by
major risks and uncertainties which are set out in the
“Risk Management Report” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES
AND COMPLIANCE WITH
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is dedicated in promoting an environmentally-
friendly corporate environment and incorporating green
philosophy into the development of the Group. Details of
the Group’s environmental policies and performance
during the year under review as well as its compliance
record of laws and regulations which have a material
implication or impact on its operation are set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report.
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RESULTS AND
APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 127 to 128.

No dividend was paid during the year under review. The
Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the financial results and the assets,
liabilities and equity of the Group for the last five financial
years is set out on page 272.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of

the Group during the year under review are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND
WARRANTS

Details of movements in share capital of the Company
during the year under review are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
during the year under review are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 37
to the consolidated financial statements.
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PLACING OF NEW SHARES
UNDER GENERAL MANDATE

On 18 February 2019, the Company entered into two
separate placing agreements (“GM Placing Agreements”)
with Quasar Securities Co., Limited and Oriental Patron
Asia Limited (collectively the “GM Placing Agents”)
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed
to place up to 846,153,844 placing shares (“GM Placing
Shares”) and each of the GM Placing Agents has
conditionally agreed to procure on a best effort basis, as
placing agent, currently expected to be not less than six
placees who and whose ultimate beneficial owners shall
be independent third parties of the Company to subscribe
for up to 423,076,922 GM Placing Shares at a price of
HK$0.26 per GM Placing Shares (“GM Placing”).

The placing price of HK$0.26 per GM Placing Share
represents (i) no discount or premium to the closing price
of HK$0.26 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on 12 February 2019, being the last day on which the
Shares were traded on the Stock Exchange prior to the
date of the GM Placing Agreement (“GM Lasting Trading
Day”); and (ii) a premium of approximately 0.8% to the
average closing price of approximately HK$0.258 per
Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the last five
consecutive trading days (including the GM Last Trading
Day) immediately prior to the date of the GM Placing
Agreements.

IR — % 457 B S 85 7 %

RZE—NE-_A+=A AAFHEISBEE
BARIERRESHNERAR (SR —MREIERS
REDITYMOBINES HE ([—REERS
WD B AAREEKREHRERERS
846,153,844 IR E R 0 ([ — IR ERR D) -
ME—MEEREREEKREREEALERE -
RBRFR2HNELEYEBEABHT LR ANZERA
(ZEARAREGRESBEEABAALARRBL
F=F) HEBRSR—REEESR7D0.267E
TCENB 1% - RIE &% %423,076,9220% — AR X HE B &
B ([—MRERESFHE] -

BREEATR —MEEREMMKH0.26B T & : ()
BN —_ZE—NAEF-_A+ BB —REEESH
EEHIRORBERMEEN&RER F([—RE
BRERSH])) TR AR E S R0.26/8
TTWENTESRE LR MOREE —RIXER
EEHHIRERAEEZER S B (BE—RTE
BEBRSB)EBIMFFHUTEFRLY
0.2587% 7T )i & #10.8% ©

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETILEMERAA

87



Annual Report 2018
ZE-N\EH

Directors' Report EEX & HREZ

Completion of the GM Placing under the Placing
Agreements is conditional upon: (a) the Listing Committee
of the Stock Exchange granting or agreeing to grant the
approval for listing of, and permission to deal in, the GM
Placing Shares; and (b) all necessary consents and
approvals required to be obtained on the part of the
Company in respect of the GM Placing and the
transactions contemplated thereunder having been
obtained.

Reasons for and the benefits of the GM Placing

As at 31 December 2018, the unaudited cash and bank
balances of the Group were approximately HK$15.7
million.

As disclosed in the interim report of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2018, the total liabilities of the
Group were approximately HK$2.1 billion as at 30 June
2018, among which, the Group recorded (i) loans from
shareholders of an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$609.0 million; (i) borrowings of an aggregate amount
of approximately HK$197.5 million; (iii) trade payables and
other payables and accruals of an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$80.3 million; (iv) bonds of an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$871.5 million; and (v)
promissory notes of an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$104.6 million as at 30 June 2018.

Assuming the maximum number of the GM Placing
Shares is placed under the GM Placing Agreements, the
gross proceeds from the GM Placing will be
approximately HK$220.0 million, and the net proceeds will
be approximately HK$201.5 million (after deduction of
commission and other expenses incurred in the Placing),
representing a net issue price of approximately HK$0.24
per GM Placing Share. With reference to the financial
position of the Group as mentioned above, it was
expected that the net proceeds from the GM Placing,
being approximately HK$201.5 million, will be utilised for
the partial repayment of the principal and interests of
bonds and borrowings of the Group.

As the majority of interest rates of the existing bonds,
borrowings and loans from shareholders and directors
range from approximately 6.0% to 15.0%, the financial
cost derived from such debts represents a significant part
of the total expense of the Group. As such, the Board
was of the view that the abovementioned repayment
would reduce the interest burden of the Group, improve
the gearing ratio of Group and strengthen the financial
position and profitability of the Group.
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The Board has considered other alternative fundraising
methods such as debt financing, rights issue or open
offer. The Board considered that debt financing may
further incur interest burden on the Group. On the other
hand, rights issue or open offer may involve relatively
substantial time and cost to complete as compared to the
equity financing through the GM Placing. In addition, the
GM Placing would strengthen the capital base of the
Company.

As set out in the Company’s announcement dated
15 March 2019, (1) all the conditions of the GM Placing
have been fulfilled and the completion of the GM Placing
took place on 15 March 2019; and (2) an aggregate of
428,769,230 GM Placing Shares have been successfully
placed at the GM Placing Price of HK$0.260 per GM
Placing Share pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
GM Placing Agreements. The aggregate nominal value of
the GM Placing Shares under the GM Placing is HK$ will
be HK$42,876,923.

The 428,769,230 GM Placing Shares represent (i)
approximately 9.5% of the issued share capital of the
Company immediately before the completion of the GM
Placing; and (i) approximately 8.7% of the issued share
capital of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and
issue of the 428,769,230 GM Placing Shares.

The gross proceeds from the GM Placing is
approximately HK$111.5 milion, and the net proceeds
from the GM Placing, after deducting the placing
commission and other expenses in connection with the
GM Placing from the gross proceeds, is approximately
HK$104.5 million which is intended to be used for the
partial repayment of the principal and interests of the
bonds and borrowings of the Group.

The GM Placing Shares were allotted and issued pursuant
to the general mandate granted to the Directors by the
Shareholders pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on
28 June 2018 to allot and issue up to 903,432,244 new
Shares, and therefore the allotment and issue of the GM
Placing Shares was not subject to any additional
Shareholders’ approval.

Further details of the GM Placing Agreements and the GM
Placing are disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 13 February 2019 and 15 March 2019.
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PLACING OF NEW SHARES
UNDER SPECIFIC MANDATE
AND INCREASE IN
AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

On 13 February 2019, the Company entered into a
placing agreement (“SM Placing Agreement”) with
Emperor Securities Limited, Kingston Securities Limited
and Oriental Patron Asia Limited (collectively the “SM
Placing Agents”), pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to place through the SM Placing
Agents, on a best effort basis, of up to 6,153,846,153
placing shares (“SM Placing Shares”) to currently
expected to be not less than six placees who and whose
ultimate beneficial owners shall be independent third
parties of the Company at a price of HK$0.26 per SM
Placing Share (“SM Placing”). The SM Placing Shares will
be allotted and issued pursuant to the specific mandate
to be sought at the special general meeting of the
Company to be convened and held.

The placing price of HK$0.26 per SM Placing Share
represents (i) no discount or premium to the closing price
of HK$0.26 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on 12 February 2019, being the last day on which the
Shares were traded on the Stock Exchange prior to the
date of the SM Placing Agreement (“SM Lasting Trading
Day”); and (i) a premium of approximately 0.8% to the
average closing price of approximately HK$0.258 per
Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the last five
consecutive trading days (including the SM Last Trading
Day) immediately prior to the date of the SM Placing
Agreement.

Assuming that there will be no change in the issued share
capital of the Company between the date of the SM
Placing Agreement and the completion date of the SM
Placing, the maximum number of the SM Placing Shares
represents (i) approximately 136.2% of the total number of
Shares in issue as at the date of the SM Placing
Agreement; and (i) approximately 57.7% of the total
number of Shares in issue as enlarged by the SM Placing
(assuming the maximum number of the SM Placing
Shares is placed).
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Completion of the SM Placing under the SM Placing
Agreement is conditional upon: (a) the passing by the
Shareholders of an ordinary resolution to approve the SM
Placing Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder, including but not limited to the allotment and
issue of the SM Placing Shares; (b) the passing by the
Shareholders of an ordinary resolution to approve the
proposed increase in the authorised share capital of the
Company from HK$600,000,000 divided into
6,000,000,000 Shares to HK$2,000,000,000 divided into
20,000,000,000 Shares by the creation of an additional
14,000,000,000 new Shares (“Increase in Authorised
Share Capital”); (c) the Listing Committee of the Stock
Exchange granting or agreeing to grant the approval for
listing of, and permission to deal in, the SM Placing
Shares; and (d) all necessary consents and approvals
required to be obtained on the part of the Company in
respect of the SM Placing and the transactions
contemplated thereunder having been obtained;

The SM Placing is subject to the Shareholders’ approval.
A special general meeting of the Company will be
convened and held for the purposes of considering and,
if thought fit, approving (i) the SM Placing Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder, including the
grant of the specific mandate for the allotment and issue
of the SM Placing Shares; and (i) the Increase in
Authorised Share Capital.

Reasons for and the benefits of the SM Placing

As disclosed in the interim report of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2018, the total liabilities of the
Group were approximately HK$2.1 billion as at 30 June
2018, among which, the Group recorded (i) loans from
shareholders of an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$609.0 million; (i) borrowings of an aggregate amount
of approximately HK$197.5 million; (iii) trade payables and
other payables and accruals of an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$80.3 million; (iv) bonds of an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$871.5 million; and (v)
promissory notes of an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$104.6 million as at 30 June 2018.
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The bonds of the Group of approximately HK$871.5
million as at 30 June 2018 consist of unsecured bonds.
As at the date of the SM Placing Agreement, the
outstanding principal of the total of 347 bonds were
approximately HK$1.16 billion, among which 43.5% of the
total principal amounts were short-term bonds due and/or
will due by 31 May 2019 (the “Short-term Bonds”).

The loan from shareholders of the Group of HK$609.0
million as at 30 June 2018 consist of the fixed loans of
approximately HK$279.0 million and revolving loans of
approximately HK$330.0 million. As at the date of the SM
Placing Agreement, the outstanding principal for the total
amount of 8 fixed loans and 5 revolving loans from
shareholders were approximately HK$600.5 million in
aggregate and repayable over one year but within two
year.

The borrowings of Group of approximately HK$197.5
million as at 30 June 2018 consist of the clean loans of
approximately HK$97.5 million and the secured loan of
approximately HK$100 million. As at the date of the SM
Placing Agreement, the outstanding principal for the said
borrowings were approximately HK$189.6 million and
repayable within one year. The trade payables and other
payables and accruals of the Group of approximately
HK$80.3 million as at 30 June 2018 consist of trade
payable of approximately HK$20.5 million and the other
payables and accruals of approximately HK$59.8 million.

As at the date of the SM Placing Agreement, the
outstanding amount of the aforesaid was approximately
HK$73.9 million. As at 31 December 2018 the unaudited
cash and bank balances of the Group were approximately
HK$15.7 million. The Directors considered that the
Group’s existing cash together with the cash generated
from the Group’s operation was not sufficient to meet the
repayment of liabilities of the Group and therefore it was
necessary to allocate the proceeds of the SM Placing for
repayment of its liabilities.
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Assuming the maximum number of the SM Placing
Shares is placed under the SM Placing Agreement, the
gross proceeds from the SM Placing will be
approximately HK$1.60 billion, and the net proceeds will
be approximately HK$1.55 billion (after deduction of
commission and other expenses incurred in the SM
Placing), representing a net issue price of approximately
HK$0.252 per SM Placing Share. It is expected that the
net proceeds from the SM Placing will be utilised for the
following purposes:

(i) approximately HK$347.3 million for the partial
repayment of the principal and interests of Short-
term Bonds;

(i) approximately HK$658.0 million for the repayment of
the principal amounts and partial interests of the
remaining bonds (as at the date of this
announcement) of the Group;

(i)  approximately HK$296.5 million for the partial
repayment of the principal and interests of loans
from shareholders;

(iv)  approximately HK$124.7 million for the partial
repayment of the principal amount of borrowings;

(v) approximately HK$73.9 million for the repayment of
trade payables and other payables and accruals;
and

(vi)  approximately HK$50.0 million for the construction
of two indoor file studio for the Studio.

As the majority of interest rates of the existing bonds,
borrowings and loans from shareholders range from
approximately 6.0% to 15.0%, the financial cost derived
from such debts represents a significant part of the total
expense of the Group. As such, the Board was of the
view that the abovementioned repayment would reduce
the interest burden of the Group, improve the gearing
ratio of Group and strengthen the financial position and
profitability of the Group.
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Given the rapid development of the Greater Bay Area, the
tourism industry of the Greater Bay Area is expected to
become the focal point of development. As the Film
Studio is located at the boundary line of the Greater Bay
Area, it is expected to benefit from the strong momentum
of the tourism development in the Greater Bay Area.
Therefore, the Company was of the view that the
development of the Film Studio would help the Company
to capture potential growth and business opportunities in
tourism industry and generate synergy effect to the
Group’s film studio operation in the long run, which is
also in line with its business strategy of expansion of film-
induced tourism business.

The Board has considered other alternative fundraising
methods such as debt financing, rights issue or open
offer. The Board considered that debt financing may
further incur interest burden on the Group. Given the
Group’s current financial position and the above
consideration, the Company considers that it would be
difficult for the Group to obtain further debt financing at a
reasonable cost and further debt financing would not be
healthy to the long-term financial condition of the Group
and therefore has not approached financial institutions for
debt financing. On the other hand, rights issue or open
offer may involve relatively substantial time and cost to
complete as compared to the equity financing through the
SM Placing. Moreover, the Directors considered that the
rights issue or open offer may incur comparatively higher
costs when compared with the Placing in relation to the
engagement of reporting accountants and brokerage
agent as well as underwriting commission which might in
turn cause an adverse impact on the financial condition of
the Group, and possibly require a relatively longer time
period to complete in view of the relatively more stringent
documentary requirements for pre-emptive issues such as
preparation of a listing document, preparation of
unaudited pro forma financial information to be included in
the prospectus, application forms, registration
requirements for a listing document and negotiation with
the underwriter on the terms and conditions of the
underwriting agreement. Accordingly, in view of the
uncertainty in identifying interested underwriters with
favourable terms and the comparatively longer period of
time for completion, the Company does not consider pre-
emptive issues (including rights issue and open offer) to
be desirable alternatives to the SM Placing. In addition,
the SM Placing would strengthen the capital base of the
Company.

Further details of the SM Placing Agreements and the SM

Placing are disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 13 February 2019.
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CONVERSION OF
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The 9% convertible bonds (“CB5”) in the principal amount
of HK$300,000,000 were issued by the Company on
15 April 2015. The CB5 was issued as part consideration
of the Company’s acquisition of 100% interest in Lux
Unicorn Limited, details of which are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 22 December 2014 and
the Company’s circular dated 23 March 2015.

Pursuant to the CB5,

(1)

the maturity date of the CB5 is the date falling on
the day being the third anniversary of the issue date
of the CB5 or if that is not a business day, the first
business day thereafter;

the holder of the CB5 can convert the CB5 into
Share (“Conversion Share”) during the period
commencing from the date of first issue of the CB5
up to and including the date falling on the seventh
day immediately prior to the maturity date of the
CB5 provided that if (a) the Company shall default
in making payment in full in respect of the CB5
which shall have been called for redemption on the
date fixed for redemption thereof or (b) the CB5 has
become due and payable prior to the maturity date
by reason of the occurrence of any of the events of
default described in the instrument constituting the
CB5 or (c) the CB5 is not redeemed on the
maturity date, without prejudice to the right of the
holder of the CB5 to receive default interest, the
conversion right attaching to such CB5 will revive
and/or will continue to be exercisable up to, and
including, the close of business on the date upon
which the full amount of the moneys (both principal
and interest) payable in respect of the CB5 has
been duly received by the holder of the CBS5,
PROVIDED THAT no holder of the CB5 shall
exercise any conversion rights attached to the CB5
to the extent that immediately after such conversion
(i) the holder of the CB5 together with parties
acting in concert with it, taken together, will,
directly or indirectly, control or be interested in 30%
or more of the voting rights of the Company (or
such percentage as may from time to time be
specified in the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and
Mergers as being the level for triggering a
mandatory general offer) or otherwise being obliged
to make a general offer for Shares in accordance
with the requirement of the Hong Kong Code on
Takeovers and Mergers or (i) there will not be
sufficient public float of the Shares as required
under the GEM Listing Rules;
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(38)  the initial conversion price is HK$0.18 per Conversion
Share, which are subject to adjustments;

(4)  the CB5 bears interest of 9% per annum and the
holder of the CB5 is entitled to request the
Company to pay interest to it under the provisions
of the CB5 by way of allotment and issuance of
new Shares (“Interest Conversion Shares”);

(5)  based on the initial conversion price of HK$0.18 per
conversion share and assuming full conversion of
the CB5 and all interest on the CB5 are paid by
Interest Conversion Shares, there will be up to
1,666,666,666 Conversion Shares and up to
450,000,000 Interest Conversion Shares. As at
31 December 2018, 1,110,000,000 Conversion
Shares and nil Interest Conversion Share have been
allotted and issued respectively; and

(6) the CB5 matured on 14 April 2018. In accordance
with the loan agreement dated 9 March 2018
entered into between the Company and Mr. Sin
Kwok Lam, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, the CB5 with principal amount of
HK$4,200,000 was settled by the Company by way
of loan from shareholder. The Company also
entered into a supplementary loan agreement with
Mr. Sin on 14 April 2018, pursuant to which, the
Company issued promissory note for the settlement
of the CB5 with principal amount of
HK$96,000,000. During the year ended
31 December 2018, the CB5 was fully redeemed by
the Company by way of issue of promissory note
and loan from shareholder.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company did not have
reserves available for distribution to shareholders (2017:
approximately HK$49.08 million).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer

Mr. Chow Kai Weng (Appointed as Chairman on 4 May
2018 and appointed as Chief Executive Officer on
13 June 2018)

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Resigned on 4 May 2018)
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Vice Chairperson, Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Law Po Yee (Resigned as Chief Executive Officer on
18 June 2018 and resigned as Vice Chairperson and
Executive Director on 15 November 2018)

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Wang Chun (Appointed on 4 May 2018)
Mr. Ho Leung Ting (Appointed on 15 November 2018)
Ms. Sin Ho Yee (Resigned on 15 November 2018)

Non-executive Directors

Dr. Lam Lee G.
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim (Resigned on 5 January 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert
Mr. Li Kit Chee
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor (Resigned on 1 July 2018)
Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick
(Resigned on 1 January 2019)

In accordance with Bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Ho
Leung Ting, being appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy on the Board, shall retire and, being eligible, will
offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with Bye-law 84 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Chow
Kai Weng and Dr. Lam Lee G. shall retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. All
other Directors continue in office.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years. The
service contract is terminable by either party by serving a
written notice of not less than one calendar month to the
other.

Each of the Non-executive Directors and the Independent
Non-executive Directors has been appointed for a term of
two years with specific terms as stated in the letter of
appointment or reappointment. The letter of appointment
or reappointment is terminable from either party by
serving a written notice not less than one calendar month
to the other.

Annual Report 2018
ZE-\FH

HEF BTESRTHER

BERLZT (MR- N\EAAT=ZARETRA
BN -F-N\F+-A+AAREAERR
HITER)

BTES

MWahskiE (R -F— \FRANAREM)

MREAE(R_T-NEF+—-A+HBEZE)
EREZE(R_T—-N\F+—-ATHEAHE)
ERTES

MEEEL

FHEAEER _ZT-NF-—ARBEE)
BIkRTES

EECEE

FHZEE

RARZEE(RZF—N\FLA—BEIE)
HEREEHER
(RZZE—NF—H—BEHE)

KB A RAARESQEK MmELEREETGE
TUEHEZEEER ANAR TJEJ:'Hxiiﬂi
ARELER HERGEEBIMEBESE-

Sm
Ty

% B
%»

H

K]

AIANRIZESAE  BRRAREERMRIEE L
FIEERRBFAE EER HEREN
BEBESEE MEEMEREERT -

o> 3 5
m

EHRRE X

ERTERECHARBFTLERR/R=F2Z2RBEA
WeBARARBENATHEP —THTAE—HELL
C—EEAZEHEBHMT AL -

%3F$ﬂﬁ§$&%ﬁ3lﬁﬂﬁ%$&ﬁﬁZ%Wﬁi*,E:

BREMBNEDREEEN - EoNBIEE T &
EEP HAB—HmBEHTD *1IJ§HZ$E
T AR ©

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETILEMERAA

9



98

Annual Report 2018
ZE-N\EH

Directors' Report EEX & HREZ

Each of the Executive Directors is entitled to a basic
salary and a discretionary bonus, and each of the Non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors is entitled to a director’'s fee, subject to an
annual revision by the remuneration committee of the
Board.

Details of the directors’ fees or emolument payable to
Directors are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Board considers all the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company and
their respective associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO”) which were required to be notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
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o

register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant
to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as

HMEBAEZLRZELMARAZEZ R AR K
RIEGEM E TR BIE5.461825.6718 2 R EBME
RARNERFTz S MABWNT

follows:
1. Long Positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 1. REXTEREEIBTZEER(KRHZ
each of the Company (“Shares”) 38

Approximate
percentage of
the issued

Capacity/Nature Number of share capital
Name of Director of interest shares held of the Company
ity 1EAXAATSET
ESKE By tEnHE BRHEE BRAZBHESELE
(Note 1)
(1)
Mr. Chow Kai Weng Beneficial Owner 1,000,000 0.02%
JERL R 58 A EmEA A
Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick Beneficial Owner 4,240,000 0.09%
HEEHE EmEA A
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert Beneficial Owner 3,000,000 0.07%
ECEAE EmEA A
Mr. Li Kit Chee Beneficial Owner 4,480,000 0.10%
T2 RE BEmEAA
Notes: H 5
1. This is based on the total issued shares as at 1. HHER-_FE—NF+-_A=+—H2Z

31 December 2018 (i.e. 4,517,161,222 shares).

O 21T (B14,517,161,2220%) °
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2.

Long positions in the underlying Shares 2. RERERZEE

Approximate

percentage of

the issued share

Number of capital of the

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held Company

EERAT

E#fTRAZ

ESKE S #EnmnE itk 8B BHE 3L

(Note 1)

(M EE1)

Mr. Chow Kai Weng Beneficial Owner 45,063,695 1.00%
JE R 28 5% A EnfE A (Note 2) (Fft 5£2)

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick Beneficial Owner 2,307,024 0.05%
=REHK EmEAA (Note 3) (Fff ££3)

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert Beneficial Owner 1,546,896 0.03%
FLCEE EmEAA (Note 4) (Pt 524)

Mr. Cheng Wang Chun Beneficial Owner 44,980,000 1.00%
IEIN v BEnEA A (Note 5) (Mt 5%£5)

Notes: B 5

1.

This is based on the total issued Shares as at
31 December 2018 (i.e. 4,517,161,222 Shares).

These underlying Shares represent () 24,888 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Chow Kai Weng on
29 September 2010 pursuant to the share option
scheme adopted on 22 July 2002 and terminated
on 29 September 2010 (“Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme”) under which Mr. Chow may exercise the
said options from 29 September 2010 to
2 September 2020 at an exercise price of HK$2.89
per Share; (i) 58,807 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Mr. Chow on 28 March 2011 pursuant
to the share option scheme adopted on
29 September 2010 (“New Share Option Scheme”)
under which Mr. Chow may exercise the said
options from 28 March 2012 to 27 March 2021 at
an exercise price of HK$7.62 per Share; and (iii)
44,980,000 Shares to be issued upon exercise of
the physically settled share options granted to
Mr. Chow on 16 May 2017 pursuant to the New
Share Option Scheme under which Mr. Chow may
exercise the said options from 16 May 2017 to
15 May 2020 at an exercise price of HK$0.2456
per Share.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA
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3. These underlying Shares represent (i) 33,420 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Prof. Wong Lung Tak,
Patrick on 20 May 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme under which Prof. Wong may
exercise the said options from 20 May 2010 to
19 May 2020 at an exercise price of HK$3.38 per
Share; (i) 33,604 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Prof. Wong on 28 March 2011 pursuant
to the New Share Option Scheme under which Prof.
Wong may exercise the said options from 28 March
2012 to 27 March 2021 at an exercise price of
HK$7.62 per Share; and (i) 2,240,000 Shares to be
issued upon exercise of the physically settled share
options granted to Prof. Wong on 16 May 2017
pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme under
which Prof. Wong may exercise the said options
from 16 May 2017 to 15 May 2020 at an exercise
price of HK$0.2456 per Share.

4. These underlying Shares represent (i) 33,292 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert
on 13 May 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme under which Mr. Chui may exercise
the said options from 13 May 2010 to 12 May
2020 at an exercise price of HK$3.66 per Share; (ii)
33,604 Shares to be issued upon exercise of the
physically settled share options granted to Mr. Chui
on 28 March 2011 pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme under which Mr. Chui may exercise
the said options from 28 March 2012 to 27 March
2021 at an exercise price of HK$7.62 per Share;
and (i) 1,480,000 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Mr. Chui on 16 May 2017 pursuant to
the New Share Option Scheme under which
Mr. Chui may exercise the said options from
16 May 2017 to 15 May 2020 at an exercise price
of HK$0.2456 per Share.

5. These underlying Shares represent 44,980,000
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the physically
settled share options granted to Mr. Cheng Wang
Chun on 16 May 2017 pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme under which Mr. Cheng may
exercise the said options from 16 May 2017 to
15 May 2020 at an exercise price of HK$0.2456
per Share.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief
executive of the Company or their associates had, as at
31 December 2018, any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL 32 B At N L B A B
SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER i By 2 BE 2 B R AT
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND

SHORT POSITIONS IN THE

SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the persons or corporations, RZE—NF+ZA=+—H REAXARAZR
other than a director or chief executive of the Company, FH R EIRPIEXVEBEI36IEREFE 2 EL M
who had interests or short positions in the shares and Fracsk AR RIBEMNE - A ALTSEE (B
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the RABESZRATHAHIN KA QT Z K REH
register required to be kept under section 336 of Part XV B ERERIAR

of the SFO or had otherwise been notified to the
Company were as follows:

1. Substantial shareholders’ long position in the 1. EERERBHZER
Shares
Approximate
percentage of the
Capacity/ Number of issued share capital
Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held of the Company
EEAT
EETEREZ
BREE S HEEHE HERHEHE BAE S
(Note 1)
(MF3E1)
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (“Mr. Sin”) BenefLCial Owner 795,580,623 17.61%
BEBIMSE ([ AR ED) EmEA A
Interest of Spouse (Note 2) 23,352,000 0.52%
B 48 4 2= (PfT 522)
Ms. Law Po Yee (“Ms. Law”) Beneficial Owner 23,352,000 0.52%
BERZLT([#LZLTD EmEAB A
Interest of Spouse (Note 3) 795,580,623 17.61%
B 4% 4 == (FfT 5£3)
Tse Young Lai Beneficial Owner 563,547,600 12.48%
g EmEB A
Notes: B 5
1. This is based on the total issued Shares as at 1. WHERZTE-—N\F+ZA=+—HHZ
31 December 2018 (i.e. 4,517,161,222 Shares). BB BT (A14,517,161,2220 B 1) °
2. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Sin, being the spouse of 2. BIEFS ARG rEE(BrLt 2B
Ms. Law, was deemed to be interested in all the BIWEAAERBELTHBEZN 2 RN
Shares in which Ms. Law was interested. HHER -
3. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Law, being the spouse of 3. BEFEHFRBEGD Bzt OEkEZR
Mr. Sin, was deemed to be interested in all the BYER AN ETEEE RN 2GS P
Shares in which Mr. Sin was interested. WA -
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Substantial shareholder’s long position in the

underlying Shares

Capacity/Nature of

TERFRERKG 2R

Approximate
percentage of the

Number of issued share capital

Name of shareholder interest shares held of the Company
EARATSHIT

BEREE L3V 13 iR 8B BARZBHE S
(Note 1)
(P 5E1)

Ms. Law Beneficial Owner (Note 2) 11,822,483 0.26%

B4+ Emika A (E2)

Mr. Sin Interest of Spouse (Note 3) 11,822,483 0.26%

ik Bic 48 e 25 (Pt 553)

Notes: BT

This is based on the total issued Shares as at
31 December 2018 (i.e. 4,517,161,222 Shares).

These underlying Shares represent (i) 3,982,080
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the physically
settled share options granted to Ms. Law on
29 September 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme under which Ms. Law may exercise
the said options from 29 September 2010 to
2 September 2020 at an exercise price of HK$2.89
per Share; (i) 3,360,403 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Ms. Law on 28 March 2011 pursuant to
the New Share Option Scheme under which
Ms. Law may exercise the said options from
28 March 2012 to 27 March 2021 at an exercise
price of HK$7.62 per Share; and (i) 4,480,000
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the physically
settled share options granted to Ms. Law on
16 May 2017 pursuant to the New Share Option
Scheme under which Ms. Law may exercise the
said options from 16 May 2017 to 15 May 2020 at
an exercise price of HK$0.2456 per Share.

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Sin, being the spouse of
Ms. Law, was deemed to be interested in all the
underlying Shares in which Ms. Law was interested.

WHERZZE—NF+_A=+—HH=
B2 B 1T (B14,517,161,2220% A& D) ©
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NWA-—BHYMITEmaERE TFEEA
FRE2.8978 T ; (WA RIEFERE BN =
T——F=-A-FN\HETFTEZLHNEY
EEHEREEITEES T ¥ 17.23,360,403
BEH BHBLZTAAR-_ZE—=—F=A4
—t+NBEZE-—F=ZA=-++tHHMHE
TT{E AT AE AR A - TEE AT RT.628 T
KR BENEREAER =T —tFH
ATAABRFELINEDEEEREE
17 1F 1% #5 T 3% 17 24,480,000/% B% 15 -+ 1&
I BEtAIR=—_SE—+ERA+AAE
—E-FER A+ A HERETE R MR
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the bR EXFaEN BEZZE-N\F+A=+—
Company has not been notified of any persons, other A ARBWAMBEMALT(RARREEFHETE
than a director or chief executive of the Company, who ITHABBRIN RARBIRMD IR P #HE R
had interests or short positions in the shares or BEHE RFEHIEPIEXVELEISBIRMRETEER
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be MALENBERARR A EENEZIAR

disclosed to the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of Part XV of the

SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES ik A HE 5T &1

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole shareholder of BEALNKE—BRER-_ZEZE_FLA=-+=H
the Company dated 22 July 2002, the Company ZEMAZRER ARRBEKEEHERARILEETX
conditionally adopted and approved Post-IPO Share ANHABREBRESTE - BEENETZERRINA
Option Scheme. The principal terms of which are set out HAZZE-_F+ANAZARRBRERKE
in Appendix IV to the prospectus of the Company dated A e

9 October 2002.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the extraordinary BREBEARTR-_ZE—ZFAA-_THLERTZE
general meeting of the Company dated 29 September REFRRE EBBZRFESR  FBRESER
2010, the New Share Option Scheme was adopted and WeomBER ARIBREERET B WAL - S
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was terminated. The BREFEZEZRREREARTRZZE—ZFAN
principal terms of New Share Option Scheme are set out ANBEEHZBERA -

in the circular of the Company dated 6 September 2010.

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme RAFBREBRETE

]
R-ZT—N\F+-A=+—8 REBRKAMH

As at 31 December 2018, the share options to subscribe 118
for an aggregate of 4,073,680 shares of the Company RerEREASEZEMAIRBERALA S H
granted pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme 4,073,680 Bl w B ER KR ETFE R ZZ
were outstanding. The details of the Post-IPO Share —NE+ZA=+—-—B2ZEXRRRABIKREERE
Option Scheme as at 31 December 2018 are set out as FREIFFENT
follows:
Number of share options
BREYE
Exercise Outstanding as at
price per As at  Granted Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 31 December 2018
Category of Share 1 January 2018 during during during during R-F-N\E
participants B Date of grant Exercise period RZF—N\E  the year the year  the year the year +=ZA=+-H
SEANER fTHE RHEH Eigid ] —-A-B E£ARE E£ATE  FRER FRES HRITE
(HKS)
(#7)

Directors 3.66 13 May 2010 13 May 2010-12 May 2020 33,292 - - - - 33,292
% —Z-TFREAT+=H —Z-TFHEATZH -

“Z-TFRA+TZH
Directors 3.38 20 May 2010 20 May 2010-19 May 2020 91,905 - - 58,485 - 33,420
% —Z-T5RA=+A —T-TERA-1AH -

ZZ-ZERATAA
Directors 2.89 3 September 2010 29 September 2010- 11,971,128 - - 7,964,160 - 4,006,968

2 September 2020
% —Z-TFRAZH ZZ-ZEAAZTAA -

—E-FFAACH
Total 12,096,325 - - (8,022,645) - 4,073,680
it 4
Note: All share options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option sy : BIEBEEAAHBELERESIRENERES

Scheme are vested immediately. HE NSRS -

"]ll National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA
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New Share Option Scheme

In accordance with the resolution passed at the annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) held on 29 June 2017, the
scheme limit on the grant of options under the New Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company has been refreshed to up to 449,848,122
Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at the AGM
date based on 4,498,481,222 Shares in issue (excluding
share options previously granted, outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed or exercised under the New Share Option Scheme)
(the “Refreshed Scheme Limit”"); and the Directors are
authorised, at their absolute discretion, to grant share
options to subscribe for Shares within the Refreshed
Scheme Limit in accordance with the rules of the New
Share Option Scheme; to allot, issue and deal with the
Shares pursuant to the exercise of share options granted
under the New Share Option Scheme within the
Refreshed Scheme Limit; and to do such acts and
execute such documents for or incidental to implement
the New Share Option Scheme within the Refreshed
Scheme Limit.

i R A A et B

BER-_ZE—+tFNA-THLBETZRERASE
Ae((MRBEXS) LBBZRER  REH
BEREAZEERARQRATWEMERETERLE
M2 A 8RR B E E T = & $449,848,122/% %
0 BLA4,498,481,2220 B 31 TR 1D B EE » AR
BRERAFASE A D ETIRG Z210% (IR 15 5758 %
ERTEI Z AT ~ BMRTTEE - FEEE  RREITEZ
BRERIN(TEFAERE])  RERES2E
BB RIE B RET S 2 R AT RE KRG
BRI HEUEHAZREAR : NIRENE
PR BT L 2 BT - B g - B AT
NEBERGD  BBUEFHAEREAR NEE
REFFERBHEERNNTHBERETSELSE
RE1TE %A B -
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As at 31 December 2018, the share options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 270,410,579 Shares granted pursuant
to the New Share Option Scheme were outstanding. The
details of the share options granted under the New Share
Option Scheme as at 31 December 2018 are set out as

RZE-NE+-_A=+—H REFBERES
BN % A R A 270,410,570 AR 19 2 BB AR 1)
RETE -R_Z-N\F+_A=+—RB2ZRE
MEREAROINBERESBOT

follows:
Number of share options
BRENE
Outstanding
Exercise Asat  Granted Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled as at
Category of price per 1 January during the during the during the during 31 December
participants Share Date of grant  Vesting period Exercise period 2018 year year year  the year 2018
I3
—F-0\F
I3 +=A
Bk —F-0\f =+-8
SEAER fiffE RHEH BEH s -B-8 E£REE EFATE ERXY  EREH HARTE
(HKS)
(1)
Directors 7.62 28 March 2011 28 March 2011- 28 March 2012- 8,232,987 - - (3,402,408) - 4,830,579
27 March 2012 27 March 2021
EX —T——F “T—#-A-tN\BE —E--£=A-tN\AE
=AZt+/B ZR-Z#ZAZttR  ZBRZ-FZA-t+tH
Directors 0.2456 16 May 2017 - 16 May 2017- 65,140,000 — (3,000,000) (4,480,000) - 57,660,000
15 May 2020 (Note)
£3 “EkF - “ET-tFRATARE (ki
AA+AA “Z-ZFRATEA
Other participants ~ 0.2456 16 May 2017 - 16 May 2017- 207,920,000 - - - — 207,920,000
15 May 2020
E28EAL —Z—+tf - ZZ-tERATARE
AA+/A CZCZFRATRRA
Total 281,292,987 — (3,000,000) (7,882,408) — 270,410,579
2y

Note: The weighted average closing price of

shares of the

Company immediately before the date on which the
options were exercised is HK$0.41.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl #R& XL EMERAA
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)

New Share Option Scheme’s purpose

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to
attract and retain the best available personnel, to
provide additional incentive to selected person and
to promote the success of the business of the
Group.

Qualifying participants

The participants of the New Share Option Scheme
include any employee of the Company or any
subsidiary of the Company, a director, a
shareholder, a supplier, a customer or any
subsidiary of the Company; an agent, adviser,
consultant, strategist, contractor, sub-contractor,
expert or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support or any
valuable services to Company or any of its
subsidiary; and a holder of any securities issued.

Maximum number of shares

In accordance with the resolution passed at the
AGM, the scheme limit on the grant of options
under the New Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company was
refreshed to up to the Refreshed Scheme Limit, i.e.
449,848,122 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in
issue as at the date of the AGM (i.e.
4,498,481,222 Shares in issue) (excluding share
options previously granted, outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed or exercised under the New Share Option
Scheme) and representing approximately 9.10% of
the issued Shares as at the date of this annual
report (i.e. 4,945,930,452 Shares); and the Directors
are authorized, at their absolute discretion, to grant
share options to subscribe for Shares within the
Refreshed Scheme Limit in accordance with the
rules of the New Share Option Scheme; to allot,
issue and deal with the Shares pursuant to the
exercise of share options granted under the New
Share Option Scheme within the Refreshed Scheme
Limit; and to do such acts and execute such
documents for or incidental to implement the New
Share Option Scheme within the Refreshed Scheme
Limit.

i)

MEBRE A

M EERSIRBREREFOAS - ALK
BEALTIRMEIMNER U RESHAKE R
R

RERZEE
BRI 2REREARRHEEM
MEBARMEIMES BF KRR HE

- BPRARBEMMBLRR  MARE
sk B AT ) B8 2 B 52 R AT 3 sk H b e T 2 R
EJZE@EE@HW%E’UREE B EXE
M~ SRBSED - AR - DAME  EHRE
g &f{rﬁﬂﬁéﬁm%ﬂ’ﬁwﬁ/\

KR DE#A

RERABRRAEFARS LBBZRER  BIE
FTEE AR AE AT B R AR BT A E 3R AR AT 2
REBEEREZASRBECEFTEZEFNTER
% 0 B0449,848, 12208 &1 - 1R FRI K&
B H TR (BN4,498,481,2220% © 35 17
B&1D) 210% (RIEFTEREF S 2 AT
BARITEE « TE8H ~ RFKITE 2 BRI
MAERAKERB BB TR G
4,945,930,452% f% 19) #99.10% : M & # &
EREBBERENERETS ZRANELA
RER D ZEBIRE  BEANEFAERES
BR o RAIREFTIE IR S AT 2 BB AR e
TTER BB BITRERERD  HEUE
FetgREAR  NAEREFTEIRESR
ERNRTHERETEER BT RET
B -
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(iv)

Maximum entitlement of each qualifying participant

No qualifying participant shall be granted any
options which, if exercised in full, would result in
such person’s maximum entitlement exceeding 1%
of the aggregate number of Shares for the time
being issued and issuable under the New Share
Option Scheme in the 12-month period up to and
including the proposed grant date unless such grant
is approved in advance by the Shareholders in
general meeting. No qualifying participant who is a
substantial Shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director, or any of their respective
associates shall be granted any options, which, if
exercised in full, would result in the shares issued
and issuable to such person under the New Share
Option Scheme in the 12-month period up to and
including the proposed grant date for such options,
unless such grant of options is approved in
advance by the Shareholders of the Company in
general meeting: (a) representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the number of Shares then in issue; and (b)
having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on each relevant
date on which the grant of such options is made to
such person under the relevant scheme, in excess
of HK$5 million.

Option period

The share options may be exercised in whole or in
part by the participant at any time during the
exercise period, i.e. not exceed 10 years from the
date of grant of the relevant new share options
pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme, by
delivering to the Company a notice duly signed in a
form approved by the Board (together with payment
of the exercise price in full in respect of each new
share to be subscribed for) and delivery of the new
share option certificate for amendment or
cancellation.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised

No offer of a new share option which is capable of
or open for acceptance shall be made after the
expiry of the exercise period pursuant to the New
Share Option Scheme.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA
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(vii)

(v

Payment on acceptance of the option

HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the Company on
acceptance of the share option offer. The share
option offer will be offered for acceptance for a
period of 14 days from the date on which the offer
is granted.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price for the share under the New
Scheme will be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of making the offer
of grant of a new share option but in any case the
subscription price must be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of the offer of grant, which must be a
business day; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business day
immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

Remaining life of the New Share Option Scheme

The New Share Option Scheme will remain in force
for a period of 10 years commencing on the date
on which the New Share Option Scheme becomes
unconditional. The Board may amend any of the
provisions of the New Share Option Scheme or
withdraw or otherwise terminate the New Share
Option Scheme at any time but no alterations shall
be made to the advantage of any participant unless
approved by the Shareholders in general meeting.
All new share options granted prior to such
termination and not then exercise shall continue to
be valid and exercisable subject to and in
accordance with the terms of the New Share
Option Scheme.

(vii)

(vii)

ERES NI AT

EREARENBEREZZNZRARARA
XMIAET BREZZHAINKLENHA
HIREE14RA T A -

BETREIEE

FE THRMDITEESHESENREER
HFERERE2ERNBET  ERBEESR
MARLEATI=Z5FNESE  ()BRH
NREREAH(MERLEEREHRIHE
ARERMBOKHE: (\ROREERSE
REAHA A EACEREMIAEARER
FrsR ey F W™ (8 - R(i)kHmEE -

MEBRER B 2R TF

¥R RO R 810 B B BUE AT 81X R BRI 2
BEFOFAER - EE SR BERER B
P A 5 81 B9 AT R M6 3C - B E Bk DA EL At 05 5
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed below, no Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance subsisting during
or at the end of the year under review:

i the Directors’ interests in the CB5 as set out below:

RN R

BTXREEN) BEEENDBEENRELTE
BIEMEARS RHRANTAELHER
B E AR

TERBJNESNF AR A RREST 2

As at Outstanding as at

1 January Acquired Converted Transferred Red d 31D b
Name of the Director Date of acquisition 2018  during the year  during the year  during the year  during the year 2018
RZF-N\%&

R=%-/A% +ZA=+-8
BB ['d 1=E:1] —-A-8 3104 FRRK ERER ERED i RITE
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Mr. Sin 22 December 2014 100,200,000 - - ~ 100,200,000 -

Vbt —E-mE+=-A=+Z=H

100,200,000 - - — 100,200,000 -

i Mr. Sin’s interests in the promissory note (“PN1”) i, GREREARER ([AEEE1DREFR
which was in the principal amount of 17 B Hi /K € %8 /A80,000,0007% TE)ZEEE
HK$80,000,000 and issued by the Company on TEARBIR-_E—RAFHNATHRBEIT-
15 April 2015. The PN1 expired on 14 April 2018. EAEBRIBER - NFNW )E! + A E
The Company has fully repaid the principal amount TR NYN _JEEA@EEHHWE?%W BEXe o
and the interest accrued thereon during the year &FEEJrﬂ S oA HBBICELZHFBHNAR
under review. Further details of the PN1 are set out ANEIRHA-Z— I7_fl¢+ A=-+=-8z%
in the announcement of the Company dated %&ZK RIRA-—T—RF=RA=-+=H
22 December 2014 and the Company’s circular 1
dated 23 March 2015;

ii.  Mr. Sin’s interests in the promissory note (“PN4”) i. AR A £ %8 A104,640,0007 T & A AR
which was in the principal amount of ’&ETE’\\\_ T-NFOATHBETHALE
HK$104,640,000 and issued by the Company on BUERALERL]) 2 =AD& E R
14 April 2018 to settle part of the principal and EH@H&E%E’J$/£&F§J7F‘J B O R4
interest accrued on the CB5. The PN 4 has a REIR A EBITREHERX27EA - Z@EF
maturity of approximately 27 months from the date EIRFB8%E AR RERIEA
of issue and bears coupon interest at 8% per BEAT -
annum, accrued monthly and payable in full on the
maturity date.

iv.  The Directors’ interests in the Post-IPO Share Option v. EBEERBHAAATEERBERESZEE
Scheme, details of which are set out under the HAEEHRAESTEREEPIESREET
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ BABRKG, - HEARGD REHF 2w X
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Bl—E:

Shares and Debentures” of this Directors’ report;
v.  The Directors’ interests in the New Share Option V. E%E’S?ﬁﬁﬁﬂx%ﬁ'ﬂZ%fﬁ HBERHRAAE

Scheme, details of which are set out under the
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” of this Directors’ report;

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA
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vi.  The Directors’ interests in the Shareholders’ loan and v. TRIINESFARIEERRARFAESEN
other loan agreement advanced by the Directors to ZHMWERBHE B

the Company as set out below:

Outstanding as

As at Drawdown Repaid at
Interest Principle 1 January during during 31 December
Name of the Director Date of loan Nature of loan rate amount 2018 the year the year 2018
R-F-N\%£
R-F-N\E +ZA=+-H
EEfE ek HRMYE flx 28 -A-H ERRE EREE RIEE
HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HKS$
B B BT BT B
Mr. Sin 12 May 2015 Term Loan 13% 7,500,000 7,500,000 - - 7,500,000
BERE “Z-R¥EATZH BHER
02 June 2015 Term Loan 13% 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
—E-HEFXAZH BHER
11 August 2015 Term Loan 11% 3,000,000 3,000,000 — — 3,000,000
—Z-R¥N\A+-H BHER
25 August 2015 Revolving Loan 12% 20,000,000 16,000,000 - - 16,000,000
“Z-RENAZTER EREXR
09 October 2015 Revolving Loan 10% 50,000,000 40,000,000 - - 40,000,000
—E-REtANA BRER
03 November 2015 Term Loan 10% 62,000,000 62,000,000 — — 62,000,000
—Z-n%+-A=H BHER
29 January 2016 Revolving Loan 11% 150,000,000 105,000,000 - - 105,000,000
“E-AE-A-thA ERER
19 February 2016 Term Loan - 40,000,000 40,000,000 - - 40,000,000
—T-RE-AtAhR BHER
19 February 2016 Revolving Loan 6% 100,000,000 59,900,000 — — 59,900,000
ZZ-REZAtAR ERER
30 June 2016 Revolving Loan 15% 150,000,000 77,869,657 40,421,953 (12,922,286) 105,369,324
ZT-RERAZTHE BREX
14 April 2018 Term Loan 8% 84,200,000 - 84,200,000 - 84,200,000
—E-\EWATHE BHER
671,700,000 416,269,657 124,621,953 (12,922,286) 527,969,324
Ms. Law 01 October 2016 Term Loan 5% 39,748,800 35,660,834 . (95,055) 35,565,779
BRt ZZ-RE¥tA-H BHER
39,748,800 35,660,834 - (95,055) 35,565,779
Mr. Chow Kai Weng 01 October 2016 Term Loan 5% 48,048,000 46,250,400 - (24,330,200) 21,920,200
ARREE ZZ-"¥tA-H BHER
30 September 2017 Revolving loan 10% 50,000,000 5,000,000 5,693,997 - 10,693,997
—EZ-+EAA=TE BRER
98,048,000 51,250,400 5,693,997 (24,330,200) 32,614,197
809,496,800 503,180,891 130,315,950 (37,347 ,541) 596,149,300
Note: The maturity date of the term loans and revolving M : REEENAEHEREBREER ZEHA
loans from the Directors is on or after 30 June RZITE-NFARA=THLZE -

2019
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the share option scheme of the Company,
being equity-linked agreement of the Company subsisting
as at 31 December 2018, including the class and number
of shares that may be issued, and consideration that the
Company has or will receive, are disclosed under the
paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes” in this
“Directors’ report” on pages 104 to 109 of this annual
report.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
SCHEMES

Before 30 November 2000, the Group did not contribute
to any retirement benefit scheme for either its employees
or the Directors in Hong Kong. With effect from
1 December 2000, the Group had joined the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme under the rules and regulations
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority. The
Group’s employees in Hong Kong are required to join the
scheme. The Group has followed the minimum statutory
contribution requirement of 5% of eligible employees’
relevant aggregate income.

The Group’s subsidiary in the PRC, in compliance with
the applicable regulations of the PRC, participated in
social insurance schemes (including retirement benefit
scheme, medical insurance scheme and unemployment
benefit scheme) operated by the relevant local
government authorities. The Group is required to make
contribution to the social insurance schemes on behalf of
employees who are registered permanent residents in the
PRC. The insurance premium is borne by the Group and
the employees on a specified proportion of the
employees’ salaries laid down under the relevant PRC
law.

During the year, the employer’s contributions to the
retirement benefit scheme charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income amounted to
approximately HK$11,084,000 (2017: HK$10,156,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR
REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2018.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or controlling shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or their
respective close associates had any interest, whether
directly or indirectly, in a business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY
PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the
Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout
the year under review. The Company has arranged for
appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors
and the management arising out of corporate activities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC
FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, the Company maintained a sufficient public float as
at the date of this annual report.

RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of significant related party transactions undertaken
by the Group during the year in the ordinary course of
business are set out in Note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements. None of such related party
transactions falls under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with the applicable disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 46.29% of the Group’s revenue for the year
under review. The Group’s largest customer accounted
for approximately 36.17% of its revenue.

The five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
approximately 79.35% of the Group’s purchases for the
year under review. The Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 35.71% of its purchases.

e T BE 4

E=gARAZERR(EE RGEMET AR A K
WESEAZETHMBEAMENEANEEEXFENX
BFHAEBRBEFZEBTREBEAEE LR

B4 -

Y& e 5 A 1k S

REENAMGE 2 BEBEGE A MBER
EEADBEFEEELEN -ARRACHEEERSD
MERBRAIRRACEZS MW RBERTH LY
HENEEREEEEERRE -

TR o R I B

BREARARCARBESHNENRBEZES
REFHNER < XEAITAYMA  BERFR
B AABCHBRAENRRFRE -

188 W6k 5 A2 S Bk i S A By

AEERNFRNERRERBEPETNHE R
ATRGHBENGAVHERERM F42 - BHEERE
BT XS AGEM EM AR AFE20E TH[RIER
ZIRHEREIZINER - AR BEERBEGEM
ERRANFE0EETEBWERE

ERMBER REP

REBFE AEERAARRFMHAEEKAY
46.29% - MASEZ AR (EHKAL36.17% °
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None of the Directors, their respective close associates
nor shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers at any time during the year
under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance with sound and
reasonable corporate governance practices and
procedures with an aim of maximizing the shareholders’
interests as well as to enhancing the stakeholders’
transparency and accountability. In this respect, to the
best knowledge of the Board, the Company has complied
with all of the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules (“Corporate Governance Code”) then in force
during the year ended 31 December 2018, except the
followings:

As Mr. Chow Kai Weng serves as both the chairman
(“Chairman”) and the chief executive officer (“Chief
Executive Officer”) of the Company with effect from
13 June 2018, such practice deviates from the code
provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code. The
Board believes that vesting the roles of both the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer in the same
person can facilitate the execution of the Group’s
business strategies and enhance effectiveness of its
operation. Therefore, the Board considers that the
deviation from the code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code is appropriate in such circumstances.

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 49 to 73 of this annual report for details.

REQUIRED STANDARD OF
DEALINGS FOR DIRECTORSY’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors adopted by the
Company throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in
2002. As at the date of this annual report, the Audit
Committee comprises two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman)
and Mr. Li Kit Chee.

Mr. Chan Tin Lup, Trevor resigned on 1 July 2018 and
Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick resigned on 1 January
2019 as independent non-executive Directors and ceased
to be members of the Audit Committee accordingly.
Following the resignation of Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick
and as at the date of this annual report, the Company
only has two independent non-executive Directors and
two members of each of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
This will fall below the minimum number requirement
under Rules 5.05(1) and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company is identifying a suitable candidate to fill the
above vacancies.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee
reviewed the Company’s annual reports and financial
statements, interim reports and quarterly reports and
discuss with the management over issues relating to
auditing, internal control and financial reporting. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the audited financial results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 49 to 73 for details.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB”) resigned as
the auditors of the Group with effect from 28 December
2018. With the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
Elite Partners CPA Limited (“Elite Partners”) was
appointed as the new auditors of the Group with effect
from 28 December 2018 to fill the casual vacancy
following the resignation of HLB and to hold office until
the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company. The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2018 were audited by Elite
Partners.

CHANGE OF DIRECTORS' AND
DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

(1) Ms. Law Po Yee resigned as Chief Executive Officer
of the Company on 13 June 2018 and resigned as
a Vice Chairperson and Executive Director of the
Company on 15 November 2018.
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@

(10)

(11)

Mr. Chow Kai Weng, a then Vice Chairperson of the
Company, was appointed as the Chairman of the
Company on 4 May 2018. He was also appointed
as a Chief Executive Officer of the Company on
13 June 2018.

Ms. Sin Ho Yee resigned as an Executive Director
of the Company on 15 November 2018.

Mr. Cheng Wang Chun was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 4 May
2018.

Mr. Ho Leung Ting was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 15 November 2018.

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam resigned as the Chairman and a
Non-executive Director of the Company on 4 May
2018.

Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim resigned as a Non-executive
Director on 5 January 2018.

Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor resigned as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 1 July 2018.

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick resigned as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 1 January
2019.

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Asia Cassava
Resources Holdings Limited, shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock code: 841), with effect from 14 August
2018.

Dr. Lam Lee G. was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Aurum Pacific (China)
Group Limited, shares of which are listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 8148), with
effect from 1 January 2019. He was also appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Mingfa
Group (International) Company Limited, shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 846), with effect from
1 September 2018.

Updated biographical details of the Directors since the
2018 Interim Report of the Company are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” of this
annual report.
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Save as disclosed above, there were no substantial
changes to the Directors’ information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing
Rules.

On behalf of the Board

National Arts Entertainment
and Culture Group Limited
Chow Kai Weng
Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 20 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS™ REPORT
BIAGHMHEES

elite
< partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE MEMBERS OF NATIONAL ARTS
ENTERTAINMENT AND CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in
Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 127 to 273, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY
RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 3 in the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net
loss of approximately HK$415,558,000 for the year ended
31 December 2018 and, as of that date, the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately HK$715,347,000. As stated in Note 3,
these events or conditions, along with other matters as
set forth in Note 3, indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section,
we have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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Key audit matter

FAgET SR

Fair value of hotel properties and film studio

EIEYERBG WL LR E

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B ETNAEEARENSER

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

uﬁ/FﬁiT\ Hﬁ%#&%ﬂﬁuf17°

Hotel properties and film studio are property, plant and
equipment measured using the revaluation model. The
fair values of the hotel properties and film studio were
approximately HK$764 million and HK$885 million
respectively as at 31 December 2018. Management
engaged an independent external valuer to assist in
determining the fair values of the properties.

BEMERZEUIEREGEUAENNE  BF
Rt BEMERERUIR T - \F+_A=1—
B & 2 7 & 5 5l 49 /764,000,00078 7T 1885,000,00078
TLoEREBERA BB BEEMFGEAETZLSE
MENAARME-

The area is of most significance in our audit because
the balances are material and the valuations of the
hotel properties and film studio involved the use of
significant estimates and assumptions and judgements.
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Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of
the fair value of hotel properties and film studio mainly
included:

B E

BB EEE Y ERE RO R A E TR

BFIEeit:

Assessing the calculations methodology adopted by
management;

HZERERAMNGE L

Comparing the current year actual cash flows with
the prior year cash flow projections to consider if
the projections included assumptions that were
overly optimistic;

RAFENERReRA - FENRSRBALL
I M%F&%ﬁﬁ%%@?ﬂ%%@%ﬁﬁ;

Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions
(including operating margins, short term and long-
term growth rates and discount rates) based on our
knowledge of the business and industry; and

ERBMHEHMITENOER  FZEARERERE
BEENE EHREREHERXIRFTRE)NGE

{ERIYE

Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such
as approved budgets and considering the
reasonableness of these budgets.
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Key audit matter

FAgET SR

Impairment assessment of long-term other receivables

R R b [E Y = B 89 5 (B AF 1%

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B ETNAEEARENSER

Refer to notes 23 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

BLMBSEE VB ERERMF23Kk25 -

As at 31 December 2018, the net book value of trade
and other receivables amounted to HK$128 million and
HK$97 million respectively.
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Management performed credit evaluations for the
Group’s customers and assessed expected credit
losses of the receivables. These assessments were
focused on the customers’ and debtor’s settlement
history and their current ability to pay, and took into
account information specific to respective customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operated.

EREY BEEESET TSEN WFGTER
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All of these assessments
judgements of management.

FIBAZETESRERENEXFE -

We focused on this area because management made
subjective judgements over assessing the credit
standing of the Group’s customers and the estimation
of expected credit losses of trade and other

involved significant

receivables.
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Our procedures in relation to management’s Impairment
assessment of trade and long-term other receivables
mainly included:
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With respect to management’s credit evaluations for
the Group’s customers, we understood, evaluated
and validated the key controls over credit risk
management. Those key controls were related to
credit standing of the major customer, identification
of events that triggered the provision for impairment
of the receivables and estimation of the expected
credit losses.
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We obtained management’s assessment of expected
credit losses of the receivables and assessed the
reasonableness of the key underlying information
referenced by management. Where impairment
provision was individually made, we checked and
assessed whether the impairment provision was
properly supported by considering available
forward-looking information, the debtors’ aging
Ianalysis, settlement history and history of bad debt
0sses.
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In respect of receivables of individual customer
which had not been identified by management as
potentially impaired, we corroborated
management’s assessment with the external
evidence obtained from our independent research
on publicly available information, our examination of
the customers’ payment records during the current
year and subsequent to the year end, as well as
the historical collection records.

Based on our audit procedures, we were satisfied
that management’s assessments were consistent
with the evidence that we obtained.
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Key audit matter

FAgET SR

Carrylng amounts of land lease prepayments

THHEEREX R EE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B ETNAEEARENSER

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

BB A VB RERMEIS

The carrying amounts of land lease prepayments were
approximately HK$371 million as at 31 December
2018.

THEEEMNRIR T - NAFT_A=+—HNEHR
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The carrying amounts of land lease prepayments are
reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable.
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For the purpose of assessing impairment, the
recoverable amounts were determined by management
based on the facts and circumstances. In carrying out
the impairment assessments, significant judgement was
required to determine the reasonableness of key
assumptions, including discount rates and constructions
costs.
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Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment
of the carrying amount of the land lease prepayments
mainly include:

B E
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FEEEHE:

Conducting analytical procedures and assessing
management judgement of the carrying amounts of
land lease prepayments;

ETDIEF K
T B Y # f

FHEEREEAM L EEENFRER

Recalculating and checking the amount of
amortisation based on the amortisation rate and
considering whether amortisation methods are
consistent and reasonable; and

RFBETEHNFTEMERBIHESR
MERTER —BMEE &

b #F 7 2 54

Understanding of management’s process around
impairment assessment, where indicators existed.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not and will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA

A% L B A% B B R R
= AT

BMWBER RHGAMBRRERESTIFAE
BHARBMFFRERMERMBERBRRARG S IR
RE FTHAHERMBEENZEERE - A
FRBEARZERQTE(— NN —F) BOKER
BT (EREE) EL BRI ZIARERIERM
B AZBENY T @ ARE AR S EFEA
)\iﬁ%&ﬁdﬂ*&ﬂiﬁ& A BREESKTH
ReE EFERBLEB(EERSEIDETHE
7o R — EK% ARIR T FE B AR BE B3R o SR AR
FROLAT LA SR EF sk 8 R S| E - MR A BB E ]
BEENELARRAETEFAVBHRREMAEK
R B SRR A E R E - RI B RO 8E
AR AT WARAEE K -

ERB(EABEBFEAETERNBREF - B
BRTEXAE RETEREREE - ZMAT:

. BRI AN R EGEF SRR M ﬁli kG

BREFESAERBRANRER R Jr&%ﬂﬁ
%V&FLAFE”I%TEEL @ LA R ERFE 2 A

E’J%V?a}i EREMERNER - B

REFATRE S R B3R it EEER &
fﬁxﬁﬁﬁ; FEBRAEES 2 £ BREE
T30 R AREF 1 B By B8R R B e L B =
MAREEEIRNAFERM G R B AR
[ -

. TRREEAZEE A BES] - ARFHEE®
EZEFF B MY EKEW*BT i
MBERMEERER -

. EEEMERAEFTEENR
FHERTMAARBEENS M -

BEURELE



Annual Report 2018
ZE-\FH

Independent Auditors’ Report % i % B ffsk & E

AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors’ report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be

thought to bear on our independence,

and where

applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditors’ Report % i % B ffsk & E

AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditors’ report is Yip Kai Yin with Practising
Certificate number P05131.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10/F., 8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 20 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeRnkEtteERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-)\F¥ —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B E FHERT FEL
Revenue WA
— Goods and services - ERERH 7 115,350 144,403
— Rental K 7 35,066 76,969
— Interest — M8 7 3,421 -
Total revenue FER N 153,837 221,372
Other income Hipdg A 8 5,277 867
Other losses Hinfig 8 - (12,965)
Impairment loss of financial assets PREERESE 9 (7,495) (10,502)
Net exchange (losses)/gains E X (&18) s FE (42,712) 47,809
Cost of film production B BER AR (1,224) (1,210)
Staff costs BIRA 12 (51,629) (69,186)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BEREBTE
equipment 12 (63,247) (58,957)
Amortisation of land lease prepayments BT 4 b AE & 8 12 (13,757) (13,757)
Other operating expenses Hthe & &R (92,212) (126,996)
Finance costs BEKAR 11 (227,330) (165,563)
Loss on fair value changes of convertible  FI# I EA R 1 EZEEIE
bond 2,521) (4,902)
Gain on fair value changes of investment R &M% AR EEEH U
properties - 1,080
Impairment loss of land lease prepayment i &8 ZUREEE (71,473) —
Share of loss of an associate St — LA FEE - €]
Share of loss of a joint venture DE—HeEErEBE (1,072) (620)
Loss before income tax BRETEBAIEE 12 (415,558) (193,533)
Income tax expense FTS R R X 13 - —
Loss for the year FEEBE (415,558) (193,533)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ Hih2®E(FAX) WA
income
Items that will not be reclassified to EEJBEHNER
profit or loss
Loss on revaluation of properties held EfMFEERMENEE
for own use (28,637) (42,907)
Income tax credit relating to revaluation FHEMBIEERMENE
of properties held for own use iK% 7,159 10,727
Item that may be reclassified RETGHEEIBERNER
subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of MEBIINEBRBRERE
financial statements of foreign EEMELES
operations (56,582) 72,371
Other comprehensive (expense)/ XEERMpE2EGRX)
income for the year, net of tax W - OBRFIE (78,060) 40,191
Total comprehensive expense for AEFEEERIEE
the year (493,618) (153,342)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income AR R HEttEmKER
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2017
—B-)\f ZT—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B x F#ERT FEL
Loss for the year attributable to: EEEEEBE:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETE SN (415,556) (193,529)
Non-controlling interests R = (2) 4
(415,558) (193,533)
Total comprehensive expense BE2ERXEE:
attributable to: N
Owners of the Company EAVNISIEZZE N (493,616) (153,338)
Non-controlling interests IR (2) 4
(493,618) (153,342)
Loss per share BREBE
Basic and diluted ERREE (HK9.20 cents (HK4.45 cents
14 &) A Al
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBERRR

At 31 December 2018 R—_ZE—\F+-_A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-)\%F —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt Tt FET
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment L E N & 17 1,683,190 1,779,208
Land lease prepayments ERAEmEE 18 371,074 456,304
Investment in a joint venture SRETERE 20 5,328 6,400
Long-term receivables and investment & & W k18 & 18 &
deposits & 25 92,555 105,082
Pledged bank deposits EHEIFRITHER 2,278 —
2,154,425 2,346,994
Current assets RHEE
Film products and film production BYEMREREY
in progress E 21 1,210 2,420
Investments in films/dramas B/ BB R IENTE
production 22 1,311 986
Trade receivables FEUE 5 FIE 23 128,177 125,595
Inventories FE 24 2,928 2,981
Prepayments, deposits and other FERRIE - e kEAM
receivables JiE U Zk 18 25 54,492 81,472
Amount due from a joint venture JEU A & D EFIE 2,414 2,414
Assets classified as held for sale DEABIELEERE - 34,780
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTTHES 26 13,474 19,944
204,006 270,592
Current liabilities HREEE
Trade payables B8 SRR 27 19,979 25,666
Other payables and accruals HiEMNRERETER 28 83,771 115,992
Bank overdrafts RITE X 26 - 8,416
Loans from shareholders xR B E R 29 4,090 452,673
Borrowings BE 30 138,400 200,547
Finance lease obligation B S A 31 9,738 7,153
Bonds &% 32 660,424 306,369
Convertible bond Al % 15 & 33 - 106,697
Promissory notes EHER 34 - 83,991
Provision for income tax Fr 158 R & 2,951 2,951
919,353 1,310,455
Net current liabilities REBEFE (715,347) (1,039,863)
Total assets less current liabilities BEEERAHER 1,439,078 1,307,131
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position % & &1 4k iR &

At 31 December 2018 R—_ZE—\F+-_A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B & FHET FET
Non-current liabilities REEE
Loans from shareholders BREROER 29 506,941 51,387
Borrowings BE 30 54,659 20,655
Bonds BE%H 32 362,895 413,551
Promissory notes O EE 34 106,477 —
Finance lease obligation B 75 18 & 31 14,461 15,478
Deferred tax liabilities RIEMRIBAE 35 158,470 165,629
1,293,903 666,700
Net assets BEFE 145,175 640,431
Capital and reserves BXRHEE
Share capital [i& Z< 36 451,716 451,416
Reserves [EEEe (306,773) 188,781
Equity attributable to owners of NN R SN )
the Company = 144,943 640,197
Non-controlling interests FEERE R 232 234
Total equity E=EE 145,175 640,431
The consolidated financial statements were approved and RENBHRREHETER ZE—NAF=A=+
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on A EREENZE THTNIIEEREXEEFGE
20 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: z:
Chow Kai Weng Cheng Wang Chun
AR IR
Director Director
3 EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEEZEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Annual Report 2018
ZE-\FH

FATRFARE
Contributed Properties Convertible Attributable to
Share capital Share  Special reserve surplus revaluation Translation Share option bond equity  Accumulated non-controlling
(note 36) premium (note 37) (note 37) reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Subtotal interests Total
i3 HHEE RUER THRES
(Hit%) BHER (3 (Wito)  HREERR REEE  BRERR L Rithla it FERERER e
HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000
T T T T T T T T T T T T
A1 January 2017 RZT-tE-7-8 399,839 731,706 1000 8791 405015 [147456) 26209 15507 B70979) 639,740 28 639978
Capitalisation of loan interest
payables (note 36) 1211 15,359 - - - - - - - 2510 - 2510
Capitalisation of other payables
[note 36) 3,798 53,154 - - - - - - - 91,952 - 91932
Share issued upon exercise of
share options (note 36) 1,568 34% - - - - (1212 - - 3801 - 3801
Equty-setted share-based
payments (note 41) - - - - - - 31422 - - 31422 - 31422
Lapse of share options - - - - - - (4.559) - 4559 - - -
Transaction wih owners 51517 72,008 - - - - 2551 - 455 163795 - 163795
Loss for the year - - - - - - - - (193.529) (193.529) 0] (193533)
Loss on revaluation of properties
held for own use, et of tax - - - - (32,180 - - - - (32,180 - (32,180
Bxchange differences on
ranslation of financiel
statements of foreign
operafions - - - - - 31 - - - 31 - 31
Totel comprehensive fexpense))  BEE2E(RE) /
income for the year WABE - - - = (32,180) kil - - [193529) (153,338) 4] (153342)
At 31 December 2017 F-¢
A=+-1 451416 803,714 1,000 78,791 312,83 (75,087) 51,880 16,597 1,09,949) 640,197 24 640,431
Impect on inel applcation of ~ EREFEREHHE
HKFRS 9 fote § EHENRE
[iE#] = = = = = = - - (1679 (1679 - (1679
A1 January 2018 RR-N§-A-B 451416 803,714 1,000 78,791 312,83 (75,087) 51,880 16,597 1,067,622) 632,524 24 632,758
Share issued upan exercise of
share options (nofe 36) 300 81 - - - - (346) - - 3% - 3%
Lapsg of share options - - - - - - (9,622) - 9622 - - -
Extinguishment of convertble bond
by the way of issuance of
promissory note to substantil
shareholder - - 5,302 - - - - (16,597 16,507 5,302 - 5,302
Transfer of propertes revalvation £ RENEEZE
reserve {0 accumulted loss BfifEESZZ
upon disposal of relevant itEE
properties - - - - (16,344 - - - 16,344 - - -
Transaction wih owners EEAEANRS 30 781 5302 - (16,344 - 0.968) (15,507 41,563 6,037 - 6,037
Loss for the year - - - - - - = = (415,556) (45,5%6) %] (45,559
Loss on revaluation of propertes
eld for own us, net of tax - - - - (21,478) - - - - (21478) - (21478)
Exchange differences on ¥ 3
Hranglaion of fnanciel RELNENZE
statements of foreign
operations - - - - - (56,584) - - - (66,584) - (66,584)
Totel comprehensive fipense))  FEF2E(RE) /
income for the year HAEE - - - - (21478) 66,584) - - 415,556) (493,518) @ (493,620)
At 31 December 2018 RZF-NE
+ZA=1-1 451,716 804495 6,302 78,791 35,018 (131,671) 4812 - 1,441,615) 144943 282 145,175
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GEHENER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E—N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING BELBNEALRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax R 7% Al 15 18 (415,558) (193,533)
Adjustments for: BRE S EEL AR
Finance costs A& KR 227,330 165,563
Bank interest income |ITH B WA (16) (13)
Amortisation of film products BYEmMEHE 1,224 1,210
Amortisation of land lease prepayments TEAT L 7 & 8 5 13,757 13,757
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BEREBITE
equipment 63,247 58,957
Expenses recognised in respect of P = A IR K
equity-settled share-based payments R X = 31,422
Loss on fair value changes of MR ESF AR BEEEE
convertible bonds 2,521 4,902
Gain on fair value changes of investment & W% QAL EZEHE
properties g = - (1,080)
Impairment losses of interest receivables FEUF S8R E &R - 5,239
Impairment losses of investments in EY B RENRERSRE
films/drama production - 5,775
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LEME WEREKEDN
equipment ! 447 —
Loss on disposal of an intangible asset HE-HEREENERB - 79
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—HBE R RN EE - 110
Loss on capitalisation of loan interest EARCENERF ERER
payables - 1,570
Loss on capitalisation of other payables B AR E A BB R R 1B - 5,431
Impairment loss on available-for-sales AEHERENREEE
investment - 5,250
Impairment losses on trade and other B 5 & CH h FE U F IR 89
receivables B E &5 18 7,495 13
Impairment losses on land lease T A EEMFREESRE
prepayments 71,473 —
Share of loss of an associate oih— B g ARBE - 3
Share of loss of a joint venture Dih—EAEL T EEIE 1,072 620
Operating cash flows before movements in &8 & & & & ATA L&
working capital RERE (27,008) 105,275
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFERL/ (Em) 53 (567)
Increase in film products and film EYENREREYER
production in progress 0 (14) —
Increase in trade receivables FEUWE 5 B IR N (9,958) (114,468)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, il ﬁ RIE e REMER
deposits and other receivables IR A (18 7]1]) 68,254 (30,144)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables BB 5 3E( ﬂ L) I (4,533) 22,929
Decrease in other payables and accruals Hib BN RIERES B A
DA (22,894) (423)
NET CASH FORM/(USED IN) EEEBYN (FRREFR
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3,900 (17,398)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows %4

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZ_—F

fﬁ.ﬁumiﬁ

“NFE+ZA=t—RLFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Increase in films/dramas production

Interest received

Payments for property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of investment
properties

Proceeds from disposal of an intangible
asset

Investment deposits paid

Placement of pledged bank deposit

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Interest paid

Proceeds from shareholders loans

Repayments of shareholders loans

Proceeds from short-term borrowing

Repayments of short-term borrowing

Proceeds from issuance of bonds

Transaction costs of issuance of bonds

Repayments of bonds

Repayments of finance leases obligation

Proceeds from issue of shares upon
exercise of share options

NET CASH FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF YEAR

EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES ON THE BALANCE OF
CASH HELD IN FOREIGN
CURRENCIES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Bank overdrafts

BREZHNRERE

B BB REE
A S U
ME - BB RERENR

m%%%~%%&%ﬁ%%
I
ﬁ%&QW%%ﬁﬁ

HhE—RENEENMEHR

ENKREZS
FREEMBITER

RETHFAERSE

MEFHNRERE

EFE

B3R B 3 18 3

18 B BRE K

5 B 45 B PT 45 5OR
BEEEHEE

?ﬁ1ﬁ%ﬁﬁ

17185 M 2 5 A

BEES

R M E AR

BT ER TN
P15 3R IR

METHNREFE
BarR&FEEHEE
o GRD)FE#E
FENReRREEFEER

ExEBHHARIIMNERS
e d:0k 2

FXRBEERREXEER

ReRBRE&FHEEASRTH

Re RRITHES
RITEX

2018 2017
—E-N\%E —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
T FHET
(325) (300)
16 13
(63,444) (102,274)
300 —
34,780 —
- 1,000
(28,374) —
(2,364) —
(59,411) (101,561)
(195,553) (155,199)
40,422 98,593
(27,556) (61,876)
43,537 118,733
(71,553) (77,661)
866,392 412,457
(93,087) (87,557)
(506,401) (73,819)
(282) (2,573)
735 3,851
56,654 174,949
1,143 55,990
11,528 (4,218)
803 (40,244)
13,474 11,528
13,474 19,944
- (8,416)
13,474 11,528
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZ_—F

1.

GENERAL

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries as, the “Group”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 16 November 2001 as an
exempted company under the Companies Law,
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. On 14 October
2010, the Company deregistered in the Cayman
Islands and continued in Bermuda as an exempted
company under the laws of Bermuda with effect
from 14 October 2010. The registered office of the
Company is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong is Rm. L&M, 21/F., Kings Wing Plaza, Phase
1, No.3 On Kwan Street, Shek Mun, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Company is principally engaged in
investment holding. Details of the principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements. The principal
activities of the Group include film production and
distribution, the provision of management services
to artistes, event coordination, operations of film
studio and hotel and provision of travel related
products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is also the
functional currency of the Company and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (“HK$'0007)
unless otherwise stated.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B %5 R & Mi &

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS”")

New HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied a
number of new standards and interpretation issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time of which
the followings are relevant to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements:

e HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments;

e HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and amendments
to HKFRS 15; and

e HK(IFRIC) 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration.

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRS in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Application of HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9 has replaced HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. HKFRS
9 sets out the requirements for recognising and
measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and
some contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. In
accordance with the specific transitional provisions
set out in HKFRS 9, the Group has applied the
classification and measurement requirements
(including requirements relating to impairment) to
items that existed as of the date of initial
application (i.e. 1 January 2018) on a retrospective
basis based on the facts and circumstances and
business models that existed as at 1 January 2018.
However, the Group has decided not to restate the
comparative figures. Accordingly, the comparative
information continues to be presented based on the
requirements of HKAS 39 and hence may not be
comparable with the current year information. The
cumulative effect of initial application of HKFRS 9
has been recognised as adjustments to the opening
equity as of 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B %5 R & Mi &

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS")
(Continued)

New HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

()

Classification and measurement of financial
assets

In general, HKFRS 9 categories financial
assets into the following three classification
categories:

o amortised cost;

o fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI); and

. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

These classification categories are different
from those set out in HKAS 39 which
included held-to-maturity investments, loans
and receivables, available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets measured at
FVTPL. The classification of financial assets
under HKFRS 9 is based on the business
model under which the financial asset is
managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics.

Details about the Group’s accounting policies
for its financial assets and financial liabilities
are disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Group did not
designate or de-designate any financial asset
at FVTPL at 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B % 3R & Mi 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. BRHWRT R R ET A i

REVISED TO HONG KONG He & e Q) ([ 7 o B0 0% e o 4B
FINANCIAL REPORTING ) &)

STANDARDS (“HKFRS”)

(Continued)

New HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are REEERHERZHTEEMBREEAR
mandatorily effective for the current year EREVBRERRAEIEZ

(Continued)

Application of HKFRS 9 (Continued) JER BB BHEERZ95% ()

()  Classification and measurement of financial i) SBREEZHNERFEE)

assets (Continueq)

The following table shows a reconciliation TREIAEER=_ZT-—NF—H—
from how the Group’s financial assets existed AFENeREELRE BT ENE
as of 1 January 2018 were classified and 395k afa] 5 48 K5t B R B B B
measured under HKAS 39 to how they are EEANFSRMEIED B REZY
classified and measured under HKFRS 9: iR :
0ld classification  New classification ~Carrying amount Carrying amount
under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 under HKAS 39  Reclassification ~ Remeasurement Note under HKFRS 9
REFEETEN REZEMBRE REFEEHEA REFEMBRS
FORZENE ERAFMZHNE HOMZREE ENNE EFitE  WE RUFoRZKEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL
Trade receivable Loan and receivable Amortised cost 125,595 - (7,673) (@ 117,922
EREHTE ENRERTE IR
Other receivable and deposits  Loan and receivable Amortised cost 155,851 - - (@ 155,851
EtERFERES BHRENTE BHEAK
Note: Bt 5T -
(@ The amount represented additional (a) ZeBAREBEERMBRELNE
impairment loss based on the new expected R T TE A B B R X M FEINREE
loss model under HKFRS 9. Please also see 1B BB T )R EAERS -

details disclosed in (i) below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B %5 R & Mi &

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. PR BT K BAEET B v %
REVISED TO HONG KONG He i ME R ([ 75 U8 B4 75 o 4
FINANCIAL REPORTING Bl D) (42
STANDARDS (“HKFRS”)

(Continued)
New HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are REFERTNERZHTTEMBREEAR
mandatorily effective for the current year EREVBRERAEIEZ)
(Continued)
Application of HKFRS 9 (Continued) [ER BB BHEERZ95% ()
(i) Impairment (i RAE
HKFRS 9 has introduced the “expected credit B R E R B E 5l AR H
loss model” to replace the “incurred loss” FEBEBRER]  UWRREESFER
model under HKAS 39. The “expected credit FEHMIEEEBEIER - [TEEE
loss model” requires an ongoing BEEBERX | ERBEAESRNEED
measurement of credit risk associated with a HEEERR AEBEDKIEHEE
financial asset. The Group has applied the EEEX I ERRERZBHENAE
“expected credit loss model” to financial HeRmEE(RRESRRSEED -
assets that are subsequently measured at JEUNE S Kk H b FEUFRIA) ©
amortised cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables and other
receivables).
The following table is a reconciliation that TRDBRIBEES S ELE395%
shows how the closing loss allowance as at EER_Z—+tF+A=+—HH®
31 December 2017 determined in accordance FREERBOMERESBNBR
with HKAS 39 can be reconciled to the HEREREEN T —N\F—A—
opening loss allowance as at 1 January 2018 AR FUEERBIESLL -
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9.
HK$'000
FiET
Loss allowance recognised as at RYEE B & 5 £ R 395 R
31 December 2017 and 1 January RZE—tF+ZA=1+—8BK
2018 under HKAS 39 —E-N\F-A-ANEERE —
Additional loss allowance as a result of & & & B R & R E5K 1B T
the application of the “expected [TEHEEBEREX ] MERNBEING
credit loss model” under HKFRS 9 BEE
— Trade receivables — EWE 5 5IAE (7,673)
Loss allowance recognised as at RAEE B0 W5 LRI EO R
1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 RZZE-—NF—-—RA—-BZEBEE (7,673)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZ_—F

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS")
(Continued)

New HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities

Under HKFRS 9, for a financial liability
designated as at FVTPL, the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is required to be
presented in other comprehensive income,
with the remaining amount of change in the
fair value of the liability being presented in
profit or loss (unless the treatment of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk
would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss and in which case
all gains or loss on that liability are presented
in profit or loss). The Group had the liabilities
component of 9% convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$300,000,000 (issued
in 15 April 2015) as at financial liabilities at
FVTPL on initial recognition. The application
of HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 does not
have significant impact on the amount of the
Group’s reserve.

Other than the abovementioned, the
application of HKFRS 9 in respect of financial
liabilities’ classification and measurement
requirements has had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Hedge accounting

The Group has not applied any hedge
accounting and hence the new general hedge
accounting model set out in HKFRS 9 has
not had any impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

“NFE+ZA=t—RLFE

2.

oF FH B AT B 4815 T A o W B
e A8 48 Q0] (T4 98 B 85 i o 1
W) o)

REFREHNERZHTEEMBRERAR
FEMBRERAEITEL (D)

EREENFHEEREI (£)

(i) SREBENHIENRTE

BIBEBBSHEMEEDESE - hiEE
AEAARBEFABENSBREED
T MZEeREBENAAEESEHE
AERRZAENEERKRES A
ARIRHEMEEmERA  FgnaE
/Lﬁ“ﬁif)i%ﬁﬁlJi@JWam(B%#J‘é
BEEEERRESNTEES
RIFEBAR BN EFHEERC ZzuutEJJ;i
EEMMERSHIBIELZIRIE
&) AEBRVIAEREIZ AR E
AEZENEREBEBAARNEEA
300,000,0005% JT H99% AJ # % (& 5 (A
TE-REMNATRBERIT)NAEED

CHR-ZE—NF—A—BERTE
Eﬁ%#&%ﬁ%ﬂﬂ%%ﬁ%ﬁzﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
B BERTE -

\

Br bt SN WA G DB NG
BEXME EABEMBEREER

FORUGEEMBREAMETE -

vy  Hhei

AEEHKREREME DS Btk
FRM GRS EAEISRAAE A H — MR
GhegtRAHREENGA VKR
R EEMTE -

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETILEMERAA

139



Annual Report 2018
ZE-N\EH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B % 3R & Mi 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. BRHWRT R R T A i

REVISED TO HONG KONG He i ME R ([ 75 U8 B4 75 o 4

FINANCIAL REPORTING ) |)#)

STANDARDS (“HKFRS”)

(Continued)

New HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are REFERTNERZHTTEMBREEAR

mandatorily effective for the current year EREVBRERAEIEZ

(Continued)

Application of HKFRS 9 (Continued) [ER BB BHEERZ95% ()

(v  Effect on the Group’s accumulated losses as of v HARER-Z-NF-A-BMR:
1 January 2018 BENTE
The following table shows the impact of the TREIR -_ZE-—NF-—A—BER
application of HKFRS 9 on the Group’s BAVBREENEREAEEN R
accumulated losses as of 1 January 2018: FrEETE

Increase in the
Group’s
accumulated
losses

X&EE

Rt EHE MM
HK$’000

FHET

Additional loss allowance as a result of the [EMRE B %R E ER Fo5RE T
application of the “expected credit loss [FEHEESEEX]MBEN
model” under HKFRS 9 BINBERE
— Trade receivables — BB 5 %1E 7,673

7,673
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS")
(Continued)

New HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Application of HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 has replaced HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and other revenue-
related interpretations. Under HKAS 11 and HKAS
18, revenue arising from construction contracts and
provision of services was recognised over time
whereas revenue from sale of goods was generally
recognised at a point in time when the risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods was passed to
the customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised when the customer obtains control of
the promised good or service in the contract. This
may be at a single point in time or over time. Also,
HKFRS 15 has introduced additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to
understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers. Please see note 3 for
details of old and new accounting policies.

Based on the specific transitional provisions set out
in HKFRS 15, the Group had decided to use the
cumulative effect transition method and had
recognised the cumulative effect of initial application
of HKFRS 15 as an adjustment to the opening
balance of equity as at the date of initial application
(i,e. 1 January 2018), if any. Accordingly,
comparative information has not been restated and
continues to be presented under HKAS 11 and
HKAS 18. Also, the Group has applied HKFRS 15
requirements only to contracts that were not
completed as at 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B %5 R & Mi &

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS")
(Continued)

New HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Application of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements
describes the nature of the Group’s revenue.

With regards to “artiste management fee income”,
the Group, after assessing the specific facts and
circumstances and the terms of the related
contracts, concluded that the performance
obligation to the customers under the arrangements
entered into by the Group, the relevant artiste and
the customers was to arrange and ensure the
relevant artiste to be a spokesperson for the
product/service of the customers during the
contract period and hence the Group concluded
that the Group merely acts as an agent during the
contract period and hence revenue should be
recognised on a net basis (i.e. the gross amount
received or receivable from the customer net of
amount paid or payable to the artiste). Under the
old standard, revenue was recognised on a gross
basis. Such a change does not affect the net profit
recognised by the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZ_—F

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS")
(Continued)

New HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Application of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

With regards to the “entrance fee income” from the
sales of tickets of a film studio located in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), the Group has
arrangements with independent third parties to sell
tickets on the Group’s behalf. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Group located a
new ticket selling agent which the Group agreed
with it that the credit term for payment was about
12 months after tickets are sold. Taking into
account the abovementioned credit period, the
Group determined that there was a significant
financing component that was determined based on
the difference between the agreed consideration
and the amount of the consideration discounted
using a discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group
and the agent at contract inception (taking into
account the length of credit period and credit
characteristics of the agent receiving financing in the
contract). The related interest income amounted to
HK$3,421,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018 and was presented separately in the
consolidated statement profit or loss.

Except as described above, the application of
HKFRS 15 does not have other impact in respect
of recognition and measurement of revenue on the
consolidated financial statements.

Revenue amounts presented in note 4 for periods
starting from 1 January 2018 have been updated to
reflect the abovementioned change.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. BRHWRT R R T A i

REVISED TO HONG KONG He i ME R ([ 75 U8 B4 75 o 4
FINANCIAL REPORTING ) |)#)

STANDARDS (“HKFRS”)

(Continued)

New HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are REEERFENZHTEEMBREERR
mandatorily effective for the current year EREVBRERAEIEZ)

(Continued)

Application of HKFRS 15 (Continued) EREBYBHEERE15% (E)

The table below shows the amount by which the TRERARAFTERAEEUNBMEELNE
financial statement line items have been affected in 15 R ER LR (AESGIERF185%)
the current year by the application of HKFRS 15 as HUBHRREEERNSELE

compared to the old standard (i.e. HKAS 18).

Hypothetical
amounts
reported

under

superseded

Amounts standards

reported (HKAS 11

under and
HKFRS 15 HKAS 18) Difference

EERKER

(BEE:

b ESRE 9

FENBHRE FEGTEA

HRIEI5MT  H185) TH

BEMNEE SENREEE E£H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEL FEL FEL
Consolidated statement of profit HE-_T-N\F+=A
or loss and other comprehensive =t+-HILEFEZ
income for the year ended ﬁﬁ/\Tﬁ s R EAM2E
31 December 2018/Consolidated wER/MRZE-N\F
statement of financial position ‘|“:H =+—88
as at 31 December 2018 RE B BIRR &
In respect of “artiste management BRIEATHEERA]
income” s
— Revenue — Wz 344 665 (321)
— Other operating expenses — HMEgRx - (321) 321
In respect of significant financing PRBE EMEMIREHEE
component arising from the REFIERFEMNER
abovementioned arrangements MEDBMHME
with ticket selling agents
— Interest revenue — B 3,421 - 3,421
— Entrance fee income — PIFKRA 54,422 60,437 (6,015)
— Ancillary service income — BRERBEA 16,248 18,514 (2,266)
The differences are due to reasons described ZRJyh XAt R A TR .
above.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. #FFI#ial K A8 16 3T %5 o 1 %5
REVISED TO HONG KONG e 5 e S (175 08 T 5 o

FINANCIAL REPORTING ) &)

STANDARDS (“HKFRS”)

(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet EEMERRERNHTREETFENBR

effective HEA

The Group has not applied any of the following new AEBEVEERTIARNEREBEEBALE

and revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group AEARE 18 2R 98 I AE A T 2] MRS RT B A B

that have been issued but are not yet mandatorily RS R

effective:

HKFRS 16 Leases' ERVBRELEYN HE

F165%
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? EXVHBREEDN  RBREY
758
Amendments to Definition of a business® EEVBHREEL EBHEER®
HKFRS 3 E3 2B E]
Amendments to Prepayment Features with EXVHBEER EBFEHENR
HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation’ B 2 & F] B R
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets BEEVHERE &ﬁ%iﬁiﬁ SR/NE]
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its E B 105k & EEEL
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture® BB GFTAER] Fﬁ E’J BEHENK
%285f pd -3 SEAS
Amendments to Definition of Material® BB EAFEIHE FEEAREHTEES
HKAS 1 and MEE G AL
HKAS 8 EXLvd C )
Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment BB GFTER] FHEMEET - R 3k
HKAS 19 or Settlement! F195R 2 1EF] f”% %‘
Amendments to Long-term Interest in BB LR REERAI A ED
HKAS 28 Associates and Joint F28% 2 1EF] %ZE/H A !
Ventures'
Amendments to Annual Improvements to BEMBHREER BHEMB@mEEL
HKFRSs HKFRS Standards ZAEE] —E-—hEFERE
2015-2017 Cycle! —E—+FHEEH
2 FE
HK(FRIC) Uncertainty over Income Tax 55 (BEBRYEHRE MEHBEENTE
Interpretation 23 Treatments' mELZES) EH &
2223

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 ! RZE-NF-A—BEERENFE
January 2019. EARI AR -

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 R —F-—A—BEERBENFE
January 2021. BRI AR -

3 Effective for business combinations and assets 8 HWBABRA-_T _TF - —HHE
acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or HIEMNEEFTFEHRAIEENEREHR
after the first annual period beginning on or after 1 BEWEAEN -

January 2020.

4 Effective for annual period beginning on or after a ‘ RIETBEEEARBOFERMER -
date to be determined.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 5 RZEZEF—A—BEERRNFE
January 2020. HRFE) A A o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B %5 R & Mi &

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS")
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continueq)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease
guidance including HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

With regards to lessee accounting, the distinction of
operating leases and finance leases, as required by
HKAS 17, has been replaced by a model which
requires a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability to be recognised for all leases by lessees
except for short-term leases and leases of low
value assets.

Specifically, the right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost and subsequently measured at
cost (subject to certain exceptions) less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments.
Furthermore, the classification of cash flows will also
be affected as operating lease payments under
HKAS 17 are presented as operating cash flows;
whereas, under the HKFRS 16 model, the lease
payments will be split into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing
and operating cash flows respectively.

With regards to lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, HKFRS 16 requires extensive
disclosures in the financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS")
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continueq)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$149,043,000. In addition, the Group currently
considers refundable rental deposits paid of
HK$1,614,000 as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right to
use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying
amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to
amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits paid would be considered as additional
lease payments and included in the carrying amount
of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposits received would be considered as
advance lease payments.

The application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above. The Group intends to
elect the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to
contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not
apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the Group
will not reassess whether the contracts are, or
contain a lease which already existed prior to the
date of initial application. Furthermore, the Group
intends to elect the modified retrospective approach
for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and will
recognise the cumulative effect of initial application
to opening accumulated loss without restating
comparative information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B %5 R & Mi &

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain properties, film studio and financial
instruments that are measured at revalued amount
or fair values at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies below.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately HK$715,347,000 and the Group
continued to incur a loss for the year of
approximately HK$415,558,000. These conditions
indicate that there may exist a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
Notwithstanding the existence of these indicators,
the Directors are of the opinion that it is
appropriate for the consolidated financial
statements to be prepared on the assumption that
the Group will continue to operate as a going
concern. In order to improve the Group’s financial
position, immediate liquidity and cash flows, and
otherwise to sustain the Group as a going concern,
the Directors have adopted several measures,
including the following:

(i) the Group has obtained an undertaking from
certain shareholders of the Company,
including the substantial shareholder, that they
will provide sufficient funding to the Group,
including but not limited to the disposal of
their personal assets, to meet its financial
obligations in full as they fall due for the
period of twelve months from the date of this
announcement;
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT 3.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) on 13 February 2019, the Company entered
into placing agreements with four placing
agents, pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to place through the
placing agents, on a best effort basis, of up
to 6,999,999,997 shares of the Company
(“Placing Shares”) in aggregate to not less
than six placees by each placing agent at a
price of HK$0.26 per Placing Share.
Assuming the maximum number of the
Placing Shares are placed by the placing
agents, the net proceeds are estimated to be
approximately HK$1,751.5 million. On 15
March 2019, the Company completed the
placing of 428,769,230 Placing Shares at a
price of HK$0.26 per Placing Share and the
net proceeds, after deducting the related
expenses, is approximately HK$104.5 million;
and

(i) subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
the Company and certain bondholders
mutually agreed to extend the maturity dates
of the bonds with aggregate carrying amount
of approximately HK$114,113,000 to 29
February 2020. In addition, the Company is in
the process to negotiate with bondholders to
extend maturity dates of the bonds with
aggregate carrying amount of
HK$243,310,000 upon its maturity.

On the basis of the foregoing, and after assessing
the Group’s current and forecasted cash positions,
the Directors are satisfied that the Group will be
able to meet in full the Group’s financial obligations
as they fall due for the period of twelve months
from 31 December 2018. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared on the going concern basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & Bf 7% 8 & i =+

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZ_—F

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities (including structured entities) controlled by

the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns

from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZ_—F

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continueqd)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B %5 R & Mi &

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which
exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
and joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting, except when the investment,
or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in
which case it is or the portion so classified is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. Any
retained portion of an investment in an associate or
a joint venture that has not been classified as held
for sale shall be accounted for using the equity
method. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. Changes in net assets of the associate/
joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless
such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds
the Group’s interest in that associate or joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
venture.
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3. 3. EEFGBKE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the
date on which the investee becomes an associate
or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its
carrying amount, Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZ_—F

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a
joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the
Group retains an interest in the former associate or
joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of HKFRS 9/HKAS 39, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant
interest in the associate or joint venture is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or joint venture on the
same basis as would be required if that associate
or joint venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate of joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method
when an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or an investment in a
joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair value
upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership investments
in an associate or a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the
gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or
a joint venture of the Group (such as a sale or
contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to
the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are
classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the asset
(or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in
its present condition subject only to terms that are
usual and customary for sales of such asset (or
disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified
as held for sale when the criteria described above
are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain
a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary
after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving disposal of an investment, or a portion of
an investment, in an associate or joint venture, the
investment or the portion of the investment that will
be disposed of is classified as held for sale when
the criteria described above are met, and the Group
discontinues the use of the equity method in
relation to the portion that is classified as held for
sale from the time when the investment (or a
portion of the investment) is classified as held for
sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell, except for financial assets within the scope
of HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 and investment properties
which continue to be measured in accordance with
the accounting policies as set out in respective
sections.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B % 3R & Mi 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZ_—F

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 3)

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss when the Group satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is
transferred when the customer obtains control of
that asset. Revenue may be over time or at a
particular point in time. Revenue is recognised over
time when one of the following criteria is satisfied:

(@) the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group’s performance as the Group performs;

(b)  the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced; or

()  the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

Revenue is recognised at a particular point in time
(i.e. when the customer obtains control of the
promised goods or service) when none of the
abovementioned criteria are satisfied.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT

3. EEFGBKE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 3) (Continuea)

The table below is a summary of how the Group’s
revenue from different types of operations is
recognised under HKFRS 15.

Types of revenue (within
the scope of HKFRS 15)
Wz ER (FEMBRE
ER|E155HEER)

RESHE R K (KR %M 38 B EER
BRMBRERAESRE) ()

SR & AN S B 2R B N RAR B E T
BRBEEBYBEREER E155 R

Accounting policy under HKFRS 15

EEMBREERE155 THOEHBUR

Artiste management fee
income

Hotel room income

B 5 B A

Food and beverage income

BEHBA
Entrance fee income
AN EIRA

Event income

ABUWA

Artiste management fee income are recognised on a net basis (i.e. the
amount entitled by the Group rather than the total consideration set out in
the related contracts as the Group concluded that it is merely acting as an
agent) as a performance obligation satisfied over time as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs.
BEERBWRANKRFAEERRBIAEEEGRESH SR MIEAH
BRMEANERE ERFASEAB REEEEIRE) BERBHNEER —
BRERBANEXR MAKERBRAON TPRAKWREEBAREEEOREHD
F & o

Hotel room income is recognised when services are provided.

T 5 B TR AT B 1 AR 75 B AR o

Food and beverage income is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being at the point the customer purchases the goods at
restaurant.

ERRAREmNZEHREEEER IEFPFNERBEERKER -

Entrance fee income is recognised when the tickets are accepted and
surrendered by the customer.
ASERFIZEREMNREPRER®ESR -

Event income is recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over time
as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs.
EBRARBHECRN —BREAEENRER BARNEERAR ¥
FPRANWUREZAEREERBHRMDT G -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & Bf 7% 8 & i =+

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZ_—F

3.

SIGNIFICANT

“NFE+ZA=t—RLFE

3. EEFGBKE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 3) (Continuea)

Types of revenue (within
the scope of HKFRS 15)
Wz iEn (FEMBRE
ER|E155KEER)

RESHE R K (KR %M 388 EER
BRMBRERAESRE) ()

Accounting policy under HKFRS 15

EEMBREERE155 THOHBUR

Films production and licensing
income

BRI R HRA

Sales of travel related
products

35 5 Bk i 46 B8 22 am

Sales of goods
HEEm

Ancillary services

REERS

Types of revenue (outside
the scope of HKFRS 15)
WA (FERBRE

# Bl 5155k &5 E )

Income derived from the production and distribution of films, when the

production is completed and the film is released, the film has been

distributed to the cinema circuit and the amount can be measured reliably,

which is generally when the cinema circuit confirms to the Group its share

of box receipts.

BRHERBTEENBRARTHAREREZE Z‘é%%&h%’iﬁ HEBE R
.ﬁrgh(*ﬂ&ﬁ%%ﬁmﬁﬁdiﬁ@ﬁ%;ﬁ%fﬁx%l& 52 )RR .

Income derived from the licensing of the distribution and broadcasting rights
over films, when the Group’s entitlement to such payments has been
established which, subject to the terms of the relevant agreements, is
usually upon delivery of the film negatives to the customers.

RFHETE &Eﬁzﬂ%%ﬁﬁiiaﬁuﬁz)\ﬂﬁ&l¥7ﬁ‘mifhlﬁﬁﬁﬁ£ﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁ
bﬂﬁ?*ﬁf‘%ﬁ%%ﬂ%?ﬂ BRABEPXNELER ZR)HER -

Sales of travel related products is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being at the point the customer purchases the travel related
products.
HERBHEBEMNEMNEGIREBKRER
H B [ 26 o

= FEEREERE®R

Sales of goods is recognised when control of the goods has transferred to
the customer, being at the point the goods are delivered to the customer.

HEERREMMENREBEERPHER  NERXNTEPNERHE -

Ancillary service income is recognised when a performance obligation
satisfied over time as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs.

HERBURARBHNEEN —REMRNEZXRKER  ARASBEELOR

EPRARKDREZARNEEREORENF -

Accounting policy

LEE S

Rental income from operating
leases

REHENHESBRA

Rental income under operating leases is recognised over the lease term.
Contingent rentals are recognised on the accounting period when they are
incurred.

REFENHESBAERERABER - LA HSERDNN S HAHER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZ_—F

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably on the following bases:

Income derived from the production and distribution
of films, when the production is completed and the
film is released, the film has been distributed to the
cinema circuit and the amount can be measured
reliably, which is generally when the cinema circuit
confirms to the Group its share of box receipts.

Revenue from hotel operations is recognised when
services are provided.

Income derived from the licensing of the distribution
and broadcasting rights over films, when the
Group’s entitlement to such payments has been
established which, subject to the terms of the
relevant agreements, is usually upon delivery of the
film negatives to the customers.

Artiste management fee income, food and
beverage, sales of travel related products and
ancillary services are recognised when the agreed
services are rendered.

Entrance fee income is recognised when the tickets
are accepted and surrendered by the customer.

Sale of goods is recognised when the significant
risk and rewards of ownership of the goods have
been transferred to the buyers.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
over the lease term. Contingent rentals are
recognised on the accounting period when they are
incurred.

Interest income is recognised on time-proportion
basis using effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B %5 R & Mi &

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset. Other than investment properties
measured under fair value model, such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of
acquiring land held under operating leases, are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an
expense in the year in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continuea)

Leasehold land for own use

When the Group makes payments for a property
interest which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any Ilump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land
and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element at initial
recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “Land lease prepayments” in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the leasehold land and
building elements, the entire property is generally
classified as if the leasehold land is under finance
lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B %5 R & Mi &

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continuea)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise except for:

. exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under
construction for future productive use, which
are included in the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency

borrowings;

. exchange differences on transactions entered
into in order to hedge certain foreign currency
risks; and

. exchange differences on monetary items

receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming
part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on repayment of
the monetary items.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKS) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs and employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans. The Group
operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries or the maximum
mandatory contribution as required by the MPF
Scheme and are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & Bf 7% 8 & i =+

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZ_—F

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and employee benefits
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs (Continueq)

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which
operate in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), except Hong Kong, are required to
participate in the employee retirement scheme
operated by the relevant local government bureau in
the PRC and to make contributions for their eligible
employees. The contributions payable by the
subsidiaries are calculated based on a certain
percentage of the salaries and wages of those
eligible employees and are recognised as an
expense during the period to which they relate.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short-term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when
the employees render the related service.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based employee compensation

All  share-based payment arrangements granted
after 7 November 2002 and had not vested on 1
January 2005 are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements. The Group operates equity
settled share-based compensation plans for
remuneration of its employees and directors.

All employee services received in exchange for the
grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the share options
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions.

All share-based compensation is ultimately
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately,
with a corresponding increase in share options
reserve. If vesting periods or other vesting
conditions apply, the expense is recognised over
the vesting period, based on the best available
estimate of the number of share options expected
to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable. Estimates are
subsequently revised, if there is any indication that
the number of share options expected to vest
differs from previous estimates. No adjustment to
expense recognised in prior periods is made if
fewer share options ultimately are exercised than
originally vested.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are later forfeited or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based employee compensation (Continued)

Issue of convertible bonds as share-based payment
transaction

If the identifiable consideration received by the
Company appears to be less than the fair value of
the convertible bonds issued, the Company
measures the unidentifiable services received (to be
received) as the difference between the fair value of
the convertible bonds issued and that of the
identifiable consideration received, and the
difference is recognised in the profit or loss
immediately unless qualified for capitalization.

The debt component (i.e. the bondholder’s right to
demand payment in cash) of the convertible bond
will be accounted for as a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction while the equity component
(i.e. the bondholder’s right to demand settlement in
the Company’s shares) of the convertible bond will
be accounted for as an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction. The entity first measures the
fair value of the debt component, and then measure
the fair value of the equity component by taking into
account that the bondholder must forfeit the right to
receive cash in order to receive the equity
instrument. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
debt component of the convertible bond is stated at
fair value, with changes recorded in the income
statement under gain/(loss), net. The equity
component is not re-measured subsequent to initial
recognition.

Share options granted to suppliers/consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
with parties other than employees are measured at
the fair value of the goods or services received,
except where that fair value cannot be estimated
reliably, in which case they are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments granted, measured
at the date the entity obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the service. The fair values of
the goods or services received are recognised as
expenses (unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before
tax” as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B %5 R & Mi &

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities and deferred tax assets for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than
through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, hotel properties and film
studio, are stated at acquisition cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable cost of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment less
their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, at the following
rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the lease term

Buildings Over the shorter of the lease
term or 31/3%
Leasehold Over the shorter of the lease
improvements term or 20%

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
office equipment

Motor vehicles and 20%
yacht

The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Property, plant and equijpment measured using
revaluation model

Any revaluation increase arising from revaluation of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
previously recognise in profit or loss, in which case
the increase is credited to profit or loss to the
extent of the decrease previously charged. A
decrease in net carrying amount arising on
revaluation of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that
asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a
revalued asset, the attributable revaluation surplus is
transferred to retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & Bf 7% 8 & i =+

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZ_—F

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continueqd)

Property, plant and equipment measured using
revaluation model (Continued)

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets. However, when there is no
reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained
by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
properties under construction for such purposes).
Investment properties include land held for
undetermined future use, which is regarded as held
for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. All of
the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as
investment properties and are measured using the
fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties
are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZ_—F

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Construction costs incurred for investment
properties under construction are capitalised as part
of the carrying amount of the investment properties
under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Impairment on tangible

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any).

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & Bf 7% 8 & i =+

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZ_—F

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Film products

Film products are completed films produced by the
Group. Film products, are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation of film
products is calculated at rates sufficient to write off
their cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
principal useful lives are one to three years.

Film production in progress

Film production in progress is stated at cost less
any impairment losses. Costs include all direct
costs associated with the production of films such
as direct labour costs, cost of services, facilities
and raw materials consumed in the creation of a
film. Upon completion, these films under production
are reclassified as film products. Film production in
progress is accounted for on a film-by-film basis.
Impairment losses are made for costs which are in
excess of the expected future revenue generated by
these films.

Investments in films/dramas production

Investments in film/drama production are stated
initially at cost and adjusted thereafter for the net
income derived from the investments less any
accumulated impairment losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZ_—F

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs, including an appropriate
portion of fixed and variable overhead expenses,
are determined by the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can
be measured reliably.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZ_—F

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15
since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income
and interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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3. 3. EEFGBKE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance
with transitions in note 3)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

. the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9/initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in OCI if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & Bf 7% 8 & i =+

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZ_—F

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance
with transitions in note 3) (Continueq)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured at
FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. 3. EEFGBKE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 3)

The Group assesses and measures loss allowance
for ECL on its financial assets which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits, amount
due from a joint venture. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month
ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables without significant financing component.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually
for debtors with significant balances and/or
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT 3. BEMIBKE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SBMIAE)

Financial assets (Continued) tHEE(E)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of CREERNE(REMNIMBERXERRS

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 3) B R RIEO5R) ()

(Continued)

()  Significant increase in credit risk () EERREZILIN
In assessing whether the credit risk has R G EVNREREEERRE D HE
increased significantly since initial recognition, ERMNE AEEERIREH Hﬁ 7
the Group compares the risk of a default TEZEZENRREYVGERARL
occurring on the financial instrument as at the CRMTAEBEAEZEBNRBETLER -
reporting date with the risk of a default EETZIER  FEEEEESE
occurring on the financial instrument as at the BAYRFRHWEENMEEELN  BESE
date of initial recognition. In making this ERNETBENNARE hmABFZ
assessment, the Group considers both FELEBMAEEER - HR2 &
quantitative and qualitative information that is M EERRECBELNE 2
reasonable and supportable, including BATER :

historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. In particular, the following
information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly:

. an actual or expected significant . R IT AN (E)KAFS
deterioration in the financial EHRFEMNERXBHEZESE
instrument’s external (if available) or 1t

internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external . SNBSS EERRIEENEE
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a Bl mEERNEREEN - &
significant increase in the credit spread, BANEREOERER
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in . BHEERNEBARBEBLLE
business, financial or economic NRIE TR ER - BB
conditions that are expected to cause a AR A 3R S TR R R T R ML

significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant . EHALEEENER S8
deterioration in the operating results of wmERIL
the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant . BEHBANEE  QESREMIERE
adverse change in the regulatory, ER EXTEHRABLEREERTAH
economic, or technological environment 2y  EREBARTEHEBR
of the debtor that results in a EHY 8E 1 KR ©

significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT 3. HEGGIBUR (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) &MIA(E
Financial assets (Continued) tHEE(E)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 3)
(Continued)

0

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has
a low risk of default, (i) the borrower has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and (i)
adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or
external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as
per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate
to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.
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3. SIGNIFICANT 3. HEGGIBUR (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

180

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) &MIRE)
Financial assets (Continued) tHEE(E)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 3)

SRAERNERENEMMBEEXEREE
B 5 s R E0%) (&)

(Continued)

(i)  Definition of default iy BHES
The Group considers an event of default REBRE BOEHEAIHETH
occurs when information developed internally SENARENERBREFATK

(iif)

or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one
or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT 3. HEGGIBUR (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) &MIA(E
Financial assets (Continued) tHEE(E)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 3)
(Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT 3. BEMIBKE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) &MIRE)

Financial assets (Continued) tHEE(E)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of CREERNE(REMNIMBERXERRS
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 3) B R RIEO5R) ()

(Continued)

(v  Measurement and recognition of ECL (v) FEHEEEBEBZIERERE)

(Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis 1H1 EHEEEEREBEEFSIN

or cater for cases where evidence at the & @R T BEKFE T)@ﬂi,l{ TEMNE

individual instrument level may not yet be )R B & mﬂl/ﬁ\?ﬁziﬂ? HERER D AT &
available, the financial instruments are AEEFHE

grouped on the past due ageing analysis

basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the . CRTAME(AIAEREKE
Group’s trade and other receivables, SFIE R H M EWFIE - gEE
finance lease receivables and amounts E%HKMIE&JTE%%}EMIE =
due from customers are each assessed B ABIAR) £ TFHEEA
as a separate group. Loans to related THERIB LT fEW BREE-ES
parties are assessed for expected credit BEEE

losses on an individual basis);

. Past-due status; . & B AROR,

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; . BEBEANMEE  HAERITE K
and

. External credit ratings where available. . INEBEEREAR (MA) °

The grouping is regularly reviewed by BEIHKEEREETH® LR

management to ensure the constituents of HEHEBKDEE S BRUSEERRY

each group continue to share similar credit 15 o

risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the FEWATRESREENEDRE
gross carrying amount of the financial asset FE -RIECMEEEFEERE &
unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in ERT  MERADREBESHEE
which case interest income is calculated BB SERL NETHE

based on amortised cost of the financial

asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or KE@EATE BRABEMITAEZR
loss in profit or loss for all financial Bz EE  ETEEERE ZR
instruments by adjusting their carrying 1B ERERE LSRR R EER -

amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018)

Financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, amount
due from a joint venture and cash and bank
balance) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Loan and receivables are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Loan and receivables are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B % 3R & Mi 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZ_—F

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continueq)

For loan and receivables, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will

enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 30 days to 90
days, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continueq)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if,
in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial liability is (i) contingent consideration of
an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies, (i) held for trading or (i) it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of repurchasing it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is
a financial guarantee contract or a designated
an effective hedging instrument.
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3. 3. EEFGBKE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading or contingent consideration of an
acquirer in a business combination may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKFRS 9/HKAS 39
permits the entire combined contract to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Upon application of HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities
that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. For financial
liabilities that contain embedded derivatives, such as
convertible bonds, the changes in fair value of the
embedded derivatives are excluded in determining
the amount to be presented in other
comprehensive income. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that
are recognised in other comprehensive income are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss;
instead, they are transferred to accumulated losses
upon derecognition of the financial liability.
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3. SIGNIFICANT 3. HEFHEEK®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) &MIRE)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued) LREERRE(E)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued) BAREFAERZEREBRE)
Prior to application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, RNZZE-—NF—F—HEABBYBHREE
financial liabilities designated at FVTPL are stated at IJ FORA  HERALEF AEENES M
fair value, with any gains or losses arising on =R Tbiﬁ’&n@ﬂﬁﬁ A EE EFE
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. E’]T?Eﬂllﬁl SolE R RIS R - NER
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss TR = o B F R @%E‘Jﬂiﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ
includes any interest paid on the financial liability RERF B - Wt AT R ESHEE 2R
and is included in the “loss on fair value changes of BEEsrEial -

convertible bond line item.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost BREHENAY Rz @A E

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other cRBEREEKEZRIE HMEMNR
payables and accruals, bank overdrafts, loan from BREEBA RITET BRENER ¥
shareholders, finance lease obligation and ﬁ%%ﬂ S EERER) e FERER A KA
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised =

cost, using the effective interest method.

Bonds E%

Bonds are recognised initially at fair value, net of EHEMPIE RN EGEHBRTEEXNZ S K
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently K)VFER - H1g BB AT = -
measured at amortised cost.

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity MEBERERTIOATHRRES
components

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity MBS S T3 TR IR (D 8B &A% F U AR
share capital at the option of the holder, where the MREEESRITENRE  AIn]HiFE AR
number of shares that would be issued on Tﬁiﬁ?ﬁ‘ %Hx$9’]7?ﬁ‘ﬂx1“%T’E7%WﬁE1ij
conversion and the value of the consideration that D RhEEBONESMBEITAEYER

would be received at that time do not vary, are
accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an
equity component.
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3. 3. EEFGBKE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components (Continued)

Convertible bond issued by the Company that
contain both financial liability (together with the early
redemption option which is closely related to the
host liability component) and conversion option
components are classified separately into respective
liability and equity components on initial recognition
in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is classified as an equity
instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest rate for similar non-convertible debts
(with early redemption option). The difference
between the gross proceeds of the issue of the
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the
liability component is allocated to the conversion
option that meets the definition of an equity
instrument, and is included in equity as convertible
bonds equity reserve.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity
component, representing the option to convert the
liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible bonds equity
reserve until the embedded option is exercised or
expired.

When the option is exercised, the convertible bonds
equity reserve and the carrying value of the liability
component at the time of conversion, are
transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. Where the
option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in convertible bonds equity reserve
will be released to the retained earnings/
accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the
option.
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3. 3. EEFGBKE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to
the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of
the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender
of a financial liability with substantially different
terms as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability. A substantial modification of the terms of an
existing financial liability or a part of it (whether or
not attributable to the financial difficulty of the
Group) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a
new financial liability.

The Group considers that the terms are
substantially different if the discounted present value
of the cash flows under the new terms, including
any fees paid net of any fees received and
discounted using the original effective interest rate,
is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the
original financial liability. Accordingly, such exchange
of debt instruments or modification of terms is
accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or
fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or
loss on the extinguishment. The exchange or
modification is considered as non-substantial
modification when such difference is less than 10
per cent.
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3. SIGNIFICANT 3. BEMIBKE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Related parties )b
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: W—HBT3ER BIRABEAEEEH
44 -
CIo
()  the party is a person or a close member of (i) ZAR—BATRIEZK BRI
that person’s family and that person, MmzB AT
(@) has controls or joint control over the (a) Pl ek 2k R 4T AN 5
Group;
(o)  has significant influence over the Group; b) HAEBEEEAFE =
or
(c) is a member of the key management ) AXEEIARAFANAZFE
personnel of the Group or of a parent ZEHEKE X
of the Group; or
(i) the party is an entity where any of the following iy ZARBFETIEMEENELS:
conditions applies:
(@)  the entity and the Group are members () ZRERBEASEBR—SHZ
of the same group; [PE=WNSI
(o)  one entity is an associate or joint venture by —HEERZ—EEMBZA
of the other entity (or of a parent, AgeagrE (S —EEZ
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the AR WBARIKERNE QA
other entity); REE AR AERE):
(c) the entity and the Group are joint 0 EBERBHEASHEHRR -2=7H
ventures of the same third party; ZEEE
(d)  one entity is a joint venture of a third ) —HEBAF-FEEZAE
entity and the other entity is an TtE ME—ERBRZE=FE
associate of the third entity; BoBE N
(e)  the entity is a post-employment benefit (e) fi BAAEENELEEEH
plan for the benefit of employees of o BEREMREEN SR L 2B
either the Group or an entity related to Hﬁ‘ﬂaa M ET &
the Group;
()  the entity is controlled or jointly (M) HEES ()T B A L H ek =
controlled by a person identified in (i); R4EH
(@) a person identified in (i)(a) has significant (@ Ri@FEIATHEREEKR
influence over the entity or is a member zan E‘ZE*ZE\EL (YEZE\?Z
of the key management personnel of NP B & :

the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continueq)

(if) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(h)y  the entity, or any number of a group of
which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the presents of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influence by, that person in their dealing with
the entity.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short
term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have
a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management and bank overdrafts.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use. Bank overdrafts
are shown in current liabilities.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in Note 3, the
directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates are revised if the revisions
affect only that period, or in the period of the
revisions and future periods if the revisions affect
both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that
have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL
for the trade receivables. The provision rates are
based on last due aging as groupings of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns. The
provision matrix is based on the Group’s historical
default rates taking into consideration forward-
looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort.
At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered. In
addition, trade receivables with significant balances
and credit impaired are assessed for ECL
individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in note 6(b)
respectively.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
after taking into account their estimated residual
value. The Group assesses annually the residual
value and the useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment. If the expectation differs from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the
depreciation and the amortisation charge in the
period in which such estimate is changed.

Estimated impairment loss on film products and film
production in progress

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of
the Group’s film products and film production in
progress with reference to its estimated future
revenue less the relevant costs, its intended future
use and current market environment. Impairment for
estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired. In determining whether
impairment on film products and film production in
progress is required, the Group takes into
consideration the present value of future cash flows
expected to be received.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed
criteria in making that judgement. Investment
property is a property held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the
Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a
finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold
separately, the property is an investment property
only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an
individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property
does not qualify as an investment property.
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S.

CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from 2017.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt (which includes trade payables, other payables
and accruals, bank overdrafts, loans from
shareholders, borrowings, finance lease obligation,
bonds, convertible bond and promissory note net of
cash and cash equivalents) and equity attributable
to owners of the Company (comprising issued share
capital and reserves).

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements.

Gearing ratio

The Directors review the capital structure regularly.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share buybacks as well as the
issue of new debt.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period
was as follows:

5.

B A i A B

8 ) 38 2L AN DA REAR AR S B T R
HWELE  FEERBIES R TE
DA 28 T 42 75 16 3 1 46 - A SR 5 0 B 8 5
HoF— L FRIFTE -

AEENEAEEAFER (BRENES
RE-HMEMREAREGER  RITE
X BRRWER BE MBEEEAE &
FoABRBRESMELRE MBBRES KR
SEHEEBR)REARREEARLEZ (B
EEITHRAREE) AKX -

A BRI BRI B AR E -

BXEfLE

EEEHMENEAER -FREMN I
D EFEEETREARAREZBENHERM
MER REBEENEE AEEFEBX
AR ~ FTR A 39T B ARt 0 B DA R B AT 3
B FOEBRBELLRE -

RBEMRNERBELRDOT

Total debts BET

Total assets wEE

Gearing ratio

BEARBELE

2018 2017
—E—N\E§E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#Rx FHET
2,051,835 1,808,575
2,358,431 2,617,586
87% 69%
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6.

(a)

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets
Long-term receivables

Trade receivables
Deposits and other receivables
Amount due from a joint venture

Cash and bank balances

Financial assets at amortised cost

Loans and receivables

Financial liabilities
Fair value through profit or loss
Convertible bond

Amortised cost

Trade payables
Other payables and accruals

Bank overdrafts

Loans from shareholders
Borrowings

Bonds

Promissory notes
Finance lease obligation

& T H
(a) &MIANE
2018 2017
—E—)\f —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#IT FHET
ERMEE
REIEWRIE 64,876 113,699
FEUWE 2 F A 128,177 125,595
E& R H M EWRFKIA 32,463 42 152
ﬁéuﬁzfﬁﬁ/\%ﬁﬁ
FRIE 2,414 2,414
ﬁé&ﬁﬁmﬁ 13,474 19,944
241,404 303,804
128 5 R BR
LEREE 241,404 —
B K e U s - 303,804
ol B=K
BAREAESR
Al g 1 & - 106,697
BB A
I E 538 19,979 25,666
H fth B 3R IE&EEEJr
& 83,578 107,094
RITEX - 8,416
f% BB 601,031 504,060
BE 193,059 221,202
E% 1,023,319 719,920
%ﬁmﬁ 106,477 83,991
B 7S T & R 24,199 22 631
2,051,642 1,692,980
2,051,642 1,799,677

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial
risks which result from its operating, investing
and financing activities. The Group’s major
financial instruments include trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables,
cash and bank balances, trade payables,
other payables and accruals, bank overdrafts,
loans from shareholders, borrowings, finance
lease obligation, bonds, convertible bond and
promissory notes. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies applied
by the Group to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The Directors manage and monitor
these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented in a timely and
effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the
Group’s exposure in respect of financial
instruments or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risks.

Market risks

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. Several
subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. Certain
trade receivables and payables of the Group
are denominated in either RMB or United
States Dollars (“‘US$”). The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy as the Directors considered that the
volatility of the exchange rates between HK$,
RMB and US$ is limited. However, the
Directors monitor the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need
arises.

6. &k T H@

(b)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continueq)

Market risks (Continueq)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the
fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The interest rates and
terms of repayment of the loans from
shareholders, borrowings, bonds, convertible
bond and promissory notes which are subject
to fixed interest rates are disclosed in Notes
29, 30, 32, 33 and 34 respectively. The
Group currently does not have any interest
rate hedging policy, however, the Directors
monitor interest rate change exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
change exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the end
of each of the reporting period. The analysis
is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting periods were outstanding for the
whole of each of the reporting periods. A 50
basis points increase or decrease in the
market rates is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the
year ended 31 December 2018 would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$47,000 (2017: approximately HK$
31,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on loans
from shareholders, borrowings, bonds,
convertible bond and promissory notes.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA

6. &k T H@)

(b)

MEEMEERERKER(Z)
5 ER ()
FI @R

FEEBSEETRTANAAERE
SREAMSAEREEmMEREHH

ko WEMNEZR B8 &5 Al
hﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂxﬁm&lmﬂ+;
B) W {EEF M F E D B4R 5 R M 5
293032 %&m N EE R KA

ARAL A KB IRBCR - AT BRE
ENEXSHEAR TERNEAFERE
EE‘;TFPE?U’F‘JT%@DEL@"
HRED

TXZERED T IRESHRE HH
ZIHTETANKERETE - wmED

il BERBEHARKRTEZH
TEARESEREMEEREHEHART
ﬁ¢°rﬁﬂ£xai§@/\,§lﬁq“ﬁﬂtﬂ&
IARE A R ey & B Z (LB - EHRA50
B = B 1Y) 48 18 SXORL IR o

h%Vf#ﬂm/ﬁ SO £ 2 T £ 52
HEFEITE AEFHE_T—N\F
+:H£+—E¢¢F2mé%5%
3 40,/ 4 4947,0000 T (= B — +
F 431,000 7L) T EHRAEH
ABRREEZR -BER -EH JREE
ENAREEMEY 2 FERAR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B % 3R & Mi 5+

Annual Report 2018
ZE-\FH

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continueq)

Market risks (Continueq)

Other price risk

As the Group has no significant investments
in financial instruments at fair values, the
Group is not exposed to significant price risk.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that the
counterparty to a financial instrument would
fail to discharge its obligation under the terms
of the financial instrument and cause a
financial loss to the Group. To minimise the
credit risk, management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at each reporting date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits and credit approvals. Before accepting
any new customer, the Group uses an
internal credit scoring system to assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring
attributed to customers are reviewed twice a
year. Other monitoring procedures are in
place to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model upon application of HKFRS 9
(2017: incurred loss model) on trade balances
individually. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. st TH#®)

(Continued)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and b) HMBEREEBEHRBNRZ
policies (Continued)
Bank balances RiTH
Majority of the Group’s bank balances are AEBERITEB AL T RNEE
deposited with banks in Hong Kong and the Koep BRERTT o BOAS S 8 2R ) 8
PRC and the Group has limited the exposure TEHE —FHEERENERR I TF )5
to any single financial institution. The credit YAEEFRRHHIRT  BUREHE
risk on liquid funds is limited because the ©HEERBR BRI -
counterparties are banks with good credit-
rating.
Credit risk is concentrated as 40% (2017: RN ERE 5 HIARBEHION(—T
36%) of the total trade receivables are due —L%F 1 36% ) KA AL B G AL
from the Group’s largest customer within film DEP(ZFE — 5 FIAEE L D AR
studio operation segment (2017: film studio MEAEE BESRBRBRES -
operation segment). However, the R AREEREE ) SRR EE
management of the Group closely monitors PaRIB R EE - BT B R Al B S
the progress of collecting the payments from BRo-BUME EFEERRLAEENE
the customers and reviews the overdue BB RERIE -
balances regularly. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.
Collateral held as security and other credit FEEANERY REMEEEL R
enhancements
The Group does not hold any collateral or AEBIWEZATAEEY LS
other credit enhancements to cover its credit BlEaEm I REEES S ERE
risks associated with its financial assets. NZ B AR o
Impairment of trade receivables JEWE S 2B
During the year ended 31 December 2018, REE-_ZT— N\ —A=+—81F
the Group provided HK$6,982,000 impairment g%ftjg & BJ gt gq—gg 5 f;(;ggjq 4
allowance for trade receivables significant £ -+ £1126,982,000% JT #) 5 8 B & o
balances.
The following table shows the movement in TR AR ER S 5 5%IE N it E
lifetime ECL that has been recognised for 2B REBE B AN S
trade and other receivables under the EHIEEEIENEE -
simplified approach.
Lifetime ECL
L
EEERE
HK$'000
FAET
As at 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39 RZTB—tF+_8
=t—H BREFE
S EAEIE
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 9 JIE A A 8 B 7% S RS9
15 1% 0 7,673
As at 1 January 2018 — As restated RZZE—-—NF—H—H
— &5 7,673
Impairment losses reversed B m R (BB 1R (297)
Exchange adjustments b 5 A& (394)
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE—-N\F+H
=+— 6,982
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6. &k T H@

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZ_—F

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) MEBEREBREREBEKZ

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continueq)

Liguidity risk management RBEL AR EE

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group NBESER Y RAEEE N ETH
will not be able to meet its obligations HemaBrEOsEnREk 518
associated with its financial liabilities. In the NBEERE EFERIEFDR
management of liquidity risk, the Directors RS EEEERNRUNALRERE
monitor and maintain a level of cash and cash ERHEESENEBINHRETEH
equivalents deemed adequate to finance the BEEMKFE - AEEFEAETRA
Group’s operations and to meet its debt ITEMEEsREABENAZCREESESS
obligations as they fall due. The Group Eo

finances its working capital requirements

mainly by the funds obtained from the

issuance of equity instruments.

At the reporting date, the maturity profile of RmER  AEBEEARAIEHAE
the Group’s and the Company’s financial BANABBRNRAAREEZRRE I HE
liabilities based on contractual undiscounted KIS B B & 5 09 B BB R E 5 A
payments and the earliest date in which the X o

entity can be required to pay were set out

below.

Liquidity tables mBEEE

The following tables detail the Group’s TRAJNASBETESRABGBENT
remaining contractual maturity for its non- BRERNFEH - ZSREDIRARIEAR
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have ERERAEBE &R HERMNRD
been drawn up based on the undiscounted =R O

cash flows of financial liabilities based on the

earliest date on which the Group can be

required to pay.

The tables include both interest and principal TEXBEEMNERASHERE - #¥
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows BEERMs  RMBeBEHERARSE
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is HRBRANMSNEAESD -

derived from market interest rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period.

Weighted
average
interest
rate

g
FFE
%

At 31 December 2018

Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Trade and other payables

RZE-N\%F
+=-A=+-H
ETESRHER

il
=
s}
= No
;—‘]‘
I iy
o,
o
=

On
demand
or within
1 year
BREXRS
—£h
HK$’000
THET

More than

1 year

but less
than 5 years

ZR—F
BLREE
HK$’000
THERT

More than undiscounted

5 years

SREE
HK$000
FET

cash flows
AUEBRB &
RESH
HK$’000
THERT

Carrying
amounts

FREE
HK$000
FET

and accruals ) JTEH 2B L B
FEA - 108,557 - - 108,557 103,557
Loans from shareholders IR R &) & 5 9.58% 4,090 680,875 - 684,965 601,031
Borrowings e 9.64% 153,204 58,462 - 211,666 193,059
Bonds &% 6.97% 687,084 114,322 349,867 1,151,273 1,023,319
Promissory note ESES 10.19% - 123,148 - 123,148 106,477
Finance lease obligation ~ Bf 5 7H & &4 11.40% 11,595 7,632 48,988 68,215 24,199
959,530 984,439 398,855 2,342,824 2,051,642
National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited SRETILEAERAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZ_—F

“NFE+ZA=t—RLFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. &t THG®
(Continued)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and b) MBEREEEEHBEZ)
policies (Continueq)
Liguidity management (Continued) ROECAREE (&
Liquidity tables (Continued) MBEER(E)
Weighted On More than
average demand 1 year Total
interest or within but less More than  undiscounted Carrying
rate 1year  than 5 years 5 years cash flows amounts
g REKH SR—F AEBRRE
RR=RIES —4R BIRRE SHRE MEAE EHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TERT FTET TERT FTET
At 31 December 2017 RZF—t&
+-ZA=+-8H
Non-derivative financial F{T£&mE R
liabilities
Trade and other payables EffZ 7B R E
and accruals FEAT R IE A K JE
AER - 137,040 - - 137,040 137,040
Bank overdrafts BITEX 4,50 8,447 _ — 8,447 8,416
Loans from shareholders [ R A1 E 3 9.56 472,532 55,233 - 527,765 504,060
Borrowings BE 9.61 212,871 22,440 — 235,311 221,202
Bonds &% 8.24 360,443 412,578 72,408 845,424 719,920
Promissory note ESES 9.00 86,145 - - 86,145 83,991
Finance lease obligation B 78 &4 11.40 9,041 7,927 59,055 76,023 22,631
1,286,519 498,173 131,463 1,916,155 1,697,260
Derivatives TETIR
Convertible bond HkES 11.48 110,187 - - 110,187 106,697

(c)

Fair value measurements

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

At the end of the reporting period, the Group

did not have any assets and liabilities that
were measured at the above fair value
measurements hierarchy.

During the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017, there were no transfers of fair
value measurements between Level 1 and
Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level
3.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl #R& XL EMERAA
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7.

REVENUE 7. WA
Revenue from the Group’s principal activities FRERRBAEBEFTZEHBHWALT :
recognised during the year is as follows:
2018 2017
—F-\F —E—LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FAET
Revenue from contracts with HEMBREEL
customers within the scope of E155REERNER
HKFRS 15, disaggregated by MR BEE
major products or services lines: EngRBEES :
Artiste management fee income BEAERBRA 344 929
Hotel room income S B ERA 13,432 17,545
Food and beverage income Z A 26,365 31,619
Entrance fee income REZ3 PN 54,422 63,677
Event income E B A - 11,285
Films production and licensing income & % 84/F & 4 #F Ik A - 912
Sales of travel related products fHE KA R E @ 1,121 816
Sales of goods EREE 1,865 2,355
Ancillary services B 7% AR 7% 16,248 15,265
Consultation income RN 1,553 —
115,350 144,403
Interest revenue that reflects significant K AIEFE FEA
financing granted to customers B E KA B U 3,421 —
Rental income HE WA 35,066 76,969
153,837 221,372

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
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7. REVENUE (continuea) 7. WA &)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with PHREFRSHKE
customers

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—FT—-—N\NF+=-A=Z=1+—HILEE

Film
production and
distribution,
sales of travel
related
products,
artiste
management
and event Film studio
Segments coordination operation Hotel operation
EXHERS
§H - SHEE fik ks 4E
HER BEE
7 E B R EE) HRWEE B E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT TH&ET T#&T
Types of goods or ERSRBERN
service
Artiste management fee ~ EEEE B ILA
income 344 — -
Hotel room income B JE BB A - - 13,432
Food and beverage ZHIIA
income - — 26,365
Entrance fee income ASERA - 54,422 —
Sales of travel related HERERBE®R
products 1,121 — —
Sales of goods HEE M - 1,865 -
Ancillary services fid & AR 7% - 14,490 1,758
Consultation income R - 1,553 —
1,465 72,330 41,555

Geographical markets HIE TS

PRC e - 72,330 41,555

Hong Kong BB 1,465 - -
1,465 72,330 41,555

Timing of revenue W 225 7 2R B B

recognition

At a point in time P — & B 1,121 56,287 26,365

Over time N — B 344 16,043 15,190
1,465 72,330 41,555

znll National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl #R& XL EMERAA



Annual Report 2018
ZER-0\5H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B % 3R & Mi 5+
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7. REVENUE (continuea) 7. WA &)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with PHREFRSHWE(Z
customers (Continued)
Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue TXHHEEFAEHREASHBEREENS
from contracts with customers with the amounts R H AR -

disclosed in the segment information.

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-_FT—N\EFE+=-A=1+—HILEE
Film
production and
distribution,
sales of travel
related
products,
artiste

management
and event Film studio

Segments coordination operation Hotel operation
EXHERS
5 - SHEE ki 4E
HER BEE
5T EB B R EE A HEREE il s iE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TFET TFHET

Reportable segment BE: L 8§

revenue 1,465 110,836 42,261
Inter-segment revenue 75 B W &= - (19) (706)
Interest revenue that REETERH

reflects significant BEARAFE T

financing granted to B

customers - (3,421) -
Rental income el A - (35,066) -

Revenue from contracts EF & #i %

with customers 1,465 72,330 41,555
Disaggregation of revenue from contract with N R R ETSE D EFE O
customers by the timing of revenue recognition and WesBAA - & - AWM - REEE
by geographic markets. Also, as described in note RAFHRERAESM B REERE155R -
2, the Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first WARBE BB B RS ERNEISKEMNET
time for the current year and decided not to restate BEARSC RAETBEY N R EAR A L&
the comparative figure for the comparative period ¥ o
based on the specific transitional provisions set out
in HKFRS 15.
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8. OTHER INCOME AND 8. Hfth e A\ R I it s 4H
OTHER LOSSES

2018 2017
—E—N\§E —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FH&T
Other income Hibtgr A
Bank interest income AT B A 16 13
Others i 5,261 854
5,277 867
2018 2017
—E—-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Other losses Hitbis18
Impairment losses of investments in BYHEREREZ
films/dramas production VRN SR - (6,775)
Loss on capitalisation of loan interest & A1t &~ & 3 F &
payables 518 - (1,570)
Loss on capitalisation of other payables & 71t £ { ji& 1 3t 18
& 18 - (6,431)
Loss on disposal of an intangible asset & —BEL & ERE = (79)
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—HBERAEE - (110)
— (12,965)
9. IMPAIRMENT LOSS OF 9. &k W AE 1R
FINANCIAL ASSETS
2018 2017
—E—N\E§ T —+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FAET
Impairment loss of financial assets £FI&EERKERIE
Impairment loss (recognised)/reversed LA T & B (E#R)
on: B EF E R R
— trade receivables — EWE 5 3E 297 (13)
— other receivables — Hib U RIA (7,792) —
— interest receivables — EF B - (5,239)
— available-for-sale investment — AJHHERE - (5,250)
(7,495) (10,502)
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. &+ ¥ & B

The Group manages its businesses by business AEBZREREREEHEER - BHRHEBERD
lines. In @ manner consistent with the way in which RErREFHENRASEE RS EBITHRER
information is reported internally to the Group’s AEMNETELERRETZTELERE
most senior executive management, being the chief EINETABERBEN —BAR A&
operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the BB K -EARZLEDE ANEBTEBFLE
purposes of resources allocation and performance DEE O LA T AR 23 o =6 -

assessment, the Group is currently organised into
three operating segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

Films production and — Production and distribution of BREERET — BERETER-
distribution, sales of films, sales of travel related 5 & iRk 25 AE BA B REREABE®R
travel related products, products, provision of travel moEAEERER MEARMERRE
artiste management and related products, provision EERE REBHSE
event coordination of management services to

artistes and event
coordination

Film studio operation — Operation of film studio TR —  BEREM

Hotel operation — Operation of hotel B R 45 - REBEE

Segment information about the Group’s reportable BEASEN 2Ry B HER 25
segments is presented below. e
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. 4+ B8 & Bl (2
(Continued)
Segment revenues and results PBRANRES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue INTAEZRS DA AREBEA &
and results by reportable segments: EBEREEST:

Film
production
and
distribution,
sales of travel
related
products,
artiste
management
and event  Film studio Hotel Inter-segment
coordination operation operation elimination
EMRER
BT HE
i3t
EREA
EER
EDHE HENEER EEEE  SBEHES BeH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-B-\f+tZA=+-H
LEE

Revenue from external customers RENREERBA 1,465 110,817 41,555 = 153,837
Inter-segment revenue AHEBA - 19 706 (725) -
Reportable segment revenue AERHBWA 1,465 110,836 42,261 (725) 153,837
Segment result PHEE (14,507) 1,754 (51,645) - (64,488)
Other income HihA 5,217
Loss on exchange difference EXZEER (42,712)
Unallocated corporate expenses FARAAEEL (14,832)
Finance costs BERK (227,330)
Impairment loss on land lease TiBEREESR (71,473)
Loss before income tax BREBRAER (415,558)

208 National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl #R& XL EMERAA



Annual Report 2018
ZE-\FH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B % 3R & Mi 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. 2 ¥ & Bl (47

(Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) PEHBARESE (Z)
Film
production
and
distribution,
sales of travel
related
products, artiste
management
and event Film studio Hotel  Inter-segment
coordination operation operation elimination Total
BEYHER
BT HE
igudiik ]
ER-BA
EER
BBRE  FRNLE BESE HHEEH 28
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FEL FHEL FEL FHEL
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—t5+-A=1-H°
I35
Revenue from external customers RENREPERA 2,817 166,829 51,726 - 221,372
Inter-segment revenue AHEBA 53 - 952 (1,005) -
Reportable segment revenue DEX: Vx9N 2,870 166,829 52,678 (1,005) 201372
Reportable segment (loss)/profit UEHEHB(BE) /JEH (25,724) 57,577 (49,340) - (17,487)
Other income EtA 867
Loss on fair value changes of NEEEFANEZDER
convertible bonds (4,902)
Loss on capitalisation of ARLEREFF S ER
loan interest payables (1,570)
Loss on capitalisation of other payables B A{vEfuEN HEER (6,431)
Gain on fair value changes of investment R EWE N4 EEBHUH
properties 1,080
Unallocated corporation expenses AOEDFAT (527)
Finance costs BEKA (165,563)
Loss before income tax BASHAER (193,533)
Revenue reported above represents revenue EREFHRAEMEFEAREBINRARF
generated from external customers and inter- A K5 B 8H & o

segment sales during both years.

Segment (loss)/profit represents the loss incurred DE(ER) RFESHOMELENEE
by each segment without allocation of central ERUTESEFRITBENA(BREESH
administration costs including directors’ salaries, loss ® BRNMEENERFEEE  ERMEHM
on capitalisation of loan interest payables, loss on JERNFIEEE REDEIAABEEH W -
capitalisation of other payables, gain on fair value AMRES QAR EZEEE AP BRRE
changes of investment properties, loss on fair value HAE  REENUBRRES 2 EBEFE
changes of convertible bond, waiver of interest of Hipg A - BB A RAEBHAZ) 1Ty
convertible bond, net losses on early redemption of BOREBRMTEAEREMAEELER
convertible bonds, other income, finance costs and REMEWFTET X

income tax expense. This is the measure reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance.
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. 2 & Bl (%)

(Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

At 31 December 2018

RZE-N\E+ZH=t-H

SBAERAR

Film
production and
distribution,
sales of

travel related
products,
artiste
management
and event
coordination
BYHRER
BT HHE
gl

Ex EA
EEREDHGE
HK$'000
TER

Film studio
operation

HANEE
HK$'000
TET

Hotel operation

BEGE
HK$000
TET

Reportable segment assets TERPBEE 14,337 1,444,421 868,964 2,321,722
Property,plant and equipment ERE 15
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEN 9,273
Unallocated corporation assets KOBDAEE 21,421

Consolidated assets GREE 2,358,431

Reportable segment liabilities TERABERE (5,100) (69,793) (23,192) (98,085)
Loans from shareholder BRHER (601,031)
Borrowings BE (193,059)
Bond &% (1,023,319)
Promissory notes EARE (106,477)
Deferred tax liabilities BEREREARE (158,470)
Provision for income tax FEREE (2,951)
Unallocated corporate liabilities NN = (29,864)
Consolidated liabilities Ga8fE (2,213,256)
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. 2+ & Bl (%)

(Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) SHEEREEE)
Film
production
and
distribution,
sales of
travel related
products,
artiste
management
and event Film studio Hotel
coordination operation operation Total
EYRER
BT HE
igidiEte
Em-EA
FER
EBaE FRALE BELE Bew
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TAET TAR
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE-+F+-A=1-H
Reportable segment assets 2R HEE 18,389 1,645,751 898,941 2,563,081
Property, plant and equipment VER ST 613
Cash and bank balances ReRBITER 16,384
Assets classified as held for sale NERBENEEE 34,780
Unallocated corporate assets KOBDAEE 2,728
Consolidated assets GREE 2,617,586
Reportable segment liabilties NERHPEE (6,126) (88,672) (24,722) (119,520)
Loans from shareholders RENER (604,060)
Borrowings EE (221,202)
Bonds E% (719,920)
Convertible bond R ES (106,697)
Promissory note ERER (83,991)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE (165,629)
Provision for income tax FEREE (2,951)
Unallocated corporate liabilties RAORDEEE (63,185)
Consolidated liabilities GEEE (1,977,155)
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. 4+ B8 & Bl (2)
(Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHEEREEZ)
For the purposes of monitoring segment BERSPRALRSIBEIEEIR :
performance and allocating resources between
segments:
—  all assets are allocated to reportable segments — BRRAREBEIN MIBEESEIRZES
other than corporate assets; and AE2FHE: &
— all liabilities are allocated to reportable — BRAFEAGEN FIBEBEEIRZES
segments other than corporate liabilities. A2HHE -
Film
production
and
distribution,
sales of
travel related
products,
artiste
management
and event Film studio Hotel
coordination operation operation Total
ERRER
BT HE
TRiEAR
EREA
EER
EBRE HRWEE EEEE aeH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TET TAL
At 31 December 2018 R-ZB-\E+-ZA=+-H
Depreciation of property, plant and ng BERRXENE
equipment 1,555 31,145 30,509 63,209
Amortisation of land lease prepayments B + T S # - 11,512 2,245 13,757
Amortisation of fim products EYEMEH 1,224 - - 1,224
Addition to non-current assets ERBEELEN 63 63,025 356 63,444
At 31 December 2017 RZE-—tFF+ZA=+—H
Depreciation of property, plant and #@J% F FEREENE
equipment 1,764 28,194 28,798 58,756
Amortisation of land lease prepayments T f + it 7 & B 5 - 1,512 2,245 13,757
Amortisation of film products BYEREH 1,210 - - 1,210
Addition to non-current assets ERBEELN 2,185 97,501 2,562 102,274
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. 4+ R & B (2)
(Continued)
Geographical information W EE
All the Group’s revenue and non-current assets are AEEMBRARERBDEEHETEREF
principally attributable to the PRC including Hong ZEARKMBE(FED(BEEB)(BIARE
Kong (being the place of domicile of the major BEETEZRARIMEMNME) -
companies comprising the Group).
The geographical location of customers is based on BEPMBERDERERFEFRFTAL
the location at which the contracts are negotiated W EME - REIIFEFLHBWAEZER
and entered with the customers. The total revenue B -
from external customers is mainly sourced from the
PRC.
Information about major customers FREEERMER
Revenue from customer contributing over 10% of REMAE BB AFEIBI0%EE P A WA
the total revenue of the Group is as follows: N
2018 2017
—E—N\EF —E—LtF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Customer A ZPEA 52,370 N/AT i 2
Customer B %FB N/AT 3& F2 48,468’
1 Revenue from film studio operation. ! HARBLEHWA -
2 The customer did not contribute over 10% or more 2 ZEPRZFEYEMAEFBRKABLIRION
to the Group’s total revenue in the year.
11. FINANCE COSTS 11. B A
2018 2017
—E—N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FAET
Finance lease charges BKHEEEA 1,839 2,171
Interest on bank overdrafts RITHEZF B 46 364
Interest on bonds BEHE 139,023 83,025
Interest on promissory notes G EEF B 10,348 9,536
Interest on loans from shareholders BREERHF E 53,309 43,699
Interest on unsecured other borrowings = fth £ 4 48 (£ & K| & 8,493 14,360
Interest on secured other borrowings EmEEEEEFE 13,775 12,145
Interest on secured bank borrowings EEMIEITEERNE 497 263
227,330 165,563
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12. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 12. B Pt 75 B¢ wii s 40

2018 2017
—E—N\EF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH&ET FHET
Loss before income tax is arrived BRATEHABES IR,
at after charging/(crediting): GTA) T3 &IE -
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR B & 850 1,118
Amortisation of film products S 1,224 1,210
Amortisation of land lease prepayments &< + b T & & #4 13,757 13,757
Costs of inventories recognised HRAERAIZMEFEERAR
as expenses 443 629
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - WEREBITE
equipment 63,247 58,957
Equity-settled share-based payments % TR v ARIELAE Y
granted to consultants B An 2 1+ - 9,581
Impairment losses of investment in B BEREREREA
films/dramas production 18 - 5,775
Net exchange losses/(gains) & 5B e, (M) F 5 42,712 (47,809)
Minimum lease payments under REKEHEREDED
operating leases in respect of = EAENR
rented premises 11,249 12,521
Rental receivables from investment REMEREKHSREE
properties less direct outgoings -3 - (149)
Employee benefit expenses EEEMNMAX
(including directors’ remuneration) (BEEEHS)
(note 15) (P 5E15)
— Salaries, allowances and — FHre FHR
benefits in kind B Y& 40,545 37,189
— Contributions to retirement — RKIEFIET &
benefits schemes R 11,084 10,156
— Equity-settled share-based — UBRELEER
payments f& 5 S A+ - 21,841
51,629 69,186
Note: Equity settled share based payments recognised as M : MEREENRNNRBERRIEREER
employee benefit expenses include an amount of FIF X+ 834,790,000 ST B IE - K
HK$4,790,000 representing the fair value of share BT 2EENERENARE ZEE
options granted to an employee who subsequently HENAEBERIMKRALAERE -2 E
resigned from the Group and became a consultant M- —tF+—ARER -ZFE
of the Group with effect from November 2017. The BRI BB RS -
share options vested immediately on the date of
grant.
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13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. B 45 B B 32

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profit for both years. No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as there were no assessable profits arising in or
derived from Hong Kong for both years.

The PRC Enterprises Income Tax at 25% has not
been provided as the PRC subsidiaries have
available tax losses brought forward from previous
years to offset the assessable profits generated
during the vyear, or incurred losses for taxation
purposes.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to
loss before tax per the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
follows:

RREFEEAR - FBNSHIG R AT BRB
M PA16.5% At H o A W B 6 E RS |
BAELREEEMERBERN - RIE5
BENGHIELEE -

HRPEBAREEEEABEFRE A
AREBRAENEANELS 2 BRTEF
ARTEEMELNER  RABHRPEDE
FTS 8 (B /525% ) 1E HI B 8 -

REM BDARE R E SN IR TR AR BE %
EEBRRAMEAH -

AEERERAXABEABREMEMEEK
ARHBRHRABEERAT

2018 2017
—F—)\¥ —ET—+4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FAET
Loss before tax Br % Al & 1B (415,558) (193,533)
Tax at domestic income tax rate HEAFRGHRRETEDN
g (76,797) (28,780)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7~ & 15 B % #9 7 7%
for tax purpose za 77,774 26,597
Tax effect of income not taxable BERB WA BB
for tax purpose wE 2) (7,522)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not &) F8 4t Bl & FE R H) F1 18
recognised 518 (13,531) (9,339)
Tax effect of unrecognised estimated K #E R { 5T 7 1E 5 18 49
tax losses BiseE 12,556 19,044
Income tax expense for the year AKEFERAX - —
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13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. B 45 BE B 32 ()

(Continued)

REBEEKRAEBHREHR

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive

income
2018 2017
—E—N\EF TE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Deferred tax BEBIE
Arising on expense recognised EEfEREMEERX
in other comprehensive income: R B
Revaluation of properties BEEFIEEAYME
held for own use (7,159) (10,727)
Total income tax credit recognised in R E M 2 E W AERE
other comprehensive income R8Ik e 1B 58 (7,159) (10,727)

14. LOSS PER SHARE 14. &5 B 48

216

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately HK$415,556,000 (2017:
approximately HK$193,529,000) and the weighted
average of approximately 4,517,071,000 (2017:
approximately 4,348,296,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the year. Diluted loss per share for loss
attributable to the owners of the Company for the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 was the
same as basic loss per share because the impact
of the exercise of the share options and convertible
bonds is anti-dilutive.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl ERZXtE@MERLE

TR BRERNEBEEDRERQAEAR AR
1 /8548 49415,556,000/8 Te (— T —+ 4 : 4
193,529,000/ 7t) & B 31T HY & B AR A9 pn i
SE 9 8 494,517,071,0008 (ZF — +F - 4
4,348,296,000%) 5T & - R E M Al R K&
FMTFEAEEREEYE At HE-Z
—NFR-_E—+tF+_A=+—BLFE
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15. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 15. FFE L m BB AN B #H #
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten ENENTR(CZE—+tF: +TR)EEK
(2017: ten) Directors and the chief executive were EREEAENEHEHAT
as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_F—/\E+-A=+—HILEE
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement Equity-settled
and benefits benefits share option Total
Fees in kind schemes expense emoluments
§e 2HR BHER NEREE
e ENEH HE LS BRERR BH ¢
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TET TER
Executive Directors: HnEE:
Mr. Chow Kai Weng BEEEE - 1,220 18 - 1,238
Ms. Law Po Yee (Resigned BERAT(RZE-)\5
on 15 November 2018) T-AtRARE) - 888 17 - 905
Ms. Sin Ho Yee (Resigned FBERT(RZT-N\F
on 15 November 2018) +-AtRAED) - 263 1 - 276
Mr. Cheng Wang Chun BlBrE(R=F-N\5
(Appointed on 4 May 2018) TANAERA) - 479 11 - 490
Mr. Ho Leung Ting (Appointed ~~ AIREXE(N=F- &
on 15 November 2018) t-ATRBEZA) - 80 3 - 83
Non-executive Directors: FufrEs:
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam FERAERZT-N\F
(Resigned on 4 May 2018) TABBER) - 913 8 - 921
Mr. Li Sin Hung, Maxim FRAFE(RZE-NE
(Resigned on 5 January 2018 —AEEET) - = = = -
Dr. Lam Lee G. HEEEL 100 - - - 100
Independent non-executive ~ BAFHFTES:
Directors:
Mr. Chan Tin Lup, Trevor RRIZEMZF-N
(Resigned on 1 July 2018) E-F-HEf) 30 - - - 30
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert EFCRE 60 - - - 60
Prof. Wong Lung Tak, Patrick ~ EEEAR (N-F-NE
(Resigned on 1 January 2019) ~ —A—HE() 60 - - - 60
Mr. Li Kit Chee ZRZRE 60 - - - 60
Total emoluments ams 310 3,843 10 - 4,203
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15. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF 15. B LRBEHABH M=)
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZFT—tF+ZA=1+—HLEFE
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement Equity-settled
and benefits benefits share option Total
Fees in kind schemes expense emoluments
Ho RBER BRI NEREE
Be ENEH A ERERT e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEL TEL TEL TEL
Executive Directors: HrES:
Ms. Law Po Yee BERuT - 960 18 514 1492
Ms. Sin Ho Yee RERRL - 240 12 514 766
Mr. Chow Kai Weng AR EE - 720 18 5,164 5902
Non-executive Directors: ez
Mr. Sin Kok Lam HEMAE - 2,400 18 514 2932
M. Li Sin Hung, Maxim FREREMZT-NF
(Resigned on 5 January 2018)  — AR BE(E) 4 - - 514 554
Dr. Lam Lee G. WERBEL(R-E—+%
(Appointed on 30 June 2017)  KA=TREZM) 50 - - - 50
Independent non-executive ~ BAFHFES:
Directors:
Mr. Chan Tin Lup, Trevor RRL%E 60 - - 514 574
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert P 2 60 - - 514 574
Prof. Wong Lung Tak, Patrick ~ EEEHR 60 - - 514 574
Mr. Li Kit Chee X e 60 - - 514 574
Total emoluments aHe 330 4320 66 9,276 13,992
Notes: B -
Ms. Law Po Yee (“Ms. Law”) and Mr. Chow Kai Weng ZERLT((BzL])REAREELERBRIR
were also the chief executive of the Company and her/his NETHEH  FBEER2MNEEEEEASITTH
emoluments disclosed included those for services rendered BEAREREOHNE BE_ZT—/\FER_ZF
by her/his as the chief executive. There was no —tF+ A=+ HLFETEFNEBRES
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to WESXRERETAMESOZTHE -

waive any remuneration during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the REBEE-_Z—N\FEFh_Z—+HE+-A=+—8H
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the HEE AEEMERATREESINERNNE
Group or as compensation for loss of office during the ARBI HEMARNEBSEAMARNERZ BS
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. of Bl B v E o
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16. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 16. & B %i M

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments EAEERERARFMALHT OE(ZF
in the Group, four (2017: all) of them were Directors —tF 2E)RARTES  BEN T
of the Company whose emoluments are included in EREXMFISHHEE REBEE_T—N\F
the disclosures in Note 15 above. The emoluments F-ZT—+tE+-_A=+—HILEE #T
of the remaining individual for the year ended 31 —BALTHEFMOT
December 2018 and 2017 were as follows:
2018 2017
—E—N\F —E—LtF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FAET
Salaries and other benefits FekEMBET 775 —
Retirement benefit costs RN TR F R AR - —
775 —
Their emoluments were within nil to HK$1,000,000. 1% %5 8 5 B T Z £1,000,0007% 7T ©
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the FA-AEEHERNTEESMEeEES XN
Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as ERFRBNE R I AR S B 3ol AR 2 2R =k
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or BB AHE(CE—tF 8\

as compensation for loss of office (2017: nil).
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17. W% ~ R ik il
EQUIPMENT

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
land and Hotel Leasehold office vehicles Film
buildings properties  improvements equipment and yacht studio Total
HETHER HEME HHRER
gy EENE R BOERE  RERER E2k ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
COST BE
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZE—t5-A-R
ok 10,910 752,402 4,157 45,728 6,793 884,127 1,704,117
Additions wE - 1,765 89 3,769 288 96,363 102,274
Deficit on valuation hEEL - (8,956) - - - (82,440) (91,396)
Effect of foreign currency NEERZBENTE
exchange differences 831 41,198 55 3,409 1M 49,648 95,252
Balance at 31 December 2017  RZZ—+F
and 1 January 2018 +ZA=+-8k
—E-N\%
—A—BNE& 1,741 786,409 4,301 52,906 7,192 947,698 1,810,247
Additions "E - - - 807 650 61,987 63,444
Disposal ﬁ & - - (1,220) (69) (559) - (1,848)
Surplus/(Deficit) on valuation ERE/ (B4) - 8,090 - - - (89,677) (81,587)
Effect of foreign currency NEEHZEMTE
exchange differences (609) (30.262) (“2) (2,504) 88) (35,042) (68,547)
Balance at 31 December 2018 R =F—\&
+ZB=t+-H
okt 11,132 764,237 3,039 51,140 7,195 884,966 1,721,709
DEPRECIATION ik
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZE—t5-fA-R
okt 1,830 - 2,509 12,599 2,195 - 19,133
Depreciation expense NERX 492 22,003 695 8,004 1,187 26,196 58,957
Deficit on valuation hEEA - (22,299) - - - (26,196) (48,489)
Effect of foreign currency NEERZENTE
exchange differences 157 - 35 1,192 54 - 1,438
Balance at 31 December 2017  RZZ—+F
and 1 January 2018 +ZA=+-8k
—E-N\E
—A-BH#&# 2,479 - 3,239 21,885 3,436 - 31,039
Depreciation expense FERZ 498 24,012 337 8,322 1,140 28,938 63,247
Written back upon disposal HERER - - (755) (30) (316) - (1,101)
Deficit on valuation fEERL - (24,012) - - - (28,938) (52,950)
Effect of foreign currency NEEHZEMNTE
exchange differences (146) - (35) (1,486) (49) - (1,716)
Balance at 31 December 2018 R =F—\&
+-R=+-H
e 2,831 - 2,786 28,691 4,211 - 38,519
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
Balance at 31 December 2018 R=F—\&
+=R=+-H
ikt 8,301 764,237 253 22,449 2,984 884,966 1,683,190
Balance at 31 December 2017  RZ-Z—+F
+-F=+-H
b 9,262 786,400 1,062 31,021 3,756 947,698 1,779,208
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17. W3 ~ Wi Je st i (4)

EQUIPMENT (continueaq)

Hotel properties were revaluated on 31 December
2018 and 2017 by RHL Appraisal Limited (“RHL”")
an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group. RHL is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and have
appropriate qualifications and recent experience
in the valuation of properties in the relevant
location. The revaluation surplus of approximately
HK$32,102,000 (2017: deficit of approximately
HK$13,337,000) net of applicable deferred income
taxes expenses of approximately HK$8,026,000
(2017: approximately HK$3,334,000) was credited
to properties revaluation reserve in the amount
of approximately HK$24,076,000 (2017: debited
to properties revaluation reserve of approximately
HK$10,003,000). If the hotel properties had not
been revalued, it would have been included in the
consolidated financial statements at historical cost of
approximately HK$453,713,000 (2017: approximately
HK$453,713,000) as at 31 December 2018.

Film Studio were revaluated on 31 December
2018 and 2017 by RHL. The revaluation
deficit of approximately HK$60,739,000 (2017:
deficit of approximately HK$56,244,000) net
of applicable deferred income taxes credit
of approximately HK$15,185,000 (2017:
approximately HK$14,061,000) was debited to
properties revaluation reserve in the amount of
approximately HK$45,554,000 (2017: debited to
properties revaluation reserve of approximately
HK$42,183,000). If the film studio had not been
revalued, it would have been included in the
consolidated financial statements at historical cost of
approximately HK$818,434,000 (2017: approximately
HK$791,490,000) as at 31 December 2018.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current
use.

BEDER_ZE—NER-_FT—+tF+=A4
=+—BaEXkFITFEREB AR QT ([KF
7 —RBEAEEEFHENBILAERE
XEEMEM/R - XFTAEBIEMES
MEeE EAEEERABTHNEHEE L
EITYEMLE - BH & # 432,102,000 7T
— T — 4 E444913,337,000 7T) 1Bk
A /IR E AT1S B 2 498,026,000 7T (=
T —+4F : #93,334,0008 L) E AW EE G
&6 B P 1E h1 924,076,000 T (Z 2 —+F
A ) % & 5 4%+ F1B% 910,003,000 7T ) ©
B EMEY BETER  EBZ_F—N
F+_AZ+ —BHHEFE L KAY
453,713,000 (= & — £ F: &
453,713,000/ 7T) T AR & B F5 R 3K o

FEBERZE-NEFRZZE—+tF+ZA
—t+—HHEXAMOTERF - EGHHBEAD
60,739,000/ 7T(= T — + F: & & &
56,244,000/ 7T) 10 B i A /Y IR & FT 15 £
% #)15,185,0008 7T(= T — £ F: 4
14,061,000 ) E R MEE G HEF B
4945,554,0008 T (—ZE—tF : REEH
T 18 30 4 4942,183,000/8 7T ) ° M 828 &
KEN AR -_T—N\F+_A=+—8
B JE Pk 7K #9818,434,00008 T (= & — +
F 1 #791,490,0008 70) T ASR & MR K -

REFDENRAER  WENRSRRE
R /HEBRBRE -
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continueaq)

The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these hotel properties and film studio
are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and key inputs used), as well as the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Level 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the key inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.

As at 31 December 2018:

17. W3¢ ~ Ws B st (&)

TRERAEZZBEENERTZERNAA
BrAEE(CERMAHRERTREI2E
ABBIWEN URABAAEBEFERR
AAEHETBZGAREBENAIBEEREND
BHAREER(F-—REE=H) -

RZE—-—N\F+ZA=+—8":

Fair value Valuation techniques and Significant Range/
Element hierarchy key inputs unobservable inputs Amount  Sensitivity
EXTIHE
TE AREES FHERHRIEGAHR BARR HE/ 8 HBE
Hotel Level 3 Depreciated replacement costs  Replacement costs of RMB663,000,000  The higher the costs of
properties approach (based on current constructions (2017: RMB655,000,000) constructions, the

cost of replacement of the hotel properties higher the fair values
improvements, less
allowance for physical
deterioration and all relevant
forms of obsolescence and
optimisation)

BEME F=H WEEEMNE(ERDERE I FTRINEE AR 663,000,000 BERARSD AnE
BRIZEEMAS BREKE X (Z2—+tF: Lt
ER—IHEBLANRER A R #:655,000,000)
B IELINR)

Film studio Level 3 Income approach-discounted Discount, rate 14.00% The higher the discount
cashflow approach (2017: 16.40%) rate, the lower the fair

value
FEM F=H WAE - BRREREE BR% 1400% ERERAF ARERE

At the end of the reporting period, the net carrying
amount of film studio held under finance leases of
the Group was approximately HK$8,302,000 (2017:
approximately HK$9,262,000).

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA

(Z2—t%:16.40%)

RIREEER  AEBREMBHERAENY
R 2 B8R F E 4 58,302,000 T (= F
—+ 4 1 #99,262,0007 TT) °
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18. LAND LEASE PREPAYMENTS 18. # A Ll &

2018 2017
—E—\§ —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FHBT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBEBNZ DN
Non-current asset ERBEE 371,074 456,304

19. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 19. Fif J& 2 W) 51 5%

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at ARAARBEPRROEENB AR FBN
the end of the reporting period are set out as N
follows:
Issued and fully Proportion of nominal
Forms of Place of paid share capital/  value of issued capital/
business incorporation or registered capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary structure registration paid-up capital held by the Company Principal activities
HMAIEE ERTRARRE/ FATMBERTRE
MEASEE EBEERX SR HMEF EHEES  EE/SRERLH TEEH
2018 2017
TE-N\F s
National Arts Entertainment Limited Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Provision of management services to
(“NA Entertainment”) HK$1,500,000 (indirect) (indirect) artistes in Hong Kong
BEREERAFA(HERE]) FMRL BB &8 %1,500,000% 7T 100% 100% HEEREAREEERY
(M) (%)
National Arts Entertainment Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
Holdings Limited Islands US$192,308 (direct) (direct)
HEREERERRA Bl EBHRES T®R192308% T 100% 100% EFBETRELR
(E#) (B%)
National Arts Production & Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Provision of promotional performance
Promotions Limited HK$1 (indirect) (indirect) services in Hong Kong
BB EREEERAA ERIg7AvA S EERIBT 100% 100%  FEEBREHEER RS
() (f4)
National Arts Films Production Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Provision of distribution of film in
Limited (“NA Film”) HK$1,500,000 (indirect) (indirect) Hong Kong
HEFYRREFRAR Bl BB &8 1%1,500,000% 7T 100% 100% HAEBRERETEY
(TEEFR]) (M) (%)
Art Tour Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Inactive
HK$10,000 (direct) (direct)
BEEERAF a4 Bk &3 1%10,000% 7T 100% 100% EEH
(E#) (B%)
Glory Max Group Limited Incorporated  British Virgin Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
Islands US$1 (direct) (direct)
B4l EBGEREE EBRET 100% 100% HEEBETREER
(E#) (E%)
Head Return Limited (“HRL”) Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
HK$100 (indirect) (indirect)
EREBAA(EED EalfIAvA BB L@IR100% T 100% 100% HEEBETREER
(M) (%)
Expand Pacific Limited (‘EPL") Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
HK$100 (indirect) (indirect)
AFFRBERATA Bl £ L#MR100% T 100% 100% EFBETREZER
(TRFHER]D (R#) (%)
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19. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

19. Fif J& 2 ¥l 51 % (&)

Issued and fully

Proportion of nominal

Forms of Place of paid share capital/  value of issued capital/
business incorporation or registered capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary structure registration Paid-up capital held by the Company Principal activities
M ERTRERRES FATMBEBRTRE
WEASEE EBRERS S HMEE BEHEE HE/EREXLH TEREHR
2018 2017
—F-0\£ i
Foshanshi Huixing Jiudian Wholly foreign  PRC Registered capital of 100% 100%  Hotel operation in the PRC
Co., Ltd* owned US$45,000,000 (indirect) (indirect)
enterprise
(“WFOE”")
BUTEEBEFRAR NEBEELE HH TMEX 100% 100% FEHREEEEE
45,000,000% 7 () (%)
Foshanshi Huishoujingqu WFOE PRC Registered capital of 100% 100%  Property development and operation
Kai Fa Co., Ltd* US$40,000,000 (indirect) (indirect) of film studio and theme park in the
PRC
HUTEESEREERAF NEBERE TH afEx 100% 100% HEREERVEREEZRMREE
40,000,000% 7 (B#&) (%) 2H
Foshanshi Yupinxuan Trading Domestic PRC Registered capital of 100% 100%  Retailing of souvenirs in the PRC
Co., Ltd* enterprise RMB100,000 (indirect) (indirect)
BILTHRFFEERAA NERE FE AMERARE 100% 100% EFEZELDM
100,0007C () (%)
Foshanshi Yufu Food & Domestic PRC Registered capital of 100% 100%  Light refreshment restaurant in the
Beverage Co., Ltd* enterprise RMB100,000 (indirect) (indirect) PRC
BUTHRRRERAF NERE HE AfERARS 100% 100% RABEEEEREE
100,0007T (E#) (%)
Rainbow Dragon Corporation Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
Limited HK$150 (indirect) (indirect)
EIUBERATF & Ml A 32 BB B R15078 T 100% 100% HAEBEGTREER
() (F#)
Wide Expand Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
HK$100 (indirect) (indlirect)
BEERAT Bl £ L mARET100 100% 100% EFBETREER
() (F#)
Broad Sky Investment Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Inactive
HK$20 (direct) (direct)
BRREERAF iz E LiR0E T 100% 100% EEH
(E#) (E%)
National Arts Travel Limited Incorporated  Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Provision of travel related products
HK$500,000 (indirect) (indirect) in Hong Kong
BEREERAF & Ml A 32 BB & 1 1%500,00038 7T 100% 100% HAEBRGEREREER
() (F#)
Elegant Motion Enterprises Limited  Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
Islands USs$1 (direct) (direct)
EHEEXBERAA Bl EBERES EERIET (E#) (Bf) HEBEBETREZR
Flash Star Holdings Limited Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
Islands USs$1 (direct) (direct)
BEZBRERRF Bl EBERES EERIET (E#) (B#) HEBEBETREZR
Wealth Day Enterprises Limited Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
Islands USs$1 (direct) (direct)
EBREBRAA Bl EBERES EERIET 100% 100% EFBETREZER
(E#) (B%)
National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited BRETILERERAT
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19. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 19. Wit & 2 ¥ 5 % (&)

(Continued)
Issued and fully Proportion of nominal
Forms of Place of paid share capital/  value of issued capital/
business incorporation or registered capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary structure registration Paid-up capital held by the Company Principal activities
M ERTRERRES FATMBEBRTRE
WEASEE ¥BEERS FRHH HMEE BEHEE HiE/ EREXLE TEREHR
2018 2017
—F-0\£ i
Lux Unicorn Limited (“Lux Unicorn”) Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
HK$100 (indirect) (indirect)
BBERAR([HE]) g7 AvA &% LRAR100% T 100% 100% HEEBETREAR
(GE:3) (f#)
NA Sing Sing Entertainment Limited Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 51% 51%  Provision of event coordination
HK$500,000 (indirect) (indirect) services in Hong Kong
BEREBRANA EAligIAvA BB & 1 1%500,00038 7T 51% 51% EAERUEDRERY
() (F#)
Brillant Grand Limited Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary shares of 100% — Inactive
Islands Us$1 (direct)
Brillant Grand Limited ERigIAva EBERES EERIET 100% - BEH
(E#)
Bright Joyful Development Limited  Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary shares of 100% —  Inactive
Islands USs$1 (direct)
Bright Joyful Development Limited & fif A iz EB&REE EBRRER 100% - EEK
(E#)
Thousand Famous Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% —  Inactive
HK$100 (indirect)
TEERAR EAligIAvA BB B R1007E T 100% - BX(%B
()
Real Wind Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% —  Inactive
HK$100 (indirect)
BEZBERAT a4 Bk E@IR10078 T 100% - BEH
()
—BEERELH (RY) AR AE WFOE PRC Register capital of 100% —  Inactive
RMB500,000 (indirect)
—E2HRERBEARINERAA HEBELE +H AfERARS 100% - EEHB
500,0007C (E#)
BLTEEREREERERDA Domestic PRC Register capital of 100% —  Inactive
enterprise RMB1,000,000 (indirect)
HUTEEZSEERERAF NER% HE aMERARE 100% - BX(%B
1,000,0007C ()
BLUTEEESREERHERAR WFOE PRC Register capital of 100% —  Inactive
US$300,000 (indirect)
BUTHEEREEERARAA HEBEALE $E TMEX 100% - EBEB
US$300,0007C ()
BLUTERREERAF Domestic PRC Register capital of 100% —  Inactive
enterprise RMB500,000 (indirect)
BUTERKEFRAF NERE FE AfERARS 100% - EE£HB
500,0007C (E#)
BLTEREAREERDA Domestic PRC Register capital of 100% —  Inactive
enterprise RMB1,000,000 (indirect)
BUTERBEAREERDA NER% HE AMERARE 100% - BX(%B
1,000,0007C ()
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19. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 19. Kt & 2 ¥ 5 % (&)

(Continued)
Issued and fully Proportion of nominal
Forms of Place of paid share capital/  value of issued capital/
business incorporation or registered capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary structure registration Paid-up capital held by the Company Principal activities
M ERTRERRES FATMBEBRTRE
MEASEE ¥BEERS FRHH iAmEs EHES HiE/ ERERLH TEREHR
2018 2017
—F-0\£ i
BLTRAFREAREER2E Domestic PRC Register capital of 100% —  Inactive
enterprise RMB1,000,000 (indirect)
BUTRAZREBARBERLDA NECE FE AEAARE 100% - EE£HB
1,000,0007C ()
BILTEABHEE L EMTEEER Domestic PRC Register capital of 100% —  Inactive
NS enterprise RMB30,000 (indirect)
HUTEHEE U EMEEER NELE HE AMERARE 100% - BX(HB
G| 30,000 ()
National Arts Film Shooting Base  Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% — Inactive
Management Company Limited HK$100 (indirect)
BEYREMERERAR Bl £ L#AR100% T 100% - EBEB
()
BUTEHERRERERAA WFOE PRC Register capital of 100% —  Inactive
US$3,000,000 (indirect)
BUTEEREEEERAA NEBELE TE At EA 100% - EEHB
3,000,000 7 ()
* For identification purpose only * (E s E
Note: B 3F -
None of the subsidiaries had issued any listed securities at NIBERAR BHENBATERITEMLETES -
the end of the reporting period. The Group had no BE-_Z-NER-_FT—+E+-_A=1+—H1IF
subsidiaries which have materials non-controlling interests FE  ANEBWENBATIHAE = AN IFIEIRESS -

for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
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20. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT 20 A B ERE
VENTURE

Details of the Group’s investment in a joint venture AEEEGECERENFBOT
are as follows:

2018 2017

—E—N\E§E —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHER FET

Unlisted investment, at cost JEETRE @ RKAE 11,400 11,400
Share of post-acquisition loss and oG U BE 1 s 18 R Ho A
other comprehensive income, Z2HEBA - B2 K

net of dividends received % & (6,072) (5,000)

5,328 6,400

Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of AEESECERBSHRNFBENOT

the reporting period are as follows:

Country of Principal place Proportion of ownership Proportion of voting rights
Name of entity incorporation of business interest held by the Group held by the Group Principal activity
EREE HMRIER IEZENE  FRARANAEEELGIHS FRERFHREHELSN IEEH
2017
—T—+F
Zhuhaishi Guoyi Yingshi PRC PRC 60% 60% 60% 60%  Cinema Operation
Management Co., Ltd* (indirect) (indirect) (indirect) (indirect)
WETEEYREEERE +E FE () (i) () (M%) ®EEFR
BRAA
* For identification purpose only * EREE
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20. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT 20 B ERE B
VENTURE (continuea)

Summarised financial information of the joint BELEMBEMBE

venture

Summarised financial information in respect of the ﬁ%ﬁ$§%é%ﬁ¥é’]2f§/§\ﬁiﬁ\%%%ﬁ]m
Group’s joint venture is set out below. The e Lélﬁ@‘%éfﬂﬁ%x%a AECERER
summarised financial information below represents AHBRELNFERHOABREMAN S
amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial o

statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity BEBPRRUEFREVBRERNEHERE
method in these consolidated financial statements. Ak e
2017
—E'—N\E —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH&ET BT
Current assets mEEE 1,699 2,336
Non-current assets FEMBEE 11,645 13,742
Current liabilities nEEE 4,974 5,437
Non-current liabilities EREAaE - —
The above amounts of assets and il EERAESSE
liabilities include the following: BEATEE:
Cash and cash equivalents RehRE&EEHAEE 821 1,239
Current financial liabilities nBEeMEECTERE
(excluding trade and other payables FETE 5 I8 & E At
and provisions) FEASTRIB A R B 5D — —
Non-current financial liabilities FnRBeREE(TEE
(excluding trade and other payables JETE 5308 kA A
and provisions) FETSRIBIA R B 1) - —
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20. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT

VENTURE (continuea)

Summarised financial information of the joint

venture (Continued)

200 BN ERE 2

BELRMBANME S

2018 2017
—F—-N\EFE —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FAET
Revenue A 6,465 7,212
Loss for the year REFEEE (1,787) (1,087)
Other comprehensive income AREFHMEERKA
for the year = —
Total comprehensive expense AEE2ERAY A
for the year (1,787) (1,087)
Dividends received from the AEEBAREDE
joint venture during the year W ER B i B - —
The above loss for the year include L AFEEERRE
the following: LATIE B
Depreciation and amortisation EREH 165 (155)
Interest income B A 4 2
Interest expense FMERXZ — —
Income tax expense FrS iR - —
The amount due from a joint venture was BHGBERXNBIFERELRRT  RER
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. ARERERE -
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—+ = B
21. FILM PRODUCTS AND FILM 21. B E R AE B E R E
PRODUCTION IN
PROGRESS
Films
production
Film rights in progress Total
EFHEF EREVER @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAHT FAT FHT
Cost: B
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZT—+5—H—H
) 4 B 103,187 3,630 106,817
Additions NE — _ _
Transfer to film products HRZEYER 3,630 (3,630) —
Balance at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+F+=A
and 1 January 2018 =+—BEZZE-N\F
—A— BN 106,817 - 106,817
Additions NE 14 — 14
Balance at 31 December 2018 WRZ=ZF—/\%F
+ZA=+—-HB0EE 106,831 - 106,831
Accumulated amortisation Rt E R RERE:
and impairment losses:
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—A—HW
# R 103,187 - 103,187
Amortisation of film products EXEMEE 1,210 - 1,210
Balance at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+&+=A
and 1 January 2018 =+—BRZZE-N\F
—A—HH&EH 104,397 - 104,397
Amortisation of film products EYEmMEH 1,224 - 1,224
Balance at 31 December 2018 WRZT—/\%E
+TZRA=+—HWER 105,621 - 105,621
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
Balance at 31 December 2018 WRZ=F—/\£
+ZA=+—BM5EER 1,210 - 1,210
Balance at 31 December 2017 R_E—+F
TZA=t—BNESR 2,420 - 2,420
Note: B 5T
Amortisation charge of approximately HK$1,224,000 (2017: B B E M A e 8 X2 491,224,000 T (Z &

approximately HK$1,210,000) with respect to film rights
has been included in cost of fiim production in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Amortisation of film right is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal useful lives are one year to
three years.

—-t4F : £1,210,00087T) Bt AGRE B R EM
2HEIRARPEOEFZEIERR B R0 ) #8HU
B ARR IR B A FT AT B A HA M 8 L AR AN B L AL
BEEAE - X2 FEAFHA S =F-
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22. INVESTMENTS IN FILMS/ 22. & BB WA
DRAMAS PRODUCTION

2018 2017
—F—N\EF —EF—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH&ET FET
Investments in films/dramas production % & &5 BBl &1 1,311 986
Note: B EE
The amount represents investments in licensed production ZEHERERBRERR  UAEBY R
houses for co-financing the production of films and/or BIZEHALE ZEREHAEEREEQF
dramas. The investments are governed by the relevant IV BEHERE  BEHBE  AEBEAREK
agreements entered into between the Group and the BETHBER BB mEEHF -

production houses whereby the Group is entitled to
benefits generated from the distribution of the related films
and/or dramas.
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

23. BEWH 5k H

2018 2017
—E—N\F ZE—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FET

Trade receivables EWE 5 5 IA
— travel agents — IREEMRIE 102,386 66,824
— production crews — BEE 23,382 55,454
— others — HEith 9,391 5,317
135,159 125,595
Less: allowance for credit losses W EEBEREE (6,982) —
128,177 125,595

The Group generally allows a credit period from 30
to 90 days (2017: 30 to 90 days) to its trade
customers in respect of film production and
distribution sales of travel related products, artiste
management and event coordination and hotel
operation. In respect of travel agent selling tickets
of a film studio owned by the Group on behalf of
the Group (such ticket agent was new for the year
ended 31 December 2018) (referred to as “Ticket
Selling Agent A), the credit period granted by the
Group to the Ticket Selling Agent A was about 1
year from the date when the related revenue is
recognised by the Group. The Group assessed and
concluded that there was a significant financing
component and hence the Group adjusted the
promised consideration by using a discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the Ticket
Selling Agent A. When the tickets are sold by Ticket
Selling Agent A on behalf of the Group, the Group
only recognised the consideration adjusted for the
financing component as the revenue. The
consideration allocated to the financing income is
recognised as interest income over the credit
period. The amount of interest income recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to
HK$3,421,000.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. W E 5k H ()

(Continued)

The Group in previous years had engaged another
agent to sell tickets on behalf of the Group (referred
to as “Ticket Selling Agent B”). During the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered into
an arrangement with the Ticket Selling Agent B
such that the Group agreed to extend the payment
date for 12 months from the date of 31 August
2018 which, according to the arrangement, will be
due for payment from December 2018 to July
2019. The Group considered that such an
arrangement was a modification; the difference
between the gross carrying amount of the
receivable and the present value of the agreed cash
flows discounted at the appropriate discount rate
was recognised as a loss for the year ended 31
December 2018, amounting to HK$5,254,000. As at
31 December 2018, the carrying amount of the
receivable from the Ticket Selling Agent B
amounting to HK$40,809,000. Since the
arrangement was entered into and up to the date
when the consolidated financial statements were
authorised for issue, the Ticket Agent B had
payment of HK$15,500,000 in accordance with the
arrangement. Accordingly, the Directors considered
no additional impairment as at 31 December 2018
is necessary.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had trade
receivables from film production companies
amounting to HK$23,382,000 (2017:
HK$55,454,000). For the year ended 31 December
2018, an expected credit loss (“ECL") of
HK$1,728,000 was recognised. The estimation of
ECL was determined neither based on the best
scenario nor the worst scenario. The Directors
estimated the amount of ECL based on the
expected amount and timing of payments. In
general, an ECL is determined based on the
present value of the difference between (a) the
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
and (b) the cash flows expected to be received by
the Group, at the appropriate discount rate. The
adopted discount rate was taken into account the
credit risk characteristics of such debtors.

AEBRELNEEERES —2REARLRE
EEE(TXRAIEEREB]) -REBEE=
Z-NF+_A=+—"BIFE KAEHHE
EZREBITULH Bt AEERAE -
H-ZE—-N\FENA=T—BEEENZBEH
12@A MBREZZHE HH-_ZF—N\F
+-RE_Z-hFELARPNF - AEE
RAEZLZHEE—IBIER  BRFBR@EAE
HIZEAERRERBEOREESRERED
ZR2 DPDHEREBEE_-_Z—-—NF+ A
=+ —HFEMNEIE £ A5254,000%8
T -R-_E—NFE+_A=+—08 Eke
£ R B/ X 18 IR E & A40,809,0007% JT °
MRERILZTH MEBEEGRATEHRERE
REZLAH EEZREBERBRHEXIMN
15,500,000 LB  EFERANE
éﬂi+:ﬂz+—E*W%L¢ﬁ%%W

RZE—-NFE+_A=+—H8 r&EEHE
WEEXRERAMNERESINIE 2 8LH
23,382,000/ 7T (=& — £ : 55,454,000/%
L) RBEZE—N\F+-_A=+—H1
FE - DHER1,728,0008 TR TEEIZE KB
([FEEEEEIE] - M EHEERE I
IRBEREXREBRET -EZREEH
NRmeBE kil HfEEBENSE -
—MmE —EBEHEEBEELREATHR
HEHNZENREET  QFENTAEENED
ReRe BO)AEEBHEESHEESR
B RBEEMRREGFE - BRAMEBEX
Bt hZERRFENEERRIEE -
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

234

(Continued)

Except for a customer arising from entrance fee
income, whose credit term for payment was about
12 months after tickets are sold, the following is the
ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of
allowances for bad and doubtful debts, presented
based on the invoice date:

23. W HE 5wk H (&)

BERBMAZRANEEPERIN HARNEE
BROREREMI2EA - AT REKES
REMRE DT EMBRRIFREE LR
HEAME R

2018 2017

—E-N\#F —T—+tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TER FET

0 to 60 days 0%60H 9,330 40,669
61 to 90 days 61£E90H 7,430 19,906
91 to 180 days 912180H 11,533 37,129
Over 180 days #B3@180H 99,884 27,891
128,177 125,595

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of
approximately HK$60,575,000 were neither past due
nor impaired. These balances related to certain
customers whom there was no recent history of
default.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the balances
are debts with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$65,020,000 which were past due at the
reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. Trade receivables that
are past due but not impaired relate to a number of
customers and the Directors are of the opinion that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA
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23.

24.

TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Continued)
The following is the ageing analysis of trade

receivables which are past due but not impaired
based on the due date:

23. W HE 5wk H (&)

UTARREINNA  CESESERENE
WHE ZRIBEORE DT

2017
—E—+F
HK$’000
FiET

0 to 90 days 0£90H
Over 90 days R #EB90H

37,129
27,891

65,020

Movement on the Group’s allowance for impairment
of trade receivables are as follows:

AEBERERWE SHRBHRERBEBHIT

2017

—E—tF

HK$’'000

FAET

At 1 January mn—H—H —
Impairment losses of trade receivables EUE SR IEREEE 13
Written offs 88 (18)
At 31 December Bn+=—A=+—8H —

INVENTORIES 24. 1+ B

2018 2017

—E—N\EF —ZE—+F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FH& T

Food and beverage B 683 1,369
Merchandise G 984 1,074
General operating supplies and others — & & E & H b 1,261 538
2,928 2,981

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited SRETILEAERAA
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25. T ~ ¥ 8 K 3 b FE K
X JH

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

236

2018 2017
—F—)\EF —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER FET
Non-current assets FREEE
Long-term receivable (notes (i) and (i) & 8 /& Yo 5k 18
(P 3 (i) B (i) ) 55,990 100,181
Investment and other deposits WEREMES
(notes (iii) and (iv)) (B 3 i) R (iv) ) 36,565 4,901
92,555 105,082
Current assets RENEE
Prepayments AR 13,208 19,461
Rental deposits HEHRS 1,614 1,672
Other deposits Hiwif & 2,258 1,165
Deposits paid to suppliers BEfftEmES 1,158 6,341
Other receivables (note (i) H e Wk 18 (B (i) ) 36,227 52,833
54,492 81,472
147,047 186,554

Notes:

The long-term receivable originally represented the
amount due from a local government company
which was repayable in 40 years and secured by
the Wong Tai Sin Temple located in Xigiao
Mountain in Foshan City, the PRC. The Group and
the PRC local government company mutually
agreed that interest, based on the People’s Bank of
China Benchmark Interest Rates, would not be
accrued until the Wong Tai Sin Temple records a
monthly turnover of more than RMB100,000 for six
consecutive months. The amount was denominated
in RMB. The monthly turnover threshold had not
been met yet in part.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
PRC government issued Guozongfa (2017) No. 88
(the “Guozongfa”) on 3 November 2017 to address
the commercialisation issues relating to the
development of Buddhism and Taoism in the PRC.
Under the Guozongfa, it is promulgated that
commercial capital is strictly forbidden to intervene
in Buddhist Taoism and no organisation or
individual may invest or contract for the operation
of Buddhist Taoism activities or conduct business
operations on or through Buddhist Taoism venues.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

After the issuance of the Guozongfa, the Group,
with the assistance of PRC legal advisers,
proceeded to assess the legal effects of the
Guozongfa on the construction management
agreement entered into with the PRC local
government company and to discuss with the PRC
local government company in order to effect
amendments to the terms of the agreement
considered necessary as a result of the
promulgation of the Guozongfa. The management of
the Group was taking actions and steps considered
necessary to respond to the changes in regulatory
environment brought about by the Guozongfa with
a view to safeguard the Group’s interests in the
Wong Tai Sin Temple and optimize the synergistic
benefits that the temple can bring to the Film
Studio as the temple is located in the film studio
area.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group and the PRC
local government company reached mutual
agreement on the changes to the contractual
arrangements between them to take account of the
changes in the applicable laws and regulations due
to the promulgation of the Guozongfa. In March
2018, the Group and the PRC local government
company officially entered into a loan repayment
agreement which supersedes all previous
agreements between them. Under the terms of the
loan repayment agreement, the PRC local
government company would repay the principal
amount and accrued interest payable under the
superseded agreements amounting to
RMB74,700,000 in aggregate in the following
manner:

— RMB11,259,000 to be repaid on 21 March
2018

— The remaining RMB63,441,000 to be repaid
annually in equal instalments over a period of
15 years, bearing interest at 5% per annum
to be paid together with the annual
repayment instalment.

25. TR ~ ¥ 8 K 3 At FE Wk

I (&

W%t ()
(i) (&)

BIREEME - EREDERBBNBT -
B3 F AT h Bl R 3 4 S e B3 05 BUR A A
FVMEEERBENARYE AR A
B 7 BT X RV EE RS DA B 16 A A M6 K
TR R B RBERRRSBANEE -
AEEERFCRNBANTE RS
EEERESRNEERANES 57
RERAEEEIEAUBONE  AREL
BTARZEARHEROBRAMNE B
BFEURZT RN ES -

R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—H KEBHHE
FEEABFRARLEEBRRERMERE
AHERRERNERSRENGE  EX
BEEZEANEGNRE RZZE—N\F=A"
REBEHEFAEM T EAARERZER
BB MR BT AR EHE -
RIEE R (EE R KR P E T BE
ARAREEWRRRBE TR REMR
sHFLE £ A R#74,700,0007T © HRAOT ¢

— AR #11,259,0007C A =T — )\ F
ZA-Zt+—HEE

— # T AR #63,441,0007T #5 7E 154 5
MAESFEE SHERSEMER -
REBE%E  BERESEHHE
MO e
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

*

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited

(Continued)

The amount of RMB11,259,000 was duly repaid by
the PRC local government company on 21 March
2018. As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate
amount of RMB56,962,000 (2017: RMB74,700,000)
owed to the Group was classified as follows:

— Current assets: approximately HK$8,886,000
(equivalent to RMB7,802,000) (2017:
HK$13,517,800 (equivalent to
RMB11,259,000);

— Non-current assets: approximately
HK$55,990,000 (equivalent to RMB49,159,000)
HK$76,169,000 (equivalent to RMB63,441,000)

Included in the balance of other receivables as non-
current assets of the Group as at 31 December
2017 was loan receivable of RMB20,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$24,012,000). Loan
receivable was unsecured, bearing interest at 10%
per annum and repayable in January 2019. As at
31 December 2018, the balance was classified as
current assets.

Included in the balance of deposits classified as non-
current assets of the Group was deposit of
approximately RMB7,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,973,000) (2017: RMB3,570,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,651,000)) in
relation to a proposed acquisition of 60% equity
interest of FILTMEXIEYL B HMRAF (Foshan
City Yi Mei Wedding Photography Limited*) at a
consideration of RMB8,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$8,931,000). As at 31 December
2017, the proposed acquisition is still under
progress.

Included in the balance of deposits classified as non-
current assets of the Group as at 31 December
2018 was deposit of approximately RMB24,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$27,343,000) in
relation to a proposed acquisition of entire equity
interest of a company established in the PRC. As at
31 December 2018, the proposed acquisition is still
under progress.

For identification purpose only
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AR ¥11,259,0007T K 51 18 2 B B #h 75
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26.

27.

CASH AND BANK
BALANCES/BANK
OVERDRAFTS

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at banks
and in hand and bank overdrafts.

Cash at banks earn interests at the floating rates
pbased on the daily bank deposits rates. Bank
overdrafts carrying interest at market rate which
range from 0.75% per annum below HKD Prime
Rate to 1% per annum over Hong Kong Inter-bank
Offered Rate (2017: range from 0.75% per annum
pbelow HKD Prime Rate to 1% per annum over
Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate).

At 31 December 2018, included in cash and cash
equivalents of the Group was approximately
HK$5,931,000 (2017: approximately HK$2,878,000)
of bank balances denominated in RMB placed with
banks in Hong Kong and the PRC and on hands,
which are not freely convertible into other
currencies.

TRADE PAYABLES

The Group was granted by its suppliers’ credit
periods from 30 to 60 days (2017: 30 to 60 days).
The following is the ageing analysis of trade
payables based on invoice date:

26. Bl R BUTH 8% BT X

ReMREFEBARRBIETFRRENU
KARITE »

RITASHFROMBRENRE R RITHEHRA
KMENFHEEGSE  RITBEX ZFH X
BARBLTREENEKF.75%EEBRTT
REFEMB(ZF—LF : TRETHE
B ER0.75% = BB MITRIEFR S M1%)
CONpR R S

R-E—NF+-_A=+—H NEBAH
BeRBESEEBEEEREUARBIHER
FTRREANTRZMETHNRITES N
FHHIF L 45,931,000 T (Z T —+4F : 4
2,878,000 L) c A\RET R ERABAR
HEE -

27. BEAT H 5wk |

AN EEE M ERIR FI0H 2608 (ZF
—t & :30HE60R)EEH - -ENEZK
BREEZBHNERRSTOT

0 to 30 days 0&30H
31 to 60 days 31260H
61 to 90 days 61290H
91 to 180 days 91&180H
Over 180 days HB#180H

2018 2017
b EtAY: —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT TATT

699 3,154

429 68

469 14

920 1,048

17,462 21,382
19,979 25,666
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28. OTHER PAYABLES AND

29.

28. iy JBE Ak sk 2H K HE wt # A

ACCRUALS
2018 2017
—E—)\E§ —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FiET
Accruals EETE A 47,075 35,680
Receipts in advance B R IE 25 8,898
Other payables o fth FE < 308 36,671 71,414
83,771 115,992
LOANS FROM 29. B B K
SHAREHOLDERS
2018 2017
—EB—\E§ —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Current liabilities RENE &
Mr. Sin (note (a)) S (M 5E(a)) - 396,269
Ms. Law (note (b)) 7 2+ (M sE(b)) - 35,661
Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong (“Mr. Tsang”) CHEETEEED
(note (c)) (Fff 5% (c)) 3,500 3,500
Mr. Tse Young Lai (“Mr. Tse”) IR EE(THEE]D
(note (d)) (Fff 5%(d)) 590 —
Mr. Yiu Kin Kong (“Mr. Yiu”) e M E (T4
(note (e)) (Kt 3E(e)) - 17,243
4,090 452,673
Non-current liabilities ERENERE
Mr. Sin (note (a)) AN @) 527,969 20,000
Ms. Law (note (b)) # 2+ (M 5E (o)) 35,566 —
Mr. Tse (note (d)) 1o A (P 5E(d)) - 7,244
Mr. Yiu Kin Kong (“Mr. Yiu”) skl ot & (THh R £ D)
(note (e)) (Ff¥ 5E(e) ) 33,406 24,143
596,941 51,387

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA
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29. LOANS FROM
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

29. Jik wR Bk @)

The loans from shareholders are repayable as BRROERERUATHRAEE :
follows:
2018 2017
—EF-—N\EF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FHET
Carrying amount repayable: BRUATHRANERZ
BRTEE :
Within one year —FR 4,090 452,673
More than one year, but not exceeding — &F N F{ET B M F
two years 596,941 49,087
More than two years, but not more MENEETBBAESF
than five years - 2,300
601,031 504,060

Notes: BT
(@) In the year ended 31 December 2018, the loans (a)

were unsecured. The loan amounting

HK$40,000,000 included in the loans from Mr. Sin

was interest-free and was repayable within one

year. Except for the abovementioned loan, the

remaining loans from Mr. Sin bear interest ranging

from 6.00% to 15.00% per annum and were

repayable within two years. The loans are

unsecured and bears interest at 6.00% to 15.00%

per annum and are repayable within two years.

(b) The loan was unsecured and bore interest at 5.00% (b)
per annum (2017: 5.00%) and was repayable within
two years (2017: one year).

(c) The loan was unsecured and bore interest at 15.00% (c)
per annum (2017: 15.00%) and was repayable
within one year.

(d) The loan was unsecured and bore interest at 11.50% (d)
per annum (2017: 11.50%) and was repayable
within one year (2017: two years).

(e) The loan was unsecured and bore interest ranging (e)
from 8.00% to 12.00% per annum (2017: 8.00% to
12.00%) and was repayable within two years.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited
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NEE B EXFME RN REKETE
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A BERARMEFERNMEE-

2B AR AR I 325.00% 80 R R E B (—
T—+F:500%) RERBMFE(ZZT—+
F—F)NEE-
ZEFEE A R IR15.00% M FF R5H B (=
MEE -

SN
T—+4F :15.00% ) MBR —F =2

ZERBEERRIRF N EI150%(=F

—tF 1150% )T ERAR—F(ZF
—tF ME)REE -
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rH:
30. BORROWINGS 30. &
2018 2017
—E—N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET FAET
Current liabilities REBBEE
Bank borrowing — secured wITEHE — BER
— Floating rate (note (a), (b)) — F R (M), () 12,392 7,000
12,392 7,000
Other borrowings — secured HigE — BEM
(note (c)) (Bt 5 (c)) 81,780 100,000
Other borrowings — unsecured HiEE — MM
(note (d)) (M 5% () 44,228 93,547
138,400 200,547
Non-current liabilities FREEHE
Bank borrowings — secured RITIEE — AHEA 10,388 —
Other borrowings — unsecured HifgE — mER
(note (d)) (P 3E(d) ) 44,271 20,655
193,059 221,202
The Group’s borrowings are repayable as follows: AEBEEEARNATHRAERER
2017
—E—N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAET
Carrying amount repayable: AR THRANEZRZZ
REE :
Within one year —FR 138,400 200,547
More than one year, but not exceeding — & LA _E1B T B F
two years 54,659 7,497
More than two years, but not MELEETBBERF
exceeding five years - 13,158
193,059 221,202

2112 National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETLEMEGRAF
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30. BORROWINGS (Continued)

31.

Notes:

(@)

The floating rate bank borrowings of the Group are
secured by the Group’s bank’s deposit of
approximately RMB2,000,000 and bears interest at
6.09% to 6.65% per annum.

During the vyear 2017, the floating rate bank
borrowing of the Group was secured by the
Group’s investment properties (Note 16) and bore
interest at 2.75% per annum over Hong Kong Inter-
bank Offered Rate (2016: at 2.75% per annum over
Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate). The floating
rate bank borrowing was denominated in HK$.

The other borrowings were secured by (i) the
personal guarantee executed by Mr. Sin, (i) share
capital of Glory Max Group Limited and EPL and
bore interest at 13.00% per annum.

The other borrowings were unsecured and bore
interest ranging from 2.50% to 12.00% per annum
(2017: from 2.88% to 36.00% per annum). The
other borrowings were repayable within one year to
three years (2017: within the year to three years).
Included in other borrowings was amount of
approximately HK$35,811,000 (2017:
HK$51,250,000) due to Mr. Chow Kai Weng, the
director of the Company.

FINANCE LEASE
OBLIGATION

Future finance lease payments arising from the
leasing of film studio (2017: film studio and motor
vehicle) are due as follows:

Not later than one year TER—F
Later than one year but BR—FEMNER
not later than five years hF
Later than five years EBRAF
Balance at 31 December 2018 A =ZE — )\ 4F
+-F=+—H
2K

30. fi & ()

Bt 3

(8 AEEBEITERNZEUAEENRTE
K H A R ¥2,000,0007T E K 18 - &7 &
5 EF6.09%%E6.65% °

by RZT—tF AEEZERITEEHA
EFEREWE (M E16) T RIRE BT
B ZEFEM2.75% M FH FR(ZF —XF -
EBRITEER B IN2.75%H & 7 =) 5t
B FEEERENATHE:-

() EHiMEBERUTSBEAER  ()EEEET
R E AR ¢ K (i)Glory Max Limited & A F
FHREBRAE - R F £13.00%5T 8 ©

d HEEAEKRKIEZN F250%2
12.00%0 FF Xz B (ZE—tF N TF
2.88%%36.00% 8 F F| &) - {8 E AR
—FE=FREB(ZZ—tF R=F=Z
MER) EMEERERNARAESA
B4 50 4 B 7018 #4935,811,000( = ZF — +
£ 1 51,250,000/ 7T) 7 IT °

31. W % #L B8 & i

REZH (T —tF  BFWRIEEE)
EENARKEENRAT

Minimum

lease
payment Interest Present value
REBAERFR FI2 R1E
2018 2018 2018
—E— N\ —EB—N\E —EB—-N\EF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FTER FTER
11,595 1,857 9,738
7,632 7,355 277
48,988 34,804 14,184
68,215 44,016 24,199
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31. FINANCE LEASE 31. MBMHE&E &)
OBLIGATION (continued)

Minimum
lease
payment Interest Present value
HEBEMRK FLE HE
2017 2017 2017
—E—tF —E—tF —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
Not later than one year TER—F 9,041 1,888 7,153
Later than one year but BR—FEMNER
not later than five years hF 7,927 7,487 440
Later than five years BRAF 59,055 44,017 15,038
Balance at 31 December 2017 RN —ZT—+ 4
+=-F=+—H
2 FEER 76,023 53,392 22,631
The present values of future lease payments are AREENRNBEI A :
analysed as:
2018 2017
—E—N\E —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FAET
Current liabilities mBAaE 9,738 7,153
Non-current liabilities ERBAaE 14,461 15,478
24,199 22,631
Finance lease obligation that are denominated in the NBEMSEBEE G ERTENMBHER
functional currencies of the relevant group entities BHIMOT
are set out below:
2018 2017
—F—-N\EFE —E—LtF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FAET
RMB AR 24,199 22,348
HK$ BT - 283

24,199 22,631
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32. BONDS 32. & %
New Issued Bonds HBRTESF

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company issued the bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of approximately HK$890,110,000
(2017: approximately HK$412,457,000) at par value
in accordance with the conditional placing and
underwriting agreement entered into between the
Company and the independent placing agents. The
bonds have a maturity from three months to 8
years (2017: from three months to 8 years) from the
dates of issue and bear coupon interest ranging
from 0.40% to 9.00% per annum (2017: from 0%

HE-_Z—\F+-_A=+—HILEFE K
ARRBEARREB IR EREITLHEIE
HREMBEDE HAERTASLES
#9890,110,000% (= T — £ F: 4
412,457,000 ) B H - 2 ZEHF N ELT
A Z@AAZENF(ZE—tF: =
AENE)IH BEXN T EHFOI0%E
9.00% (ZZE—+tF : #F0%E9.60%) * Fl
EBHEHN T BESFRPRINFAMNE -
MARESI N ZSEEHFNEMEIHENSEHE

ARIBAEZEER2EI N BHEEF%

£9.60%H (=T —+tF : FF0%E9.60%)
BHOFEZMAFE - xEEHABITTE

to 9.60% per annum), accrued daily and payable
annually in arrears. A default rate ranging from 0%
to 9.60% per annum (2017: from 0% to 9.60%) will
be charged on any sum due and payable under the
Bonds from the due date to the date of actual
payment in full. The bonds were denominated in

HKS.
The movement for the year on the bonds was as AEERNEHFNEHNOT :
follows:
2018 2017
—E—N\EF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH#ET FHET
Balance at 1 January R—A—Bz&&% 719,920 506,803
Proceeds from issue of the bonds BITESFE ?K 890,110 412,457
Transaction cost allocated DEEEES E’J
to the liability component N (93,087) (87,557)
Interest expense (note 9) B (it 5E9) 139,023 83,025
Interest paid during the year FRENHE (126,246) (97,271)
Repayment during the year FANEE (506,401) (73,819)
Transfer to other payables BB S H A e IR - (23,718)
Balance at 31 December Rt+tZRAR=+—Bz2&#% 1,023,319 719,920
Carrying amount repayable: BARNATHRAEEZ
EE@@
Within one year —F R 660,424 306,369
More than one year but not exceeding —&F A BB IBRF
two years 82,725 183,015
More than two years but not exceeding 4 A 1B BB L F
five years 188,348 166,773
More than five years AFLE 91,822 63,763
1,023,319 719,920
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32.

33.

BONDS (Continued)

New Issued Bonds (Continuea)

The fair value of the Bonds at 31 December 2018
amounted to approximately HK$1,128,191,514
(2017: approximately HK$849,432,000). The fair
value of the Bonds are calculated using cash flows
discounted at rate on the borrowings rate ranging
from 7.11% to 9.11% per annum (2017: from
7.26% to 8.99% per annum) and are within level 2
of the fair value hierarchy.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

CB5

As part of the consideration of the acquisition of
Lux Unicorn Limited, the Company issued
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$300,000,000 (“CB5”) on 15 April
2015. The CB5 has a maturity of 3 years from the
date of issue and bears coupon interest at 9% per
annum, accrued daily and payable annually in
arrears. The conversion price of CB5, subject to the
anti-dilution usual adjustments, is HK$0.18 per
conversion share. The CB5 was denominated in
HKS.

The conversion price of the CB5, subject to the
usual adjustments, is HK$0.18 per conversion
share. The outstanding principal amount of the CB5
can be converted in whole or any part (in minimum
amount of HK$300,000 or an integral multiple
thereof) into conversion shares from the date of
issue of the CB5 up to and including the date
falling on the 5th day immediately prior to the
maturity date.

The holder of the CB5 shall be entitled to request
the Company to pay interest to it (wholly or partly)
by way of allotment and issuance of new shares of
the Company at the conversion price on the due
day of the interest payment in lieu of payment by
cash by giving not less than 7 business days’
written notice prior to the due date for payment of
interest. Such interest conversion arrangement is
only applicable to the 9% per annum interest
payment. The Company may redeem the CB5 at
any time prior to the maturity date in whole or any
part (in minimum amount of HK$300,000 or an
integral multiple thereof) at the principal amount of
such CB5 thereof plus interest accrued thereon up
to the actual date of redemption by giving to the
bond holder not less than 10 business days’ written
notice of its intention to make such redemption.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA

32.

33.

&7 (@)
HRTES (D)

BEFER-_ZE—\F+_A=+—HBHZ2AKxE
4 B1,128191 5148 T (Z T — £ F: 4
849,432,000/ 7T) ° EH < AR EBEIVIRAIE
EENEEFEFNF711%E29.11% (= —+
FEFENTFT7.26%E8.99%) B 7B E R
BE TINARABEBSEHE-_H -

] 3 B AR

BAMTRRES

EABRBERBAERARNITDRE XA F
RZE—RAFNA+RAETASBEAR
300,000,000 Tt Al MR E & ([ A H#L A
BRES]) - FRAATBRESFREITHE
B =—FHE SFEEMEXAI% B
SHEFUEASFEBRYNTAFAGE S
AT MBRESFHEBRELSTR LIRKMND
0188 HAX —BREFEFHEMAR -
FERHA BB EFIABITEE -

FRMTBRELF;NHEBREATR L BKG
0188 L HEAX —RAEMER -BF A
AR ESFETBHEEREIHAE
FBE(BFEZA)HM FRAMATBRRESD
REEARS T (&IE S FAE A300,00008 T3k
H o RS H) a2 3k 2o iRk KB RG o

FRPAIRRESNFTEAGRRIIEGE
BRIAARBEHADR7TEZEANEE
BA - BRI S B H B e A A B
REFTARBOFBRODKEDEMAME (2
BB UNREREMK - WF B HER
BERERNIZFEN RO M HFE - AR
AR EBMESHEAZLTDOIMOEEE
EMEEmBNRNEAEFLAREBERNT
TR B B AT B IR IR 5 ALt AT R R B 5 10
AeBEREZEREBER A MR LA EF
B EmeRafs AT BRERES (&
1X & % 78 /3300,000/8 JT 3k K st & ) o
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33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 33. W] )ik i % ()

(Continued)

CB5 (Continuea)

The fair value of the liability component of the CB5
was calculated using future repayments discounted
at an estimated discount rate of 11.28% per
annum. The residual amount of approximately
HK$46,697,000 (being the difference between the
fair value of the CB5 at issuance date and the fair
value of the liability component on initial
recognition) is assigned as the equity component
and is included in equity heading convertible bond
equity reserve. The liability component is
subsequently stated at fair value, with changes
recorded in consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

In May and July 2016, CB5 with aggregate principal
amounts of HK$84,600,000 and HK$35,400,000
were converted into 470,000,000 ordinary shares
and 196,666,666 ordinary shares of the Company in
total at a conversion price of HK$0.18 each
respectively. In June 2015, CB5 with aggregate
principal amounts of HK$79,800,000 were
converted into 443,333,333 ordinary shares of the
Company in total at a conversion price of HK$0.18
each. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
Mr. Sin and four holders of CB5 offered to waive
the accrued interest up to the date of conversion of
approximately HK$12,513,000.

CB5 was due to Mr. Sin as at 31 December 2017.
As at 31 December 2017, the principal amount of
the CB5 was approximately HK$100,200,000.

BAMTRKRES(E)

FRATHREFEBELXIPNARENRS
F11.28% 1) i 51 47 8 = 7 30 oK 2038 XM 51
H o Fl#r 4 5B 446,697,000/ 7T (BN At 7]
BRESFNRETRHN A AABEHBEIL SR
MPERENAABENERE)ERAEZ D
DRETAATBREEFEEFEEOERZEAT
BERDEBREREARERNE  EHEEHRE
AERZAEMEZEKEKRATIE -

RZE—X"FRAREA A2BEAE
84,600,0007% 7T 135,400,000/ 7T K & T #t
ATRRESFZEBESRISHE TER X
A A A& 470,000,000 T B K K&
196,666,666/% L@k - R—ZT—HF A
N4 4858 579,800,000/ 7T B & T 4L AT # AR
BHR L BETROISE TEBRAKRNQNT A
443,333,333\ EBP - REZE T —<F
+ZA=+—BLFE AXERNEER
HABEEFFAEARIREEE LB AY
/) JiE 51 7 B 4912,513,00058 It ©

RZTB—+F+_A=+—H FRHAHR
BREFKEEEE-R-_E—tF+-A
=t—B FAHRABRBREFNASERLY
100,200,000/ 7T ©
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33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 33. " )ik {5 (@)
(Continued)

CB5 (Continued) FAMTRKES (£

FRMATHEBREEFAR T N\FNA+ITHE
B BIBARREELEATIARA-E
—N\F=ZANBZERW#E  ARAFARE
B4R 4 58 54,200,00008 7T 7 8 Tt
AR ES YR - — N\EMA+mAH
EEEFF —DERE RS ARF BT
O AR & AR ¢ £ %8 596,000,000 7T 2
FRMtAERES - BE-_T—N\F+=-A

CB5 matured on 14 April 2018. In accordance with
the loan agreement dated 9 March 2018 entered
into between the Company and Mr. Sin, the CB5
with principal amount of HK$4,200,000 was settled
by the Company by way of loan from shareholder.
The Company also entered into a supplementary
loan agreement with Mr. Sin on 14 April 2018,
pursuant to which, the Company issued promissory
notes for the settlement of the CB5 with principal —t+—HIEFE FRATEEREEZ ARG
amount of HK$96,000,000. For the year ended 31 BAARBEITALEERERERRER TR
December 2018, the CB5 was fully redeemed by EHEM -

the Company by way of issue of promissory note

and loan from shareholder.

248

CB5

EAH

iR ES

HK$’000

FAET

Balance at 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—H—HWN&ER 110,813

Transfer to interest payable HEBEEEMNFE (9,018)

Fair value changes NUIIER ) 4,902
Balance at 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZ-ZZT—+F+_A=+—AK

—E-NF-A-BNEH 106,697

Fair value changes NAEEZEE 2,521

Transfer to interest payable HEBEEEMNFE (9,018)

Settled by way of loan from shareholder IR R E RN (4,200)

Settled by way of promissory note LA BR & (96,000)

Balance at 31 December 2018

R—ZE—NF+_A=+—HH

R
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33.

34.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
(Continued)

Balance at 31 December 2018

33. W L& % (&)

R-ZB—-N\E+ZA=Z+—BHZ&H

CB5
EAH
o] & iz R %

HK$’000
TFH&xT

Carrying amount repayable
Within one year

ARUTHRAEEZREE

Balance at 31 December 2017

RZZE—t+F+A=+—RHZ#&H

CB5
FRH
A #2 i 18 25
HK$’000
THET

Carrying amount repayable
Within one year

ARUTHRAEEZREE

—F R 106,697

The fair values of the liability components CB5 at 31
December 2018 amounted to HK$nil (31 December
2017: approximately HK$106,697,000). The fair
values of the liability components of CB5 are
calculated using cash flows discounted at rate
based on the borrowings rate of 7.24% per annum
and are within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

PROMISSORY NOTES

PN 1

On 15 April 2015, the Company issued promissory
note with principal amount of HK$80,000,000 (the
“PN 1”) at par value in accordance with the sale
and purchase agreement dated 22 December 2014
entered into between Elegant Motion Enterprises
Limited, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, the non-
executive Director. The PN 1 has a maturity of 3
years from the date of issue and bear coupon
interest at 9% per annum, accrued daily and
payable annually in arrears. The PN 1 are
denominated in HKS.

MN-ZE—-N\EFE+-_A=1+—HBFERHATHER
BEFEEEBINAABATETL(ZE—+
F+=-A=+—8 : £106,697,000/% t) °
FRATHREFBELXDNAARBEIREA
EREE R RNBEIR KRG F7.24%8 A E
ETREHE VWAL ESHNE_H -

34. & E R

RRER

R-_ZE—RAFMWA+HB  ARBBEARD
RIZ2ENBARHESDCEFR AR EIEHTT
BEEEEMEASTVRBA T —NFE+ =
AZ+-—BrzEEWs ERAEZTLA:S
¥4 £80,000,00078 7T < & R 2K (1% K R
1)) c AR EB 1N ETHERE ZF 2
ZERFENRINEHR  WERTFH
R o B EEEATI B LAHE -
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34. PROMISSORY NOTES 34. & b E g
(Continued) (#%)
PN 1 (Continued) RRER1(E)
During the year ended 31 December 2015, on initial HEZ £¢+ A=Z+—HLEEE B
recognition, the fair value of the PN 1 was ) 56@173\51 R BBEIZ A E R E
calculated by discounting future repayments at an BRI EA12.37% B IR R RIEFERTE H{é
estimated discount rate of 12.37%. Subsequently, AHBBIFERERMNREZRFEERAMNEX
interest expense on the PN 1 was calculated using 12 % EF BRI -

the effective interest method by applying an
effective interest rate of 12.41% per annum.

PN 4 RA R4

On 14 April 2018, the promissory note with RZZE-NAFHA+EA - REARAEHE
principal amount of HK$104,640,000 (the “PN 4”) at EEFVARAZT - N\FHATMNAZE
par value was issued to settle part of the principal FERAHE EEERETASSEA
and interest accrued on the CB5 in accordance 104,640,000/ 7T 2 % H 28 ([ 5 K E1#E41)
with the supplementary loan agreement dated 14 WENERAMBRRESZHBIAERER
April 2018 entered into between the Company and AR AN ERAN T AR D
Mr. Sin. The PN 4 has a maturity of approximately :‘f"tﬂﬂ BFE-EB Hziﬂ$8%ﬂ 2
27 months from the date of issue and bears oW ERIEHBE I

coupon interest at 8% per annum, accrued monthly
and payable in full on the maturity date.

The movement for the period on the PN 1 and PN EABBIRALZBRBANEEANZEEHIAT
4 was as follows:
PN 1 PN 4
A RER ERER4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZZE—tF—H—H
B 45 B2 81,655 -
Effective interest expense (note 11) EEMERZ (M3E11) 9,536 —
Transfer to interest payables HBEEMNFE (7,200) —
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+=A
=t+—HWEH 83,991 —
Issuance of promissory note %’*ﬁ A EE - 99,338
Effective interest expense (note 11) ERA B (MsE11) 3,209 7,139
Transfer to interest payables HBEEREMNFE (7,200) —
Settled by way of loan from R RE RN
shareholder (80,000) —
Balance at 31 December 2018 AZE—NF+=A
=t HmEH — 106,477

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of PN 1 N AN i‘f‘ A=+—8  &HZ &
amounted to approximately HK$85,395,000 (2017: MARLRBEAEEL(ZFT—EF:4
approximately HK$85,395,000). The fair value of PN 85,395,000/ Jr) ° A& 5L RIR1H) A 72 B TR
1 is calculated using cash flows discounted at rate AEREENENREGFTI54%(ZF
on the nil rate of 7.54% per annum (2016: 5.48% —RF ¢5 48%)H£fﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁmuzﬁﬁ
per annum) and are within level 2 of the fair value WHIARRBEERNE_R -

hierarchy.
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35. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 35. & %t Bl JH £

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary BREREXRAEBEEIREEMEZE2RERAR
differences under the liability method using the tax FEEER W A AR R A9 B R i E 2 B o
rates applicable in the tax jurisdiction concerned.

The following are the deferred tax liabilities THAREE D BRAMNELERIBEERER
recognised by the Group and movements thereon FRHEE -

during the year.

Revaluation of

properties
MEE G
HK$’000
FAT
At 1 January 2017 R—ZFE—tF—H—H 176,356
Charged to property revaluation reserve R EEGHFEEBERNR (10,727)
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZE—+tF+ZA=+—HEK
—E—-NF—A—H 165,629
Charged to property revaluation reserve Ry EEEFEEANR (7,159)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-—N\F+ZA=+—H 158,470
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has REIEMAR  AEBEEFARABREEE
estimated unused tax losses of approximately #9604,637,000% (= T — £+ F: 4
HK$604,637,000 (2017: approximately 534,911,000 7T) - Al BEEBEE £ EED
HK$534,911,000) available for offsetting against RAZ AR ER o« Hat REBARIBEEFRE
future profits of the companies in which the losses /5 18 #9257,949,0008 L (Z & — £ F : &)
arose. Included in the estimated unused tax losses 199,748,000 L) R A F W EH - HAb{h
are losses of approximately HK$257,949,000 (2017: 5T 78 B A 5 18 49346,688,0008 70 (= T —+
approximately HK$199,748,000) that will expire £ : %9835,163,000/% 7T) A MR AR &8 45 -
within 5 years. Other estimated unused tax losses A IR B S ) 6 DA TR - i 37 4 gk B T8 RS B AR
of approximately HK$346,688,000 (2017: RIEEFIBEE -

approximately HK$335,163,000) may be carried
forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of these estimated unused
tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit
streams.
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36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. A
Number of Shares Share Capital
k& E &
Notes
Wit sr

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each &% E0.17% T

Authorised: BT
At 1 January and 31 December X —A—H K
+-A=1+—8H 6,000,000 6,000,000 600,000 600,000

Issued and fully paid: EBRTRAR:

At 1 January ®»—H—H 4,514,160 3,998,389 451,416 399,839

Capitalisation of loan interest ~ ER &7 F| 8 & A&k

payable (@) - 112,107 - 11,211
Capitalisation of other payable H 4 FE{F B & AL (0) - 387,984 - 38,798
Share issued upon exercise of 171 i Ik FT %17 &)

share options & 3,000 15,680 300 1,568

31 December Nt-B=+-H 4517,160 4,514,160 451,716 451416

Notes: B 5T -

(a) On 21 April 2017, the Company issued 112,107,623 (a) MNZE—+FNNA-_+—H AKRQaLH
shares at HK$0.1 each to Mr. Sin to settle interest A%0.158 7T » B 47112,107,6238 B 10 F % %
payables of the loans from shareholder, convertible EENMRENER R ESMAR
bonds and promissory note amounting to ZHZENFE - £ 58 425,000,000/ 7T
approximately HK$25,000,000 (note 45(iii)). (Pt 5E45(ii) ) °

(b) On 21 April 2017, the Company issued 387,984,117 (b) RZZE—+tFMA-_+—H XAFAKS
shares at HK$0.1 each to the third parties to settle f%0.178 7T 347387,984, 117H I p F 5 =
the other payables amounting to approximately F U&ERFEMENRKRE € 8H
HK$86,472,000 (note 45(iv)). 86,472,000/ 7T (Mt 5145(iv) ) °

252 National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETLEMEGRAF



Annual Report 2018
ZE-\FH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B % 3R & Mi 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-T—N\F+_A=+—HIFE

37. RESERVES

38.

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 131 of the
consolidated financial statements.

The special reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the
acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the
shares of the Company issued in exchange for the
shares of the acquired subsidiaries under the
reorganisation.

The contributed surplus account was designated by
the Company within the meaning of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda which represented (i) the
entire amounts standing to the credit balance of the
share premium account of the Company as at 30
June 2010; (i) the transfer of the share premium
arising from capital reduction on 29 September
2010; and (i) the offset with the accumulated
losses in full up to 31 December 2010.

OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

37. fiki i

4 55 I A 6 RO £ 4 # BEB  RLBA
EHNGAHBREEISIENGA BHE
BEN2T -

Ry Tl 7 468 8 PIT U PN /B8 2 R B ) HO D (B ERL AR
RENBAR ST B A R RO M
BITHRNDOEEMENZR -

ARABEENESARE(ETERARE
—NNA\—FRaE)BOAR B K5 EER
MN-ZE-—ZBEXA=+ENER2EHH
A =—Z—ZF A =+ B RS RE
ERMDRENERE Ri)EHEHEZ_F
—ZTE+ - A=+-HHRHFBE-

38. &= MR

FREEREBEA
RBEMR  AEBRBEICAIHELLHE

commitments for future minimum lease payments BUTRERNFEBESFRE - BHEBR
under non-cancellable operating leases which N
approximately fall due as follows:
2018 2017
—E—N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FET
Within one year —FRA 11,427 9,303
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EZERF
(BEEEMTF) 46,128 29,388
Over five years BAAF 91,488 99,271
149,043 137,962
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38.

39.

OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS (continuea)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

The HRL and its subsidiaries leased two pieces of
land located near Xigiao mountain in Foshan, the
PRC, under operating leases of 20 years
commencing from 3 October 2010 and renewable
for another 20 years automatically. One piece of
land had been leased since 2010 and recognised
as finance lease obligation in 2011 as disclosed in
note 33. Lux Unicorn leased three pieces of land
also located near Xigiao mountain in Foshan, the
PRC, under operating leases of 18.5 vyears
commencing from 1 November 2013 and renewable
for another 20 years automatically. The Group also
leased premises under operating leases which are
run for an initial period of three years. None of
these leases include contingent rentals.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

38. BEME &I )

FREERREANE)

EANMNEBARIRBELLEHE AR AF
E#ELmELNRE L B —FFE+
A=HBRAH-_+F ra®EHE_TF-
AN FEQSFTHEE AR —E i E T —
TEHRPEHARR T ——FBRAMKHE
EAE BREBRELCEAERA MM EPEH
BLFEE L=t B —=F+—
A— B AEI8sF AEBSER _+F-
AREBRRELERELAYE  ZEHE
NEEB=-F - ZEHEBRTEERAME
@o

39. B Ak

2018 2017
—E-—)N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FAET
Contracted but not provided for: BRI 4B KRB -
Construction of properties LS 63,514 91,807
Authorised but not contracted for: BEHLEBEKRETY ¢
Construction of properties (Note) lES= dC =) 341,686 360,187

Note:

Capital commitment for construction in properties related
to capital commitment for construction of film studio and
hotel in Foshan, the PRC. The authorised amount was
approved by the directors of the Company according to
the land lease agreements signed between Lux Unicorn,
the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the local
authority in Foshan, the PRGC, in relation to the leasing of
lands for development of tourism and related
entertainment business and hotel operations. The
completion of constructions and commencement of
operations of the projects shall be within three and four
years respectively from the signing of the lease
agreements.
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40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT

41.

PLANS

The Group participates in employee social security
plans as required by the regulations in the PRC.
The Group also participates in the Mandatory
Provident Fund scheme to which all qualified
employees of the Group in Hong Kong are entitled.
The assets of the retirement benefit schemes are
held, separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of the trustees. The employees of
the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of social
security schemes operated by the relevant local
government authorities. The pension plans are
funded by payments from employees and by the
relevant group companies. The amounts charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income represent
contributions payable by the Group at the specified
rates according to the respective plans. The only
obligation of the Group in respect of the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the specified
contributions.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had share
options schemes for employee compensation as set
out below.

(a) Post initial public offering share option
scheme

The post initial public offering share option
scheme (“Post-IPO Option Scheme”) was
conditionally approved by a resolution of the
sole shareholder dated 22 July 2002 (the
“Effective Date”). Major terms of this scheme
are summarised as follows:

(i) The Post-IPO Option Scheme enables
the Company to grant share options to
selected persons as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the
Group.

(i) The participants of the Post-IPO Option
Scheme include any employee, director,
advisor and consultant, supplier,
customer and shareholder of any
member of the Group as well as any
provider of financial assistance to any
member of the Group.

“NFE+ZA=t—RLFE

40. I8 @ A gt #0

41.

$Elﬁﬁ¢liﬁ2ﬁm fHEAtER
EET 8l o $Elﬁ/ﬂmﬁﬁ$% NN
Z%ﬁAéﬁﬁAZﬁﬂE &5 R

W@ﬂ?ﬂZﬁEE$EIZﬁEEEEA
Pt 2 EZS 0 RARKE - RHPBEMBARZ
BEREWE BN RBLHR 2 LS RRA
%ZWE°EW?ﬂZ§iXﬁﬁﬁE&H
BEBERARZHR NG BREREMERH
WHRARZE ﬁﬁ$¢lﬁﬁ BE kidss
FE LR 2 3R - REE B R IKE N
Bz —BEERELFERN -

VA B oy 7 2 4 1Y £ 3% 22 5
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41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

Post initial public offering share option
scheme (Continuea)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the
Company on acceptance of the share
option offer. The share option offer will
be offered for acceptance for a period
of 14 days from the date on which the
offer is granted.

Share options may be granted on such
terms and conditions in relation to their
vesting, exercise or otherwise as the
board of directors of the Company may
determine, provided such terms and
conditions shall not be inconsistent with
any other terms and conditions of the
Post-IPO Option Scheme. The grantees
are not required to hold any share
options or any shares allotted pursuant
to any share options for any minimum
period.

The subscription price for the shares
under the Post-IPO Option Scheme will
be determined by the board of
directors of the Company and notified
to each grantee and will be at least the
highest of (a) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant of the share option,
which must be a business day, (b) the
average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
grant and (c) the nominal value of a
share.

The limit on the number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding share options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Post-IPO
Option Scheme and other share option
schemes must not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.
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(ii)

(iv)

(vi)
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41. DAy 2 e E W A sk 2 B (&)

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

Post initial public offering share option
scheme (Continuea)

(vii)

(vii)

(ix)

The total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the Post-
IPO Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as at 17 October 2002,
amounting to 49,219,623 shares (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit”). The
Company may renew the Scheme
Mandate Limit at any time subject to
prior shareholders’ approval. However,
the Scheme Mandate Limit as renewed
must not exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as at the date of the aforesaid
shareholders’ approval.

The total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the share
options granted under the Post-IPO
Option Scheme to each grantee
(including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue from time to time. Any
further grant of share options to such
grantee which would result in the
shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all share options granted
and to be granted to such grantee
(including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of
such further grant representing in
aggregate over 1% of the shares in
issue, must be subject to shareholders’
approval with such grantee and his
associates abstaining from voting.

A share option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Post-
IPO Option Scheme at any time during
the period notified by the board of
directors of the Company to each
grantee provided that the period within
which the share option must be
exercised shall not be more than 10
years from the date of grant of the
share option.

(a)

B

(vii)

(vl

(ix)
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41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 41. VAt % B BE 0 ) sk 22 5 (4

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

258

(a)

(b)

Post initial public offering share option
scheme (Continuea)

(X)  The Post-IPO Option Scheme remains
valid for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Effective Date. In
addition, the Company may, by ordinary
resolution in general meeting or the
board of directors of the Company may
at any time terminate the operation of
the Post- IPO Option Scheme. Share
options which are granted during the life
of the Post-IPO Option Scheme may
continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of issue.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in the
extraordinary general meeting of the
Company, the Post-IPO Option Scheme was
terminated on 29 September 2010.

New share option scheme

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in the
extraordinary general meeting of the
Company, a new share option scheme (the
“New Scheme”) was approved on 29
September 2010. Major terms of this scheme
are summarised as follows:

(i) The purpose of the New Scheme is to
attract and retain the best available
personnel, to provide additional
incentive to selected person and to
promote the success of the business of

(a)

(b)

BERARBRERKRES(2)

BR AR BB ERES S B
ERBRATFEREY - B
ARARABEBERRKGEB
EBAZRAATAARAES
SRERZIFERAFARER
Pt BlH0E(F - N B IRRFR
B ik BB B pE 5t Bl B I A IR
B B8 A A AT AR R I F R AT IR
RAEET AT

x)

N

RERARABRREIAE LEBEW
FRRFE R - B R DB IRIR B R
AEER-_FT-FTFAA-—TABER
ke

i 8 A A et B

BRERARBBIREFHIAE BB
FrRRE SR - — IR B RES &) ([ %7
HEDER-_Z-ZEFAA-TNE
FEHLE o HERH S E 2B T

i)y #FEHEAEERSIRBERES

AT - M TEE A TR
R AR AR EEEBEK
I

the Group;
(i)  The participants of the New Scheme (i) FErEH2EERFEAQFRL

include any employee of the Company
or any subsidiary of the Company, a
director, a shareholder, a supplier, a
customer or any subsidiary of the

HERMERBNEIAES &
EOBRER - HER FPHAR
AMERIMEB AR - MARRHHE
EAIP B 2 A 32 LA 3 s B b

Company; an agent, adviser, Rt EmBEEEBRE D
consultant, strategist, contractor, sub- RIE BERE ZEXEBER XK
contractor, expert or entity that B RHERS DRI ERK
provides research, development or EfE ARBIAFAIHE A

other technological support or any
valuable services to Company or any of
its subsidiary; a holder of any securities
issued by Company or any of its
subsidiary;
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41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

New share option scheme (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the
Company on acceptance of the share
option offer. The share option offer will
be offered for acceptance for a period
of 14 days from the date on which the
offer is granted;

No offer of a New Share Option which
is capable of or open for acceptance
shall be made after the expiry of the
exercise period pursuant to the New
Scheme;

The subscription price for the share
under the New Scheme will be
determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion at the time of making the
offer of grant of a new share option but
in any case the subscription price must
be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of the offer of grant,
which must be a Business Day; (i) the
average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five Business
Day immediately preceding the date of
the offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares;

The total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the New
Scheme and any other schemes in
aggregate not exceeding 10 per cent of
the issued share capital of the
Company as at 29 June 2017 (2016:
24 June 2016), amounting to
4,498,481,222 shares (2016:
3,801,722,816 shares) (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”"). The Company may
renew the Scheme Mandate Limit at any
time subject to the approval of the
Shareholders in general meeting
provided that such renewed limit shall
not exceed 10 per cent of the Shares
in issue as at the date of approval of
such limit;

41. DAy 2 3 E W A 5k 2 B (&)
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41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) New share option scheme (Continueq)

(vii)

(vii)

(ix)

The total number of New Shares issued
and to be issued upon the exercise of
the New Share Options granted to each
grantee (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding Share Options) in any
12 month period shall not exceed 1 per
cent of the relevant class of securities
of the Company in issue. Further New
Share Options may be granted to such
grantee, which, if exercised, would
result in such grantee becoming entitled
to subscribe for New Shares in excess
of the limit, by obtaining approval of the
Shareholders in general meeting with
such grantee and his associate(s)
abstaining from voting;

The share options may be exercised in
whole or in part by the Participant at
any time during the exercise period, i.e.
not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant of the relevant New Share
Options pursuant to the New Scheme,
by delivering to the Company a notice
duly signed in a form approved by the
Board (together with payment of the
exercise price in full in respect of each
New Share to be subscribed for) and
delivery of the New Share Option
certificate for amendment or
cancellation; and

The New Scheme will remain in force for
a period of 10 years commencing on
the date on which the New Scheme
becomes unconditional. The Board may
amend any of the provisions of the New
Scheme or withdraw or otherwise
terminate the New Scheme at any time
but no alterations shall be made to the
advantage of any Participant unless
approved by the Shareholders in
general meeting. All New Share Options
granted prior to such termination and
not then exercise shall continue to be
valid and exercisable subject to and in
accordance with the terms of the New
Scheme.
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41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 41. VAt % e BE 0 ) sk 2 5 (4

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The following table discloses details and
movements of the Company’s share options held by
the directors, eligible employees and other
participants of the Group during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017:

TEEBRE-T—\ER-F—F+=
A=+—RIrEEMEE AEHERBLE
A B (B A AR T IR 2
HERED -

Number of share options

BREHE

Outstanding at Exercised Outstanding at

1 January Granted during during the Lapsed during 31 December

Option type 2018 the year year the year 2018

RZF-\§

RZZ-N\§ +=A8

-A-B# =+-8

ERESSR RATE RERRH RERT REREH i K 47 €
Post-IPO Option Scheme & XA K A% %

BhxEstal 12,096,325 - - (8,022,645) 4,073,680

New Scheme it 8 281,292,987 - (3,000,000) (7,882,408) 270,410,579

Total @ 293,389,312 - (3,000,000) (15,905,053) 274,484,259

Exercisable at the end of WREXR AT

the year 293,389,312 274,484,259
Weighted average exercise A F19171# (&

price HK$3.31% 7T —  HK$0.25%T  HK$3.16ET  HK$0.41ET

Note:

The following share options under the New Scheme were
exercised during the year ended 31 December 2018:

For the year ended 31 December 2018

i 5

ATHte THBERERBE—2—\F+ A
=t —HILFEETE:

RBE-F—-N\E+-A=+—-HLEEE

Share price

immediately

Number of Share price at before the date

Date of options granted Shares Exercise date exercise date of exercise
RiETHE

RHUBREDY KRHEE TEBEH TEBHRKRE B # 7 19 B% (B
16 May 2017 3,000,000 12 January 2018 0.37 0.37
—E—+tFRATRKRAE 3,000,000 —ZE-N\F¥—-A+=H 0.37 0.37
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41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 41. VAt % B ME 0 ) sk 2 5 (4
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Number of share options

BREHE

Outstanding at Qutstanding at

1 January  Granted during Exercised during  Lapsed during 31 December

Option type 2017 the year the year the year 2017

RZZ—tF

RZE—+%F +=A

~A-8H \ =+-7

BRRERR KT REARHT RERTHR RERKH R IT R
Post-IPO Option Scheme & X AR A%

BREE 12,885,263 - - (788,938) 12,096,325

New Scheme il 10,787,062 288,740,000 (15,680,000) (2,554,075) 281,292,987

Total & 23,672,325 288,740,000 (15,680,000) (3,343,013) 293,389,312

Exercisable at the end of R ERATTE

the year 23,672,325 293,389,312
Weighted average exercise JiEF 9176 B

price HK$5.187% 7T HK$0.257 7L HK$0.25% 1T HK$6.15% 7T HK$3.317 1T

Note: B E

The following share options under the New Scheme were NTHEtE THERERBEZE_Z—+F+A

exercised during the year ended 31 December 2017: =t+—BLEFEEITE:

For the year ended 31 December 2017 RBE-_FT—t&+-_A=+—HILEE
Share price
immediately

Number of Share price at before the date

Date of options granted Shares Exercise date exercise date of exercise

BT

BHEREDY 372 4= TEBH TEBHRE B #5189 i% 8

16 May 2017 2,240,000 18 December 2017 0.43 0.46

—Z—+tHFhA+RH 2,240,000 —ET—tE+ZA+N\H 0.43 0.46

16 May 2017 13,440,000 20 December 2017 0.40 0.42

—Z2—+FAA+H 13,440,000 —E—+F+-A=-+H 0.40 0.42
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41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the number of shares of
which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the share option scheme was
274,484,259 (2017: 293,389,332) representing
approximately 6.1% (2017: 6.5%) of the Company’s
issued shares capital at that date. The weighted
average remaining contractual life was 1.39 years
(2017: 4 years).

41.

The fair value of the share options granted to
employees and directors was determined using the
binomial Model.

The following assumptions were used to calculate
the fair values of share options:

Date of grant

i A

Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of Options granted

EREEBREETEEE TEITZRNER
Estimated fair values of options granted (rounded to HK$’000)
HEHERLEREZANBEWEETET)
Grant date share price

B BB RMDER

Exercise price

e 1E

Expected volatility

T8 B R 1R

Expected life of options

IR TE R B S H

Risk-free interest rate

2 J3 B )

Expected dividend yield

8 B U 3

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the share prices of other
companies in the similar industry over the expected
life of the options. No other feature of the options
granted was incorporated into the measurement of
fair values.

The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair values of the share options are based on
the Directors’ best estimate. The value of an option
varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

Options granted are fully vested at the date of
grant.
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R-E-NF+-A=+—8 RERE:S
BT ERHEDRITEERENRNEE
B074,484,2591p (= FE — 4 : 293,389,332
) AR REEBNDEITRAEBL
61%(ZF—+F:65%) - MEFHHET
AHFRAIBIF(ZT—LF 1 45F) -

ETRENEFTBRENAAEBNER =R
BEEE -

AEBRENAAERENAATRER

16 May 2017
—E—+tFHRA+H
288,740,000
288,740,000
HK$31,422,000
31,422,000/% 7T
HK$0.2240
0.22407% 7T
HK$0.2456
0.24567% I
76.45%

76.45%

2.64 years
2.644F

0.887%

0.887%

0.00%

0.00%
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ERBRIETR T F R 2 B IR 0E M EE
SEAAER YEMACDELZBEREZ
H AR #h -
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42. RELATED PARTY 42. BB U5 52 5
TRANSACTIONS
Save as disclosed in notes 8, 11, 29, 33 and 36 to Brir & B B & M 528 - 11~ 29 ~ 3336
the consolidated financial statements, the Group WEIN AEBEEHRBYR LTRSS :
entered into the following transactions with related
parties:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FAT
Interest paid to a director BEN—REEFE 2,281 —
Interest paid to shareholders BEATREF A 53,309 43,699

Loss on capitalisation of loan interest & 2L & <t & 3R B &5 18

payables - (1,5670)
Compensation of key management personnel TEEBASHHM
The Directors consider that they are the only key EERE HEALAEEZETEERAE
management personnel of the Group and details of HENMFBHAMFEIS

their compensation are set out in note 15.

26ll National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl #R& XL EMERAA
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43. DISPOSAL OF A 43. B — [ F & A A
SUBSIDIARY
In March 2017, the Group entered into a sale and RZE—+F=R FAEEE-RBFE=FF]
purchase agreement with a third party to dispose of VEBEWE LEAEEFAENEBEAE
the Group’s entire equity interest in In Industrial for R RS R EAE1,000,0008 7T  FARAE
a cash consideration of HK$1,000,000. In Industrial ERNBRAMR L BBREERRAA -
is an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong.
Analysis of asset and liabilities over which control REBHEZEERGEST
was lost

HK$’000
TFET

Non-current assets ERHEE
Intangible asset mEEE 1,079
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE 1,079
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—-EHBATZERE
HK$’000
TFi#T
Consideration received 2R E 1,000
Net assets disposal of BHEEEFE (1,079)
Loss on disposal &z EE (79)
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary HE-RBMBATGZHERNFE
HK$’000
Ti#&xT
Consideration received in cash and LR RRESEEEE KRB 2RE
cash equivalents 1,000

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited SRETILEAERAA 265
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44. RECONCILIATION OF 44. @B B P E R A BHIR
LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s TRFNAEEREFTDMELEABZE
liabilities arising from financing activities, including g pRESRIFEEMIENES - BE
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising EEMELABEREREDLIARKRE S
from financing activities are those for which cash MEMZIEAREEGERERERALZ
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in BRETHNEESRENEHEERE -

the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

Loans from Finance lease Convertible  Promissory
shareholders  Borrowings  obligations Bonds bond note Total
% M B
HER B HERE &% RE%H RRAER @t

(note 31) (note 32) (note 33) (note 34) (note 35) (note 36)
(B¥5E31) (B 5t32) (Bi5t33) (Bit34) (P 3£35) GEZD)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR TET FET T T T
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+E—f 462,344 179,538 23,406 506,803 110,813 81,655 1,364,559
Financing cash flows REBLTE 3,851 16,385 (2,584) 153,810 - - 171,462
Finance costs recognised & # R &4 A A 43,699 26,768 2,171 83,025 - 9,536 165,199
Fair value change DhER - - - - 4,902 - 4,902
Transfer to other payables 84 % H ft &
and accruals B R e B (5,834) (2,081) - (23,718) (9,018) (7,200) (47,851)
Effect of foreign currency JMEE R E BT L
exchange differences - 592 (362) - - - 230
At 31 December 2017 and RZZ—+ 5
1 January 2018 +=ZA=+-H
k=F-N\F
—A—H 504,060 221,202 22,631 719,920 106,697 83,991 1,668,501
Financing cash flows BEBSTE (35,041) 40,330) (282) 164,376 . - 88,673
Finance costs recognised  E A E & Ak & 53,309 13,775 1,839 139,023 - 10,348 218,294
Fair value change NhEEY - - - - 2,521 - 2,521
Transfer to other payables 4 Z £ ft &
and accruals B R e HE (5,402) (1,411) - - (9,018) (7,200) (23,031)
Settled by way of loan form BAR B & 705 R
shareholder &t 84,200 - - - (4,200 (80,000) -
Settled by way of NARLEERR
promissory note &1 - - - - (96,000) 99,338 3,338
Effect of foreign currency SMNEEREZHFE
exchange differences (95) (127) 1l - - - (211)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F
—A=+—H 601,031 193,059 24,199 1,023,319 - 106,477 1,948,085
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45. MAJOR NON — CASH
TRANSACTIONS

i During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
CB5 with principal amount of HK$4,200,000
was settled by way of loan from Mr. Sin
(Note 33).

ii. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
CB5 with principal and accrued interests
amounted of HK$96,000,000 and
HK$8,640,000 respectively, settled by the
issuance of promissory note with principal
amount of HK$104,640,000 (Note 33).

iii. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Company issued 112,107,623 shares at
HK$0.1 each to Mr. Sin to settle the
amounting to approximately HK$25,000,000
(Note 36).

iv. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Company issued 387,984,117 shares at
HK$0.1 each to the third parties to settle the
other payables amounting to approximately
HK$86,472,000 (Note 36).

46. DIVIDEND

No dividend has been proposed or declared by the
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: Nil).

47. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018 were approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2019.

45.

40.

47.

FREBHERS

REE-_ZTZ—-N\F+_F=+—8H
It FRBATBEBRESEREERS
4,200,0007%8 & LA % 5t £ IR B & 1
(Pff 5£33) »

i, REE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—8
I FRMATBRBEESNREERSE
¥ FE = F B 5 596,000,000/ ¥ K
8,640,000/ K BB RITAS S HE A
104,640,000/ 7T 2 # ¥ 2= 3% & 1 (Kt
£¥33) o

i, REBEE-_ZE—+tF+=-_A=+—H1
FE - -ARRAESROE T BT
112,107,623/ F R & B &84
25,000,000/ 7t (Ff5E£36) °

v. REZEZE-Z—+tF+=-A=+—81
FE-ARAEFROE L #17
387,984,117 FEHE =7 BT H A&
N FRIE - 4 58 #986,472,0005 JT (M 5%
36) °

Jit 8

HE-T-\F+=-A=+-RALFE #
EHERARTRRE (T —LF 8) -

N

it e B B5 e 3%

BHE_Z-N\F+_A=+T—HILEENELE
EMBBREENR T -NF=ZA_THES
e ERMm-
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 48. A w) 1 B 55 IR Dl R K

POSITION AND RESERVES fi 5
OF THE COMPANY
2018 2017
—E—)N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FHET
Non-current assets RENEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BENMEE 2 3
Investments in subsidiaries WBARZ&E 882 882
884 885
Current assets RENEE
Prepayments, deposit and other TEMNGRE - Ee hEME
receivables W KT8 28,929 2,724
Amounts due from subsidiaries NN ] 2,087,764 2,233,299
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTE & 9,217 16,037
2,125,910 2,252,060
Current liabilities B8R \
Other payables and accruals HAb ERRIB R EETE A 30,259 44,295
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE A H B8 & R R IR 19,272 1,019
Loans from shareholders % 3R B & R 4,090 452,673
Borrowings BE 92,408 177,945
Bonds &5 660,424 306,369
Convertible bond Al R A - 106,697
Promissory note A HEE - 83,991
806,453 1,172,989
Net current assets MENEEFE 1,319,457 1,079,071
Total assets less current liabilities ZBESERTEIEE 1,320,341 1,079,956
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Loans from shareholders R E R 596,941 51,387
Borrowings B 41,074 20,655
Bonds &5 362,895 413,551
Promissory note QT REE 106,477 —
1,107,387 485,593
Net assets BEFE 212,954 594,363
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Equity attributable to owners of KARER ANEILER
the Company
Share capital A& A 451,716 451,416
Reserves f& 188 (238,762) 142,947
Total equity A 212,954 594,363
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 48. A w) 1 B 05 IR Dl R K

POSITION AND RESERVES i )
OF THE COMPANY (continuea)
The Company’s statement of financial position was KRBz BHRABREREBRETERZF
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of —NFZA-t+AMEREETE  YHT
Directors on 20 March 2019 and are signed on its NESREEZTSESE
behalf by:
Chow Kai Weng Cheng Wang Chun
AR EB5ABE
Director Director
EE o
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48. A 2w B B R DL R R R
s &

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AND RESERVES
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

FARNREEE

Movement in the Company’s reserves

270

Convertible
bonds Share
Share Capital equity Contributed options  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus reserve losses Total
EE Y 3¢
RiEE BAGE R RHERR MERERE RiBHR @zt
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
4§ TET TET FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT
Balance at 1 January 2017 R-E—+&
—A-AMEH 731,706 (25) 15,697 76,471 26,229 (630,895) 219,083
Capitalisation of loan interest ERERFSERE
payables 15,359 - - - - - 15,359
Capitalisation of other payables i fii f FRIEE Ak, 53,154 - - - - - 53,154
Share issued upon exercise of 171 AR HE AT & 1T
share options & 1n 3,495 - - - (1,212) - 2,283
Equity-settled share-based & iR
payment (note 41) (F £41) - - - - 31,422 - 31,422
Lapse of share options R E - - - - (4,559) 4,559 -
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - (178,354) (178,354)
Balance at 31 December 2017 AT —+#%
+=ZA=+-H 803,714 (25) 15,597 76,471 51,880 (804,690) 142,947
Balance at 31 December 2017~ RZT—+F
and 1 January 2018 TZA=Z+-BR
—Z-N\¥-f-H
ok o 803,714 (25) 15,697 76,471 51,880 (804,690) 142,947
Share issued upon exercise of 171 B A48 A B 1T Y
share options 17 781 - - - (344) - 437
Lapse of share options BERELRM - - - - (9,622) 9,622 -
Extinguishment of convertiole bond /1A ZETEE
by the way of issuance of RO G ATH
promissory note to substantial AMRRESR
shareholder - 5,302 (15,597) - - 15,697 5,302
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - (387,448) (387,448)
Balance at 31 December 2018 ~ AT —N\F
+=ZA=+-H 804,495 5,277 - 76,471 41,914 (1,166,919) (238,762)
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 48. A w) 1 B 05 IR Dl R K

POSITION AND RESERVES
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves (Continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a
result of capital reorganisation and represents the
entire amounts standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company as at 30 June
2010 and the credits arising from capital reduction
for eliminating or setting off the accumulated losses
of the Company from time to time. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed
surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare
or pay dividend, or make a distribution out of the
contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds
for believing that: (i) it is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; or (ii) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

The capital reserve of the Company arose as a
result of the reorganisation and represents the
excess of the combined net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company issued in exchange
thereof.

i i (&)

FATMREEYE)

ARABMEBEHBBR I EARANEEMES - /A
ARAR-ZB-ZFXRA=THORMNEE
RR A0 AR 2 B8 I RN B R BT EE AR E AR 0 A
HRRE AN R AR EE - RIEA
RE-—NN—FRQEDE ARANEHAR
BRAT DR o AT A A EIEBEAE ()
ARRR TN B EHB BT BRSO (A
BHEHDIRRE T EE N E BB A E ¢ (i)
ARBEENAEREESTEAMINEAR
R BB BT RN B 0 (B AR eV 4B A - RIS
RETFEEHBHRT BRSO B S
H K e

ARABMEBERFEEYEEAMEL - AR
BHBARNAHEEFERLAREER
REMBETORATENORD ©
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B E

FINANCIAL RESULTS % 3 4
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
LY — T+ F —T-RF —ET-—HF —ET—NOF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FET FET F& T FET
Revenue g A 153,837 221,372 57,827 40,038 15,260
Loss before income [ &% A /&5 18
tax (415,558) (193,533) (827,092) (264,834) (142,989)
Income tax expense Fff 15 % I 52 - — - - (5,924)
Loss for the year  4E 518 (415,558)  (193,533)  (327,092)  (264,834)  (148,913)
Attributable to: AT BEA
Owners of the ZIN/NEI B RSN
Company (493,616) (193,529 (827,091) (264,828) (148,913)
Non-controlling FEVE IR 2
interests (2) (4) (1) (6) -
(493,618)  (193,533)  (327,002)  (264,834)  (148,913)
v, EIE »
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND &~ At LR
EQUITY
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
VI T~ F T X —E-RF Z—T-MF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FET FET F& T FET
Total assets BEME 2,358,431 2,617,586 2,377,447 2,448,510 1,835,642
Total liabilities BEEE (2,213,256)  (1,977,155) (1,737,469) (1,518,128)  (763,168)
145,175 640,431 639,978 930,382 1,072,474
Equity attributable to ARG #HAH A
the owners of the JEfL =
Company 144,943 640,197 639,740 930,143 1,072,474
Non-controlling JE 4R % A 25
interests 232 234 238 239 —
145,175 640,431 639,978 930,382 1,072,474

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETIVERERLA



National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited

O BEREX L REBERAT




	COVER
	INSIDE FRONT COVER
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
	ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT
	DIRECTORS' REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	BACK COVER

